
1 of 3 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, February 18, 2014 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to 
discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Frankie Rodriquez, Living Stones Church, Sugar Land) 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Anthony Ray Becerra for the Unsung Hero Award. (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., 
Mayor) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify 
themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will 
be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by 
the City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy 
to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Regular Meeting Minutes for January 21, 2014, and Workshop Meeting 
Minutes for January 28, 2014. (Cernosek) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1750, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Property Disposition Service Agreement for professional 
auction services, by and between the City and PropertyRoom.com. (Cernosek) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1748, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Agreement for Video Streaming Services, by and between 
the City and Swagit Productions, LLC, for video recording and streaming  of City Council meetings, in 
the base amount of $6,719 for capital equipment purchase of Streaming Video Hardware, $24,453 for 
capital equipment purchase of Cosmos Broadcast System, and $1,135 a month for an initial term of 
one year for Streaming Video Monthly Managed Services. (Fritz) 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-09, an Ordinance granting consent to the Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 159 for the sale and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 
2014, in an amount not to exceed $2,700,000. (Kalkomey) 
  

 E. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1757, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Lease Extension on City-owned property for hay production, 
by and between the City and P. F. Vacek, Jr., for a two-year term. (Maresh) 
 



2 of 3 
 

 F. Consideration of and action on Quarterly Financial Report and Quarterly Investment Report for 
quarter ending December 31, 2013. (Vasut) 
 

 G. Consideration of and action on authorization to offer for sale a proposed list of surplus radio 
equipment items.  (Warren) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  

2. Consideration of and action on a second reading of Ordinance No. 2014-05, an Ordinance amending the 
Code of Ordinances by deleting all of Section 28-41 (b) and (d), Stop Signs Designated, of Article II, Division 2 of 
Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting therefor a new Section 28-41 (b) and (d) of Article II, Division 2 of 
Chapter 28 thereof; providing a penalty in an amount of not less than $1.00 or more than $200.00 for violation 
of any provision hereof; repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; and 
providing for severability. (Maresh) 
 

3. Receive public comment from Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 162 regarding the increase in 
monthly fire protection fee pursuant to the Restated and Amended Fire Protection Agreement. (Lenzsch) 
 

4. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1753, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-07 in the amount of $11,469.15, for the annual Summer 
Park Owner’s Association Assessment Fees. (Vasut) 
 

5. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1754, a Resolution regarding the Financial Management 
Policies of the City of Rosenberg. (Vasut) 
 

6. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1755, a Resolution regarding a funding arrangement by and 
between the City of Rosenberg and the Rosenberg Development Corporation for the infrastructure 
improvements to serve the Rosenberg Business Park. (Vasut) 
 

7. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1756, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-08 in the amount of $44,538.81, to fund a change order 
as approved by the Rosenberg Development Corporation for the Seatex/State Highway 36 Drainage Project. 
(Vasut) 
 

8. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1758, a Resolution awarding a bid for the July 04, 2014, Family 
4th Celebration fireworks display; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on 
behalf of the City, an Agreement, and/or all necessary documentation regarding same.  (Acosta) 
 

9. Consideration of and action on a proposal to combine the Special Events Committee and Parks and 
Recreation Board. (McCarthy) 
 

10. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-10, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances by 
deleting Articles I, II, and III of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor new Articles I, II, and III of Chapter 12 
thereof; providing for general definitions and guidelines for flood prevention and control, administrative 
procedures, and provisions for flood hazard reduction; providing a penalty not to exceed $500 for violation of 
any provision hereof; and providing for severability. (Kalkomey) 
 

11. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-08, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances by 
amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections (a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to Section 6-
362.2 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, providing for expanded boundaries of Sign District “B”; by adding a 
new Section 6-362.3 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, establishing Sign District “C” and regulations for Sign 
District “C”; by adding a new Section 6-362.4 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, establishing a Sign District map; 
providing a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this Code for violation of any provision hereof; 
repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; and providing for 
severability. (Tanner) 
 

12. Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-04, an Ordinance ordering a Special Election to be held 
on May 10, 2014, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters, for adoption or rejection, a proposed 
ordinance and/or resolution prohibiting the City from donating specified real property for the “One-Way Pairs” 
Project; and making provisions for the conduct of the election. (Cernosek) 
 

13. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1752, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and the 
City Secretary to attest, for and on behalf of the City, a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election 
Services for the 2014 Special Election, by and between the City and Fort Bend County, Texas. (Cernosek) 
 

14. Announcements. 

15. Adjournment. 
 



3 of 3 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2014, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Christine Krahn, Acting City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need 
of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   
 



 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of a Certificate of Recognition 
to Anthony Ray Becerra for the Unsung Hero 

Award.  





General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – January 21, 2014 
2. City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes – January 28, 2014 
 



















PAGE 1 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 28th day of January, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Special Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr.  Mayor 
William Benton   Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena   Councilor, District 1 (arrived at meeting at 7:18 p.m.) 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Amanda Bolf   Councilor, District 4 
 
ABSENT 
Dwayne Grigar   Councilor, District 3 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia City Manager 
Linda Cernosek City Secretary 
John Maresh Assistant City Manager 
Jeff Trinker Assistant to the City Manager 
Lora Lenzsch City Attorney 
Charles Kalkomey City Engineer 
Joyce Vasut Finance Director 
Rachelle Kanak Interim Economic Development Director 
Dallis Warren  Interim Police Chief 
Wade Goates Fire Chief 
Travis Tanner Planning Director 
John Johnson Police Officer 
Angela Fritz Communications Director 
Karl Zwahr Public Works Director 
Tommy Havelka Police Officer 
Kaye Supak Executive Assistant 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE LEASE OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY FOR HAY PRODUCTION, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been placed on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss extending the Lease of Real Property for Hay Production (Lease). A copy of the 
current Lease Agreement, which includes maps identifying the locations of the properties, is included in 
the packet. The Lease includes approximately 209 acres of open acreage. The annual Lease payment 
generates a positive cash flow of $3,858.60. Based on the current right-of-way mowing contract rate for 
open acreage ($17.50/acre X 6 mowing cycles), it would cost the City approximately $21,945.00 per 
year to keep the property mowed if it were not leased for hay production. The initial two-year Lease will 
expire on April 01, 2014. The Lease does provide the City with the option to extend for two (2) additional 
one-year terms. The present “Lessee” is Pete F. Vacek, Jr., and he has abided by the terms of the 
Lease and staff has not encountered any issues or problems during the past two (2) years.      



PAGE 2 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

Staff is recommending City Council approve both of the additional one-year terms at this time, thereby 
extending the current Lease with Pete F. Vacek, Jr., until April 01, 2016, in the amount of $3,858.60 per 
year. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager read the Executive Summary regarding the item. 
• Councilor Benton asked if Council could get a list of City owned property.  
• Robert Gracia, City Manager stated staff is in the process of doing an inventory of all City 

owned property. 
• Councilor McConathy stated her only concern is that the City maintains the appropriate buffer 

especially around the business. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM, LIFT STATION AND 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT REHABILITATION PROJECT, AND COST ESTIMATES FOR 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 1-A SERVICE AREA, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY 
TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been placed on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss the overall condition of the sanitary sewer collection system within the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant No. 1-A service area and providing funding for the required improvements to protect the 
health, safety and welfare of our citizens. While efforts have been made over the past five (5) year 
period to replace as many of the sewer lines as possible, the overall system remains in poor condition. In 
many instances, the sewer collection lines have deteriorated to the point the pipe is non-existent 
resulting in street cave-ins and complete line stoppages that often necessitate emergency repairs.   
 
Staff has prepared and included in the packet, cost estimates for the for the following projects: 

1. Collection system line replacement within Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1-A service area 
2. Lift Station rehabilitation/replacements 
3. Conversion of Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1A effluent disinfection from chlorine gas to 

liquid bleach       
 
In order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public and the environment, the above listed 
projects will need to be considered for funding and construction at the earliest time possible. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• John Maresh read the Executive Summary regarding the item. Slides were shown pointing out  
the overall condition of the sanitary sewer collection system: 

• Root intrusions in pipe 
• Pipe completely deteriorated causing cave-ins. 
• Cracks in joints and pipe separation  
• Grease accumulation 
• Cable and missing pipe in main line 
• Mayor Morales asked if there are any recommendations prior to going to budget. 
• John Maresh stated the system is in need of rehabilitation. The cost estimate we put together 

with the help of the City Engineer is $12.5 million for the collection line work. The lift station in 
the worst condition is in the Wastewater Plant 2 service area, lift station #11 on B.F. Terry by 
Fort Bend Appraisal District office. We are keeping that lift station operating with a band aid right 
now. The approximate cost for that is $1.1 million. The lift station in Service Area 1 at Fiesta. 
The Fiesta lift station is a very large lift station and is in bad shape and is approximately $2.1 
million project. Lift Station #4 is located at 1818 Jones Street is approximately $700,000. 

• From a safety aspect, Wastewater Plant 1A still operates using chlorine gas for disinfection and 
to convert that to bleach is approximately $266,000 for the conversion. 

• Mayor Morales asked if there is a recommendation from staff for Council. 
• John Maresh stated it all needs attention. The budget aspect is Council’s call. Staff can look at 

some options whether through CO’s. We have to remember it is a health/safety issue and we 



PAGE 3 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

need to stay ahead of the regulatory agencies. We don’t want to have an administrative order 
issued by the regulatory agency and we are on their time line. We need to stay ahead of that. 

• Mayor Morales stated this is something Council should consider as Certificates of Obligation 
(CO’s). 

• John Maresh stated it would be better because this is a regulatory issue versus a bond election. 
This is a mandate to stay in compliance with these regulations. Certificates of Obligation would 
probably be better. This is not a “want or an extra” this is a need. 

• Councilor Euton stated the total is well over our $10 million a year that keeps us in the best 
borrowing status. Would you want to do this is phases and if so, which phases would you 
recommend? 

• John Maresh stated we could not construct this in a one year period. Staff has not broken it 
down into phases. Depending on the amount of funding available we could tailor the project to 
fit. 

• Councilor Euton asked if the lift stations, since they are a lesser amount, would they need to be 
done before or are they done together. If we move forward when could we start? 

• John Maresh stated they need to be done together. The one in the worst condition is on B.F. 
Terry which is in the service area for Wastewater Plant #2. If funding were made available we 
could get the engineering portion started right away and go to construction as soon as the plans 
are put together. 

• Joyce Vasut, Finance Director stated based on the cost of engineering we probably could start 
even sooner than we could issue Certificates of Obligation. We have a healthy water/sewer fund 
balance which could start the process for some engineering work. 

• Councilor Bolf asked how long the pipes shown in the video have been there. When this is done 
is there any preventative or cleaning that can be done to maintain them? 

• John Maresh stated it was probably when the system was originally installed many decades 
ago. Regarding a preventative maintenance program, due to our budget constraints and 
mandates to reduce expenses each year, we do not have a preventative maintenance program. 
We are strictly reactive fixing emergencies. That is the only funding we had available in the last 
five year period.  

• If you look at the condition of the pipe in the pictures, in many cases if we are not doing a rehab 
project, we do more harm than good if we try to clean those lines because the high pressure 
water jet breaks a lot of the pipe out. 

• Councilor Bolf stated she knows there is not a program in place but if the City could adopt one 
to maintain any new work done we would be ahead. Once we get this fixed we need to consider 
a preventative maintenance program. 

• John Maresh pointed out that the pipe that was installed originally was either concrete or clay. 
Everything used now is PVC or polyethylene which is better and not subject to deterioration with 
the sewer gases. 

• Robert Gracia stated we are in the process of doing a complete assessment of all of our assets 
and we have identified issues City wide from infrastructure to facilities and will be providing our 
findings during the budget workshop coming up in March. We have been aggressively 
identifying those problems.  

• Councilor Benton concurred because this is not something frivolous he had no problem with 
certificates of obligation being issued for some of these costs. 

• What are some examples of the band-aid solutions used for the B.F. Terry lift station?  
• John Maresh stated an on-going issue is the pumps are so old you cannot get parts for them. 

New ones have to be bought and retrofit them. We replaced one and the pumps are still losing 
prime. It is difficult to trouble shoot because the pipe is old and corroded and that is an on-going 
problem. The new stations are all submersible pumps and motors and a lot of those issues are 
eliminated. 

• Councilor Benton asked how long the $12.5 million would be phased in – 3 to 4 years. 
• John Maresh stated staff would have to look at that but that would be realistic. We could not do 

it at one time. It could be a five year program. 
• Councilor Benton stated when folks pay their water bills they expect us to use those monies to 

improve or repair or expand. Hopefully, we have the cash flow to do that. Joyce Vasut seems to 



PAGE 4 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

think we do. 
• Joyce Vasut clarified we would have cash to start the process. If we issue CO’s for these 

projects that would all be CO’s that we as the City would obligate water/sewer revenues to pay 
for. Depending on how much we did per year and how large the debt service that may require 
some increases in some sewer and water rates. 

• Councilor McConathy referenced the first sheet showing the sanitary sewer lines – 167,031 
linear feet of lines to be rehabbed. How does that equate to the read lines on the map? Are we 
talking about rehabbing all the lines throughout the City or just a portion? In terms of cost what 
is the cost of rehab versus new installation? 

• John Maresh stated just a portion, the area within the service are for Plant 1A. The lines are 
being replaced because there is not a way to rehab where the pipe is gone. On large diameter 
lines a liner can be put inside the pipe and heat it and expand and forms a new pipe inside the 
existing pipe. That works well and is cost effective for the large diameter pipes but the typical 
lines that service the residential homes and alleys in many cases are 6” lines that are small and 
when you try to insert a sleeve you are restricting the size of that pipe. We have found it is more 
cost effective to pipe burst and pull a cable through the existing line and pull a new polyethylene 
pipe and install a new pipe. By doing that you are able to increase it and get more capacity in 
that line. 

• Councilor McConathy asked if we are documenting where our water/wastewater lines are being 
placed for future generations of City employees to follow. 

• John Maresh stated on what is being replaced as we go along. We need to work on mapping 
the existing water and sewer lines to get a general inventory of our system. We are doing that 
as we do replacement work but overall we have not been able to put the time and effort into 
that. 

• Councilor McConathy does not disagree. This needs to be done. She will support this project. 
• Mayor Morales asked Council, based on Joyce Vasut’s comment, we would want to move 

forward with the engineering as soon as possible and want staff to come back with a plan of 
how we would proceed in phases with those costs tied to possible CO’s. 

• Councilor Benton stated the Timber Lane area, Damon, Louise, Georgina and Millie Streets 
were redone. A lot of the north side has been redone. 

• John Maresh stated yes. We have been able to use the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) grant funds for the north side. There are a few areas we cannot use CDBG funding for 
because some areas are in the flood plain and CDBG does not allow us those funds for lines 
that are within the flood plain. We would have to have the City fund that portion of that work. 
CDBG funds have been beneficial. 

 
3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSAL FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR PROVIDING 

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT REPRESENTATION SERVICES FOR 2014, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Session:  This item has been placed on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss the Proposal for Engineering Services for Providing Construction Project 
Representation Services for 2014. The Proposal was initially presented to the Professional 
Services/Engineering Project Review Committee (Committee) on November 21, 2013. The Committee 
took action recommending the Proposal be placed on the next City Council Workshop Agenda to allow 
for further discussion. A copy of the Proposal was included in the agenda packet for review. 
 
City Council has annually approved the Proposal from Jones & Carter, Inc., since its inception in 2009 as 
a means to provide consistent construction project oversight and to control the overall construction 
management costs for Capital Projects. The contracted inspection services have worked out well for the 
City during the past five (5) years and the inspectors have been able to monitor and observe numerous 
construction projects simultaneously. The inspectors are able to communicate with the City’s Project 
Director on a daily basis. Jones & Carter, Inc. has a full-service construction phase department with 
adequate resources to manage multiple project inspections. They also have a sufficient number of 
inspectors that are familiar with the City of Rosenberg construction standards and are able to provide 
coverage when inspectors are unavailable due to vacations, illness or training. The current program also 



PAGE 5 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

provides the greatest amount of flexibility to the City when the number of Capital Projects increases or 
decreases, as the City only pays for the actual hours of inspection time required.  
 
Prior to the City’s engagement of contracted inspection services with Jones & Carter, Inc., the 
engineering firm responsible for a specific project design and construction also provided the inspection 
services which were limited to only that project. With multiple projects underway simultaneously, the City 
was paying for multiple inspectors and this was not cost effective. In some cases, the City hired an 
engineering firm to design a project, but the firm did not offer construction phase/inspection services so 
the City had to hire another firm to provide the required services. In other instances, third party 
inspectors were not familiar with the City of Rosenberg construction standards resulting in construction 
delays, incorrect interpretations of the standards, or the already limited City staff members having to 
expend time and effort to review construction phase work.     
 
Should City Council direct staff to move forward, this Proposal will be placed on a future Agenda for final 
consideration. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager explained the executive summary as stated above.   
• Councilor McConathy asked when the City had previously reviewed the companies that provide 

the services that Jones and Carter currently does for the City. John Maresh answered the 
Professional Services Committee has not reviewed other companies specifically for construction 
work. 

• Councilor McConathy said the City reviews the various engineering firm’s services from time to 
time to see if the City wants to hire or allow other companies to present to the City for the 
possibility of changing out those services.  I know that one of the Council Members leading this 
charge is not here tonight, so I might suggest we review this item again when both Councilors 
Pena and Grigar are present.  According to the notes from the Professional Services 
Committee, it is just a general lengthy discussion, so we don’t know the details of what was 
discussed and what was motivating this to come before Council tonight. 

• Councilor Benton stated he is a member of the Professional Services Committee, and he 
missed the meeting where this was discussed.  Councilor Benton stated he would also like to 
put this item back on the agenda when Councilors Pena and Grigar return. 

• Councilor Bolf also agreed and would like to hear what Councilors Pena and Grigar’s opinions 
are. 

• Councilor Euton asked if the City ever had an in-house City Engineer person to do this job 
rather than outsourcing.  She asked why the City does it this way.  John Maresh answered that 
the number of the projects fluctuate and it doesn’t justify having a lot of inspectors when many 
multiple projects are going on at one time.   

• Councilor Benton asked if someone on the payroll could do other types of inspecting.  John 
Maresh stated this is a different type of inspection.  The issue is when you have multiple 
projects going on Jones and Carter will have two or three inspectors here at the same time.  
During the busy time, they can be multiple places at one time. 

 
4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS ORNAMENTAL STREET LIGHT POLICY, AND TAKE ACTION AS 

NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: Staff has received an inquiry from the developer of Summer Lakes/Waterford 
Park (Fort Bend County MUD No. 144) regarding ornamental street lights.  They would like to install 
ornamental street lights, as opposed to the standard “cobra” lights, in the Summer Park portion of the 
development (the portion of MUD No. 144 south of Reading Road off of August Green Drive).  They 
would also like the City to accept and maintain the street lights as with standards lights. 
 
Currently, per City regulations (Code of Ordinances, Sec. 25-71; and Design Standards, Sec. 2.9), the 
location of street lighting systems are designed by CenterPoint Energy and approved by the City.  The 
developer pays for the cost of installation of the lights plus three (3) years’ maintenance.  The developer 
can install, and the City will accept, standard lights.  If the City were to accept non-standard or 



PAGE 6 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

ornamental lights, it would require more lights to meet the same lighting standards because the 
ornamental lights are typically smaller.  Therefore it would result in greater long-term costs to the City. 
 
For example, in the subdivision for which this item is being discussed (Summer Park Section One), a 
standard street lighting system would require approximately thirty (30) lights.  To utilize ornamental lights 
and still meet the same lighting standards would require approximately thirty-five (35) lights.  If the lights 
cost approximately $15 per light per month to maintain (a rough estimate), the ornamental lighting 
system would cost the City an additional $900 annually if the City accepted the system.  Under the 
current City Ordinance, however, there is the option to (1) use standard lighting or (2) have a private 
system that the Homeowners Association (HOA), not the City, would be responsible for maintaining. 
 
The developer requested that this item be placed on a City Council Agenda to discuss further options 
whereby the HOA would not have to take on the lighting system in order to have upgraded street lights.  
There are not numerous examples of other cities’ policies addressing this particular issue.  Possibly the 
best example from the research staff conducted was the City of Missouri City, which will enter into an 
agreement where the HOA is responsible for additional ongoing costs above and beyond the standard 
number of street lights.  The only risk in this case may be reliance on an HOA for the long term 
maintenance costs. 
 
At this time, staff is requesting direction from City Council as to whether the City should (1) keep the 
current Ordinance as it is, or (2) proceed with an Ordinance Amendment similar to Missouri City’s 
(attached) that would allow the developer to install ornamental lights provided the HOA is responsible for 
the costs associated with the additional lights.  The latter could be done through an Amendment to the 
“Subdivision” Ordinance, and potentially the Design Standards. Should City Council direct staff to move 
forward with one of these options, this item will likely also need to be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission for their recommendation due to involving the “Subdivision” Ordinance and Design 
Standards? 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Travis Tanner, Planning Director gave an overview and presented a Power Point on the item. 
• Options Under Current Ordinance 
1) Install standard lights and City accepts system and costs 
2) Install ornamental lights and HOA accepts costs 
3) Ornamental lights are smaller and require more lights to meet the same lighting standards 
4) Therefore ornamental lights would result in greater costs to the City if accepted by the City  
• Example 
• Install standard lights and City accepts system and costs 
• Install ornamental lights and HOA accepts costs 
• Ornamental lights are smaller and require more lights to meet the same lighting standards 
• Therefore ornamental lights would result in greater costs to the City if accepted by the City  
• Recommendation 
• Ornamental street light policy/ordinance that meets the following criteria: 
• No additional cost to the City 
• Does not discourage upgrading lights 
• Missouri City design standards allow City to accept ornamental lights if HOA pays the cost 

above and beyond standards lights 
• Similar ordinance is recommended 
• Councilor McConathy stated she researched this and cities like Seguin, Carrollton, Fresno, 

Corpus Christi, and Columbia in addition to others that have adopted ordinances such as this. 
Most of them put the expense on the HOA or the developer rather than the city carrying that 
expense. She gave an example of verbiage used.  

• Travis Tanner stated Missouri City is the only one staff could identify that has a hybrid where the 
city picks up the typical cost and the HOA pays for above and beyond. We focused on cities in 
our area. This is for new subdivisions. 

• Councilor McConathy stated we need to consider addressing where it is an existing one that 



PAGE 7 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

wants to upgrade to decorative.  
• Travis Tanner stated this would serve that purpose as well and is something staff can look at 

when we draft an ordinance. 
• Councilor Benton stated he leans toward the HOA absorbing the entire cost because of 

accounting issues.  
• Travis Tanner explained when someone develops a new subdivision in particular they can 

install the standard street lights and the city accepts that system and pays for the maintenance 
cost. That is the current policy. If someone installs decorative street lights it will require more 
lights. If the City wants to take on the entire maintenance cost we would incur more cost. We 
are talking about here is if someone wants to do decorative street lights the City would accept 
the typical cost, the cost of thirty lights, but the HOA would be responsible for  the additional 
cost. We don’t want to incur more cost but we also don’t want to discourage someone from 
developing an upgraded product. We would require the HOA to pick up any additional cost. It 
would be done through separate accounts with CenterPoint. 

• Councilor Benton asked if each light is metered. Travis Tanner said no but a separate account 
can be setup with CenterPoint that the HOA can pay for part and the City can pay for part. 

• Councilor Benton stated when a new development comes in does the City or the developer pay 
for the light fixtures. Travis Tanner stated that CenterPoint designs a lighting system and the 
City nor the developer pays for the cost of the standard street lights. It is the on-going cost that 
the City accepts. If it is a decorative light the developer has to pay for that. 

• Councilor Benton asked who pays the light bill. Travis Tanner stated the City pays for that for 
the standard lights. 

• Joyce Vasut stated under the current ordinance the developer pays the first three years of the 
light bill upfront. The first three years they cover 100% of the cost. We collect that in advance 
and they pay us. CenterPoint will not install the fixtures until they have our approval that we 
have been paid for the first three years of operation of those lights. When the lights are installed 
they are setup in an account in the City of Rosenberg’s name and we pay the bills but we have 
already been paid in advance for the first three years. After that, the City continues to pay that 
bill. Light bills are difficult to read but it is based on the number of certain types of lights with 
certain lumens. We pay for lights all around the City. 

• Mayor Morales stated Center Point had a program for security lighting at one time with a fixed 
cost but they eliminated that program. 

• Councilor Bolf stated she does not oppose to it as long as the HOA pays the difference in cost. 
• Councilor Euton stated she has no objection to it if they pay the difference in cost. 
• Mayor Morales stated based on what has been explained, it is to our advantage for them to 

upgrade and enhance their development. It helps the future of the City. At this point he would 
encourage staff to put the ordinance together based on those criteria. 

• No action was taken on the item. 
 

5. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE “SOLICITATION” ORDINANCE, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: A request was made to review the City’s current ordinances to address the 
practice of panhandling.  Staff has reviewed the “Solicitation” Ordinance and applicable law and has 
developed several proposed changes to the existing Ordinance.   
 
This Agenda item will provide an opportunity for City Council to discuss the Ordinance regulating 
itinerant vendors, solicitors and peddlers and make recommendations to staff. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Dallis Warren, Interim Police Chief gave an overview of the proposed changes to the current 
City ordinance, Chapter 16, Article IV – Itinerant Vendors, Solicitors and Peddlers. 

• We currently have no ordinance provisions for panhandling.  Panhandling is a practice of 
approaching anyone in a public area and asking for money.  This is a federally protected right.  
It is considered a freedom of speech issue whenever you regulate approaching people in a 
public area.  The courts have ruled in can be regulated in three (3) different ways:  1) by 



PAGE 8 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

behavior-regulate aggressive panhandling; 2) prohibited in specific locations, such as banks; 3) 
regulation by geographic area.  The courts have a significant hurdle to regulate by geographic 
area.  They define it as a narrowly defined area, with a strong record of major passive 
panhandling and there has to be a strong record that the passive panhandling is to be prohibited 
in an area that has special significance.  Given this guidance from the courts, we are addressing 
the first two areas of regulation. 

• Dallis Warren reviewed the expanded definition of solicitation; aggressive solicitation; 
automated teller facility, bank; bus; and check cashing business.  

• A “red-lined” copy of the proposed revisions to the ordinance was provided to Council for their 
review. 

• The proposed amended ordinance also makes it an offense up to $500 to panhandle under 
these terms. 

• Councilor Euton asked if there have been any complaints or major impact concerning 
panhandlers.  Dallis Warren answered they get some complaints and had one this past 
weekend from one of the restaurants in Brazos Town Center.  Since we don’t have an 
ordinance to regulate them, it is very difficult to tract the exact number, but they get about 8-10 
complaints per month on solicitation.  He is not sure how many of those are dealing with 
panhandling and how many are dealing with the existing ordinance.  He would have to go 
through every single call to determine if it pertains to panhandling.  He knows there are some 
panhandling calls from time to time. 

• Councilor Euton said she liked the revised ordinance and that we are not invading anyone’s 
personal rights and yet protecting the public from the aggressive panhandlers. 

• Councilor Benton said his main concern was the right of way and at the shopping centers and 
this revised ordinance will help.  He has had some complaints about panhandling in Rosenberg.  

• Dallis Warren reiterated that this is only from “aggressive” panhandling—not against someone 
asking for money. 

• Councilor McConathy asked if this will add more boundaries to the permitted solicitors, even 
when they get aggressive.  Dallis Warren answered it will, once you have told someone “no”, 
block their passage, or touch them, it becomes a violation of our ordinance. 

• Councilor McConathy congratulated Dallis Warren on this revised ordinance and hoped the 
permitting department would ensure anyone coming in for a solicitor’s permit would have the 
new rules so they can abide by them. 

• Councilor Benton said his concern was those who didn’t seek permits and he hopes this helps 
everyone. 

• Dallis Warren said it gives the officers the tool they need to address those issues they don’t 
have at this time. 

• Councilor McConathy asked for a review of this ordinance to see if it’s effective, in about six (6) 
months to a year from now.  Dallis Warren stated they will be able to track how many complaints 
and calls they have because once the ordinance is passed it will be listed as a violation in their 
system and can be tracked. 

• Councilor Bolf asked if this could be given to all the restaurant owners so they would have the 
guidelines.  Dallis Warren said they would distribute through various business organizations. 

• Dallis Warren said this ordinance will be brought back to a regular meeting for final approval. 
 

6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS POTENTIAL APPOINTMENT OF A CHARTER REVIEW COMMITTEE, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item has been included to allow City Council the opportunity to 
discuss the potential appointment of a Charter Review Committee. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton stated he wanted to see what Council’s views are on a Charter Review 
Committee. 

• Mayor Morales asked if there are some particular items we would be addressing. 
• Councilor Benton stated term limits is one and other things. This is a foundation for the future. 
• Mayor Morales stated that Council can have a charter amendment election every two years, per 



PAGE 9 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

state law. 
• Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney stated you can review it any time. The City Council can be the 

committee. 
• Mayor Morales stated a Charter Review Committee was formed when the citizen’s voted on 

staggered terms. 
• Lora Lenzsch stated we have had prior charter amendments.  
• Councilor McConathy stated it has been a long time since we have had a citizen based 

committee review the whole charter. This could be two fold since some of us want to see term 
limits come up in the short term, since we have a 2015 deadline. Perhaps term limits could be 
on that. A long range plan is to formulate a committee to review the entire charter over the next 
two years in preparation for the next charter amendment change in 2017. 

• Councilor Bolf stated she would suggest a committee with a mixture of citizens and Council or 
City employees. 

• Councilor Euton would favor a mixed committee. We need to put the term limits on the 2015 
ballot and anything else if it is ready. 

• Councilor McConathy stated we would have to budget for staff and other expenses that would 
be incurred for this committee to meet.  

• Mayor Morales stated staff could help Council budget for that the future. 
• Robert Gracia stated we are preparing for the next budget workshop and we start in March. He 

recommended during those discussions we would bring back a plan of action to be able to move 
forward. 

• No action was taken on the item. 
 

7. REVIEW AND DISCUSS POTENTIAL APPOINTMENT OF A BOND ELECTION COMMITTEE, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item has been included to allow City Council an opportunity to 
discuss the potential appointment of a Bond Election Committee. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton stated the Bond Election Committee is the same thing. He knew Robert 
Gracia had some evaluation to identify our needs. It was the same concern to lay a foundation 
for the possible activation of a committee regardless of the makeup of it. 

• Robert Gracia referenced his August 30th memorandum to Council regarding the Bond Election 
we suggested and Council agreed to delay the Bond Referendum proposed for the November 
2013 to give us an opportunity to reevaluate and refine the procedure for developing future bond 
proposals. You have to understand the management team went through a training session and 
in order for us to be successful in preparing and identifying what those needs are; we need 
about a year to do an adequate job and complete the process. The different phases were 
outlined in the memorandum but it takes a year if we are going to be successful in passing 
whatever bonds we recommend. Once the committee is established and we identify what those 
needs are then we start the process. It is a year process. We will not be able to put it together in 
three or six months. 

• Councilor Benton asked when would the committee start meeting. 
• Robert Gracia stated staff will provide Council our findings during the budget workshop. We will 

identify and layout the good, bad and the ugly. The team has been working diligently in 
identifying all the deficiencies we have within the City.  We are looking at infrastructure, 
technology equipment, and facilities. Those findings will be presented during that process and 
you will have the opportunity to have discussions and then prioritize accordingly. Then you 
would direct staff to move forward. We start the process in March.  

• Joyce Vasut stated the last meeting in July is when Council gets the proposed budget. Staff will 
present Council some strategic planning and needs in March. We will start putting together the 
numbers on those capital items. The process will be different than it has been. You will start 
seeing the needs and projects in March. Our plan is to give Council a general overview of the 
departments and their needs in March. Dollars amounts will probably be available around June 
or sooner. 



PAGE 10 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

• Robert Gracia stated staff is coming up with a master plan. Each department will provide and 
present their five year plan. 

• Councilor McConathy stated for clarification that Council will get an opportunity to look at a list 
of needs and then Council will have the opportunity to determine if we will borrow money for 
those needs or put on a bond election list. Perhaps once we settle that list we can select a 
committee and a year from that point meetings and public information would occur in that year. 
Joyce Vasut stated that is correct. 

• In this analysis there was more staff input this time as opposed to when the previous City 
Manager presented and it is not as restricted this time which is better. 

• Mayor Morales stated he hears a process totally different than what he has been used the last 
three years. This Council will have some interaction with the budget early on. 

• Councilor Bolf this is a new slate and we can get a full picture of what our needs are. That is 
what needs to be put on a bond election if we do have one. 

• Councilor Pena stated he thinks from what he has seen this group a good job. They have 
identified a lot of problems we need to take care of. Since we are dealing with growth and we 
want to receive the growth accordingly and we can’t do it with antiquated systems. Robert 
Gracia and City staff is doing a good job. We will grow and we have to be ready for that and be 
successful on how we spend the monies to be ready for that growth. 

• Mayor Morales stated based on the information received we will be looking at the needs and 
budget items that will be important for a possible bond election. 

• No action was taken on the item.  
 

8. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED SETBACKS FOR TRASH AND RECYCLE CARTS, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This Agenda item has been included to allow City Council the opportunity to 
discuss potential setback requirements for trash and recycle carts. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton stated he has had a lot of complaints about people not putting their trash cans 
up. He would like people to get them out of the street 

• Councilor Bolf stated in her subdivision, Town Center, they have a policy that the trash cannot 
be put out before 6 pm on Tuesday and has to be picked up by 6 pm on Wednesday. The Oaks 
of Rosenberg had some comments on Face book. A citizen walked on Sunday and their trash 
cans were still out in front of their house.  

• Councilor Benton asked Council if they have any interest in looking at something similar. 
• Councilor Pena stated his neighborhood is mostly elderly people and the problem with in his 

neighborhood with Republic Waste is that they tend to break the wheels off the carts. These 
people can’t drag the cans down the driveway. He gets lots of calls from elderly citizens to help 
them move trash cans. Councilor Bolf’s situation is different. Her subdivision has a 
Homeowner’s Association (HOA). How could we enforce something like that?  We want to give 
the image of being a clean city. It might be something to look at as well as people parking cars 
in their yards.  

• Mayor Morales stated when we started the cart program it was an issue but we decided we 
needed to give people time. We looked at Missouri City and they have something similar to what 
Councilor Bolf’s HOA has. We need to get the information regarding the cart assistance 
program to the public.  

• Jeff Trinker, Assistant to the City Manager stated there is a cart assistance program.  They need 
to contact Karen Zwahr, Citizen Relations. He has personally found that not enough people who 
are qualified for the program sign up and take advantage of this program.  

• Mayor Morales stated he has personally helped two seniors get on the program. We need to 
make sure people are aware of that. Republic Waste is responsible to get the trash can and put 
it back when emptied.  

• Jeff Trinker stated Republic Waste is responsible for the cart repair and replacements. Karen 
Zwahr has a running list each week of new carts and carts that need to be replaced. We track 
those with Republic to make sure this is being done.  



PAGE 11 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

• One issue is what time can the cart be out at the street or curb. Sugar Land has an ordinance 
when it can only go out 6 p.m. the night before and has to be picked up by 7 to 8 p.m. the day of 
service. The other issue is the requirements for the cart when it is not service day. That is 
usually handled by the homeowner’s association (HOA). The reason for that is that generally the 
houses in the HOA are similar enough where they can make certain screening requirements. 
One issue he sees with Rosenberg is that there is such a diversity of residences it might be 
difficult to put their cart out of sight in parts of the city.  

• Councilor Benton clarified the item states setbacks for trash carts. He is just suggesting that we 
get them out of the street and put them closer to the house. 

• Mayor Morales suggested starting with a program and criteria for the day before pickup and a 
time the cans have to be picked up on the day of service.  Let the HOA’s address the screening 
for their area.  

• Jeff Trinker stated his recommendation would be to address the time they can be at the street or 
curb and a time for pickup. 

• Mayor Morales asked Jeff Trinker to prepare something and bring it back to Council for review. 
• Councilor Bolf suggested putting a reminder in the monthly newsletter. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
9. REVIEW AND DISCUSS VEHICLE WEIGHT LIMITS FOR SPECIFIC STREETS, AND TAKE ACTION 

AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item has been included to allow City Council the opportunity to 
discuss vehicle weight limits on specific streets. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton stated the purpose of the item was to find out what Council thought and if this 
is an issue moving forward. He sees some concern and we could possibly give relief to some 
areas.  

• Councilor McConathy asked if his purpose and intent is out of concern for our streets and 
maintenance of our streets. 

• Councilor Benton stated yes that is the biggest money concern as well as safety concerns. We 
have some very large trucks on some streets and maybe we should put some weight limitations 
on some streets. 

• Mayor Morales asked how you would determine, for example a Republic Waste truck. 
• Lora Lenzsch stated currently you have in your ordinances a gross weight limit weight sign 

authorized. It says “the city engineer on the basis of an engineer or traffic investigation shall 
recommend to the City Council appropriate traffic control devices to impose vehicle weight limits 
on any street or part of any street.” There is also a provision that “a person moving or causing to 
move a truck or vehicle which exceeds that limit shall be liable to the City for any damage”. It 
would be difficult evaluate whether that particular vehicle caused damage but sometimes it 
could happen. You have that provision. You also have a provision in this ordinance that says 
“prohibiting trucks on designated roadways”. Then there is a specific definition and they are 
using the definition from the Transportation Code what characterizes a truck. There was 
question several months ago regarding buses and they did not fit the definition for the trucks. 
You have this ordinance that you could expand to address a specific concern. 

• Mayor Morales asked Councilor Benton if he would like to look at the existing ordinance and see 
if there is something he would Council to review.  

• Councilor Pena stated he thinks TxDOT and most agencies look at a tandem axle that is 
carrying a heavy load. We are getting ready to redo Old Richmond Road in asphalt. That road is 
notorious for being broken up and destroyed because of vehicle weight. How do we set 
perimeters on that? There is a huge grain truck that parks in a lot off of Old Richmond Road. 
People live in neighborhoods that do this for a living and park their trucks. Will weight perimeters 
that might or might not be set affect Republic Waste? 

• Councilor McConathy stated some cities put in their ordinance those that have the weight limits. 
They exclude waste management trucks and certain class of vehicles. If we entertain this she 
would caution Council because there are homeowners who are in the business of driving these 



PAGE 12 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014 
***DRAFT*** 

trucks and it is quite an expense for them to store that truck off premises not to mention the 
security issue of theft. She advised Council to proceed with caution in that respect.  

• Councilor Bolf stated when TxDOT was here we suggested putting a sign on US 59 to use Spur 
10. That would help a lot of cut through traffic. We asked TxDOT to look into that and she has 
not heard back from them. That needs to be done. 

• Councilor Benton agreed that would help but in the inner neighborhoods they are everywhere. 
• Councilor Euton stated that if we want to address there might be specific neighborhoods where 

we are having a lot of breakdowns. We need to use a lot of caution because of the people who 
have trucks they are parking at their home because of the cost and safety issue of parking it 
elsewhere. 

• Mayor Morales asked legal counsel if we could identify areas and have sign postings that show 
weight limits in particular areas. That also gives our officers something to identify and enforce. If 
there are certain areas, such as Old Richmond Road identified as a problem then sign postings 
could be done and then you are not changing the ordinance we have but you let people know 
areas that are off limits.  

• Robert Gracia asked how we identify the areas of town. We have an existing ordinance where 
we have identified weight limits. Who determines and do we look at all streets? 

• Lora Lenzsch stated the city engineer would know the weight restrictions for a particular road. 
• Councilor Benton stated Old Richmond Road is one and Jones Street and Sally Anne street.  
• Councilor Euton suggested maybe roads that have been redone the last two years and the ones 

on the list to be done. 
• Councilor McConathy stated then it becomes a problem with the class of permitted truck usage 

as in a moving truck. That is a weight class that would exceed anything we come up with. 
• Mayor Morales suggested professional guidance is needed for this. 
• Robert Gracia asked Council to allow staff time to research and review and come back to 

Council with a recommendation. 
• No action was taken on the item. 

 
10. CONSIDER MOTION TO ADJOURN FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

Action:  Councilor Euton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to adjourn for Executive 
Session.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

11. HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO RECEIVE LEGAL ADVICE ON LEGAL MATTERS PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 551.071 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; AND, TO DELIBERATE THE POTENTIAL 
PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO SECTION 
551.072 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE; AND, FOR DELIBERATIONS REGARDING 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT NEGOTIATIONS AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 551.087 OF THE 
TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  
An Executive Session was held to receive legal advice on legal matters pursuant to Section 551.071 of 
the Texas Government Code; and, to deliberate the potential purchase, exchange, lease, or value of 
real property pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code; and, for deliberations 
regarding economic development negotiations as authorized by Section 551.087 of the Texas 
Government Code.  
 

12. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO WORKSHOP SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION 
AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 8:45 p.m. No 
action was taken as a result of Executive Session. 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 

 
      _______________________________________ 
      Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B Resolution No. R-1750 - Agreement for Professional On-Line Auction 
Services 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1750, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Property Disposition Service Agreement for professional auction 
services, by and between the City and PropertyRoom.com. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds: 

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1750 
2. Resolution No. R-1460 – 03-06-12 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 03-06-12 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by: 

 
Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 

Tracie Dunn 
Tracie Dunn 
Police Lieutenant 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney LL/lc 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City Secretary and the Police Department are requesting approval to enter into an Agreement with 
PropertyRoom.com to hold a City-wide auction to retire surplus equipment, confiscated items, and other 
salvaged property.  The auction will be on-line and the PropertyRoom.com will be the on-line auction service. 
 
The City has utilized PropertyRoom.com for auction services for the past year and, overall, has been satisfied 
with the service provided. 
 
The City Secretary recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1750, authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
Agreement for on-line auction services with PropertyRoom.com for a one-year term. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1750 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A PROPERTY DISPOSITION SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR 
PROFESSIONAL AUCTION SERVICES, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND PROPERTYROOM.COM. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a Property 

Disposition Service Agreement (Agreement) with PropertyRoom.Com to auction City 

surplus property.  A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 





































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C Resolution No. R-1748 - Video Streaming Agreement  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1748, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Agreement for Video Streaming Services, by and between the 
City and Swagit Productions, LLC, for video recording and streaming  of City Council meetings, in the base 
amount of $6,719 for capital equipment purchase of Streaming Video Hardware, $24,453 for capital 
equipment purchase of Cosmos Broadcast System, and $1,135 a month for an initial term of one year for 
Streaming Video Monthly Managed Services. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:  
228-1950-540-7040  
101-1950-540-5710 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Resolution No. R-1748 
2. Sole Source Provider Letter – Swagit Productions, LLC – 03-12-13 
3. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 01-21-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Angela Fritz 
Communications Director 
 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Resolution No. R-1748 is presented for City Council‘s consideration to authorize the City Manager to 
execute an Agreement for Video Streaming Services with Swagit Productions, LLC, to provide video 
recording and streaming of City Council Meetings as reviewed by City Council at the January 21, 2014 City 
Council Meeting.   
 
The Agreement, as detailed in Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1748, includes: $6,719 for video recording 
and streaming equipment and $24,453 for installation of the Cosmos Broadcast System which will be 
funded via the Public, Education, Government Capital Fund (PEG Fund), and $1,135 a month ($13,620 per 
year) for on-demand, live video streaming and remote-switching to be funded through the General Fund.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1748 authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
Agreement for Video Streaming Services with Swagit Productions, LLC.   
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1748 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN AGREEMENT FOR VIDEO STREAMING SERVICES, BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND SWAGIT 
PRODUCTIONS, LLC, FOR VIDEO RECORDING AND STREAMING OF 
CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS, IN THE BASE AMOUNT OF $6,719 FOR 
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE OF STREAMING VIDEO 
HARDWARE, $24,453 FOR CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASE OF 
COSMOS BROADCAST SYSTEM, AND $1,135 A MONTH FOR AN 
INITIAL TERM OF ONE YEAR FOR STREAMING VIDEO MONTHLY 
MANAGED SERVICES.  
  

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute an Agreement for Video Streaming Services (Agreement), by 

and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Swagit Productions, LLC, for video 

recording and streaming of City Council meetings, in the base amount of $6,719 for 

capital equipment purchase of Streaming Video Hardware, $24,453 for capital 

equipment purchase of Cosmos Broadcast System, and $1,135 a month for an initial 

term of one year for Streaming Video Monthly Managed Services. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1748









































 
 
March 12, 2013 
 
 
Angela Fritz 
Communications Director 
City of Rosenberg, TX 
 
 
This letter is to provide notification that Swagit Productions, LLC, a Texas Limited 
Liability Company, with offices at 850 Central Parkway East., Ste. 100, Plano, Texas 
75075, is the sole source provider of Swagit’s Extensible Automated Streaming Engine 
(EASE) software framework.  The EASE application is manufactured, leased and 
distributed by Swagit alone. No other company offers a competing service and all in one 
solution that combines an automated editing and indexing tool (EASE) in combination 
with a “hands-free” broadcast system, agenda integration, and the ability to stream video 
live or on-demand via the Internet.  What sets Swagit’s solution apart from other vendors 
is the ability of Swagit’s system to require no city staff involvement for the operation, 
service and running of any equipment from Broadcast to Streaming, offering a true 
“hands-free” solution. 

     



 
             

 
 

 
 
If you desire additional information on any products or services, don’t hesitate to contact 
my or any member of our sales staff for a consultation. 
 
Regards, 
 
 
Michael Osuna 
Swagit Productions, LLC 
michael@swagit.com 
(214) 432-5905 
www.swagit.com 



 
PAGE 6 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 21, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 

7. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR VIDEO STREAMING SERVICES, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary: Video recording and streaming of City Council meetings was funded in the FY2014 
Budget.  In addition to adding recording equipment in the City Council Chamber, project implementation 
will require several additional improvements including:  upgrading existing municipal channel design and 
broadcast equipment (ongoing); executing an Agreement for the installation of recording, production, and 
dissemination of meeting videos (Agreement attached for discussion here); and, possible additional 
improvements to Council Chamber technology to better facilitate communications for the public, City 
Council, and staff.   
 
Project implementation will require an up-front investment in equipment (both for recording/streaming, and 
for municipal channel station management) which will be funded via the Public, Education, Government 
(PEG) Capital Fund; as well as ongoing fees for production and streaming services (funded through the 
General Fund).  An Agreement was attached in the agenda documentation for City Council’s review and 
comment and is for the video recording/streaming portion of the project.  The Agreement includes:  
$24,453 for video recording equipment and installation; $6,719 for streaming equipment; and a recurring 
$1,135/month ($13,620/year) for on-demand, live video streaming, and remote-switching (off-site 
production, indexing, etc.).   
 
The Agreement will be finalized and brought back for final consideration at a future meeting.  Once the 
Agreement is finalized, staff will work with Swagit Productions, LLC, to develop a more detailed 
implementation schedule in conjunction with the other items that must be completed for implementation. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Angela Fritz, Communications Director explained the executive summary as stated above. The 
Public, Education, Government (PEG) Capital Funds will be used to pay for the video streaming.  
The PEG Funds can only be used for certain projects which benefit the municipal channel.  The 
recurring monthly charge will be paid out of the Communications General Fund as a professional 
services fee. 

• Angela Fritz summarized the changes needed to the Council Chamber in order to implement the 
video streaming. 

• Angela Fritz has been working with Swagit Productions, LLC, to produce a more accurate timeline 
on this work.  Angela Fritz showed several examples of other cities/clients’ video streaming to 
explain how the video streaming will operate.  The streaming will be live on the website, as well as 
on the Comcast television channel.  This is a good communication tool for those who cannot make 
a meeting or have questions about a particular agenda item.  The users have the choice to view 
only the item or item(s) they are interested in.  Usually, thirty-six (36) months are archived on the 
website. 

• Councilor McConathy stated she is excited about this. 
• Councilor Benton said this was not on the top of his list.  He would like to see people show up at 

the meetings. 
• Councilor Bolf asked if the people out of Plano were chosen by the City.  Angela Fritz answered 

she has been researching this for several years and this firm is very cost effective, versus buying 
equipment and hiring personnel to run and upkeep the system.  Councilor Bolf felt this is a good 
thing for the elderly. 

• Councilor Grigar stated he thinks it is much needed.  Councilor Grigar asked for an explanation of 
the PEG Funds.  Angela Fritz stated when the state passed a state franchise fee for the cable 
companies, the City of Rosenberg opted into the state franchise.  This imposes a 1% PEG fee to 
the customers and the Federal Communications Company regulates the expenditures for the PEG 
Funds, which can only be used to pay for projects which benefit the cable channels or similar 
projects.  Angela Fritz explained the branding of the cable channel and website and some of the 
changes she plans to implement. 

• Councilor Euton and Mayor Morales also thanked Angela Fritz for her implementation of the 
project. 

• No action is required at this time.  Council’s consensus was to move forward with this project. 
 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

D Ordinance No. 2014-09 - Authorizing MUD No. 159 Bond Sale, Series 2014 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-09, an Ordinance granting consent to the Fort Bend 
County Municipal Utility District No. 159 for the sale and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2014, in 
an amount not to exceed $2,700,000. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: 159 (Oaks of Rosenberg) 
1. Ordinance No. 2014-09 
2. Location Map 
3. TCEQ Approval – 11-25-13 
4. Water Supply and Wastewater Service Agreement Excerpt – 05-17-05 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Charles Kalkomey, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[X] City Attorney LL/ks     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 159 (MUD No. 159) is located southeast of US 59 with one (1) tract 
bounded by Spacek Road to the east and US 59 to the north.  The other tract is bounded by Bryan Road to the south 
and Spacek Road to the east.  The entire District lies within the corporate boundaries of the City of Rosenberg.  The 
development is identified as Oaks of Rosenberg subdivision.   
 
The City consented to the creation of MUD No. 159 on May 17, 2005, through Ordinance No. 2005-10.  Water Supply 
and Wastewater Services and Development Agreements between the City, Perry Homes, and US59/Reading 108 GP, 
Ltd., were executed on May 17, 2005.   MUD No. 159 contains approximately 148 acres. 
 
This will be the second bond sale for MUD No. 159. The first bond sale was approved under Ordinance No. 2011-23 
on September 20, 2011. 
 
Much of the submission documentation provided by MUD No. 159 for this proposed sale, such as the TCEQ 
application, the Bond Order authorizing the Issuance of Bonds by MUD No. 159, the Preliminary Official 
Statement/Notice of Sale, Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Bonds by MUD No. 159, Cash Flow Analysis, Debt 
Fund Schedule, Summary of Costs, along with additional minute excerpts and related Ordinances are available for 
review in the City Secretary’s Office. 
 
Staff has reviewed the documentation and found it to be in compliance with applicable City ordinances.  Staff is 
recommending approval of Ordinance No. 2014-09, thus consenting to the sale of the Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 
2014, in an amount not to exceed $2,700,000.
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-09 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, GRANTING CONSENT TO THE FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 159 FOR THE SALE 
AND ISSUANCE OF UNLIMITED TAX BONDS, SERIES 2014, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,700,000.   

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”) consented to the creation 

of the Fort Bend County Municipal District No. 159 (the “District”) by Ordinance No. 

2005-10, adopted on May 17, 2005 (the “Consent Ordinance”); and, 

 WHEREAS, the District was created in accordance with the provisions of 

Article V of Chapter 29 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”); and, 

 WHEREAS, the District is within the corporate limits of the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the District has requested the City’s consent to the District’s sale 

and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2014, in an amount not to exceed 

$2,700,000.; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has reviewed the District’s request for 

the sale and issuance of such Bonds and the documentation and certifications 

submitted in support thereof; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the sale and issuance of such 

Bonds by the District is in accordance with the Consent Ordinance, adopted on May 17, 

2005, the Water Supply and Wastewater Services Contract and Development 

Agreement entered into by and between the City and the District on May 17, 2005, 

including all amendments and addendums thereto, and the terms and conditions set 

forth in Chapter 29 of the Code; now, therefore, 



 2 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance 

are hereby found to be true and correct. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the sale and issuance of 

Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2014, in an amount not to exceed $2,700,000, by the Fort 

Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 159.  Such approval is subject to the 

certifications, representations, and conditions set forth in the District’s request for 

approval of the sale and issuance of such Bonds, and the terms and provisions of the 

Consent Ordinance, adopted on May 17, 2005,  and the Water Supply and Wastewater 

Services Contract and Development Agreement entered into by and between the City 

and District on May 17, 2005, including all amendments and addendums thereto, and 

the applicable provisions set forth in Chapter 29 of the Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

__________________ 2014. 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 
 

























reneel
Text Box
MUD No. 159Water Supply and Wastewater Services Agreement Excerpt - 05-17-05



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

E Resolution No. R-1757 - Hay Production Lease Extension 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1757, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Lease Extension on City-owned property for hay production, by 
and between the City and P. F. Vacek, Jr., for a two-year term.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1757 
2. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 01-28-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 
 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney LJL/rlm    
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Parks and Recreation Director 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As discussed at the January 28, 2014 City Council Workshop, the Lease of Real Property for Hay 
Production (Lease) includes approximately 209 acres of open acreage. The annual Lease payment 
generates a positive cash flow of $3,858.60. Based on the current right-of-way mowing contract rate for 
open acreage ($17.50/acre X 6 mowing cycles), it would cost the City approximately $21,945.00 per year 
to keep the property mowed if it were not leased for hay production. The initial two-year Lease will expire 
on April 01, 2014. The Lease does provide the City with the option to extend for two (2) additional one-
year terms. The present “Lessee” is Pete F. Vacek, Jr., and he has abided by the terms of the Lease and 
staff has not encountered any issues or problems during the past two (2) years.      
 
Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. R-1757, which provides for a two-year Lease Extension 
for Pete F. Vacek, Jr., until April 01, 2016, in the amount of $3,858.60 per year.  A copy of said Lease 
Extension is attached to Resolution No. R-1757 as Exhibit “A”. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1757 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, A LEASE EXTENSION ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY FOR 
HAY PRODUCTION, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AND P. F. VACEK, JR., FOR A TWO-YEAR TERM. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute a Lease Extension, by and between the City of Rosenberg, 

Texas, and P. F. Vacek, Jr., for the lease of City-owned property for hay production for 

a term of two (2) years. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Lease Extension is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1757



Exhibit "A" (Page 1 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 2 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 3 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 4 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 5 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 6 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 7 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 8 of 9)



Exhibit "A" (Page 9 of 9)



PAGE 1 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014
***DRAFT***

CITY OF ROSENBERG
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

***DRAFT***

On this the 28th day of January, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Special Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas.

PRESENT
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor
William Benton Councilor at Large, Position 1
Cynthia McConathy Councilor at Large, Position 2
Jimmie J. Pena Councilor, District 1 (arrived at meeting at 7:18 p.m.)
Susan Euton Councilor, District 2
Amanda Bolf Councilor, District 4

ABSENT
Dwayne Grigar Councilor, District 3

STAFF PRESENT
Robert Gracia City Manager
Linda Cernosek City Secretary
John Maresh Assistant City Manager
Jeff Trinker Assistant to the City Manager
Lora Lenzsch City Attorney
Charles Kalkomey City Engineer
Joyce Vasut Finance Director
Rachelle Kanak Interim Economic Development Director
Dallis Warren Interim Police Chief
Wade Goates Fire Chief
Travis Tanner Planning Director
John Johnson Police Officer
Angela Fritz Communications Director
Karl Zwahr Public Works Director
Tommy Havelka Police Officer
Kaye Supak Executive Assistant

CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

AGENDA

1. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE LEASE OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY FOR HAY PRODUCTION, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.
Executive Summary: This item has been placed on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss extending the Lease of Real Property for Hay Production (Lease). A copy of the 
current Lease Agreement, which includes maps identifying the locations of the properties, is included in 
the packet. The Lease includes approximately 209 acres of open acreage. The annual Lease payment 
generates a positive cash flow of $3,858.60. Based on the current right-of-way mowing contract rate for 
open acreage ($17.50/acre X 6 mowing cycles), it would cost the City approximately $21,945.00 per 
year to keep the property mowed if it were not leased for hay production. The initial two-year Lease will 
expire on April 01, 2014. The Lease does provide the City with the option to extend for two (2) additional 
one-year terms. The present “Lessee” is Pete F. Vacek, Jr., and he has abided by the terms of the 
Lease and staff has not encountered any issues or problems during the past two (2) years.     

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 2 of 12 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 28, 2014
***DRAFT***

Staff is recommending City Council approve both of the additional one-year terms at this time, thereby 
extending the current Lease with Pete F. Vacek, Jr., until April 01, 2016, in the amount of $3,858.60 per 
year.

Key discussion points:
� John Maresh, Assistant City Manager read the Executive Summary regarding the item.
� Councilor Benton asked if Council could get a list of City owned property. 
� Robert Gracia, City Manager stated staff is in the process of doing an inventory of all City 

owned property.
� Councilor McConathy stated her only concern is that the City maintains the appropriate buffer 

especially around the business.
� No action was taken on the item.

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM, LIFT STATION AND 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT REHABILITATION PROJECT, AND COST ESTIMATES FOR 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 1-A SERVICE AREA, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY 
TO DIRECT STAFF.
Executive Summary: This item has been placed on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to discuss the overall condition of the sanitary sewer collection system within the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant No. 1-A service area and providing funding for the required improvements to protect the 
health, safety and welfare of our citizens. While efforts have been made over the past five (5) year 
period to replace as many of the sewer lines as possible, the overall system remains in poor condition. In 
many instances, the sewer collection lines have deteriorated to the point the pipe is non-existent 
resulting in street cave-ins and complete line stoppages that often necessitate emergency repairs.  

Staff has prepared and included in the packet, cost estimates for the for the following projects:
1. Collection system line replacement within Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1-A service area
2. Lift Station rehabilitation/replacements
3. Conversion of Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 1A effluent disinfection from chlorine gas to 

liquid bleach      

In order to protect the health, safety and welfare of the public and the environment, the above listed 
projects will need to be considered for funding and construction at the earliest time possible.

Key discussion points:
� John Maresh read the Executive Summary regarding the item. Slides were shown pointing out 

the overall condition of the sanitary sewer collection system:
� Root intrusions in pipe
� Pipe completely deteriorated causing cave-ins.
� Cracks in joints and pipe separation 
� Grease accumulation
� Cable and missing pipe in main line
� Mayor Morales asked if there are any recommendations prior to going to budget.
� John Maresh stated the system is in need of rehabilitation. The cost estimate we put together 

with the help of the City Engineer is $12.5 million for the collection line work. The lift station in 
the worst condition is in the Wastewater Plant 2 service area, lift station #11 on B.F. Terry by 
Fort Bend Appraisal District office. We are keeping that lift station operating with a band aid right 
now. The approximate cost for that is $1.1 million. The lift station in Service Area 1 at Fiesta. 
The Fiesta lift station is a very large lift station and is in bad shape and is approximately $2.1 
million project. Lift Station #4 is located at 1818 Jones Street is approximately $700,000.

� From a safety aspect, Wastewater Plant 1A still operates using chlorine gas for disinfection and 
to convert that to bleach is approximately $266,000 for the conversion.

� Mayor Morales asked if there is a recommendation from staff for Council.
� John Maresh stated it all needs attention. The budget aspect is Council’s call. Staff can look at 

some options whether through CO’s. We have to remember it is a health/safety issue and we 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

F Quarterly Review of the City’s Financial Report and Investment Report 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Quarterly Financial Report and Quarterly Investment Report for quarter 
ending December 31, 2013. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

  MUD #:  N/A 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Vasut Memorandum – 02-06-13 
2. Quarterly Investment Report 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Overall, the financial status of the City is stable.  Most funds have positive variances when compared to budget 
and prior year actuals.  The largest revenues of sales tax and property tax are positive when compared to budget 
and expenses which are within the 25% benchmark for the first quarter of FY2014.  

Staff will continue to monitor the revenues and expenses.  At this time, no major changes need to be made to 
meet budget projections.  Additionally, the Quarterly Investment Report is included for your review as required by 
the Public Funds Investment Act. 
 
Staff recommends the acceptance of the Quarterly Financial Reports and the Investment Report for the 
first quarter of Fiscal Year 2014. 
 



 

I   N   T   E   R 
 

MEMO 
 

 

 

 

 

O  F  F  I  C  E 

 

To: Robert Gracia, City Manager  

From: Joyce Vasut, Finance Director  

Subject: Quarterly Financial Statements as of December 31, 2013 

Date: February 6, 2014 

 

The Finance Department has reviewed revenues and expenditures through December 31, 2013.  
The totals for the first three months of the fiscal year have been compared against the FY2014 
operating budget and the FY2013 actual amounts as of the same time last year for all significant 
funds. 
 
Overall, the financial status of the City is in a stable position at this time, with most funds 
showing positive variances when compared to budget and prior year actual.  The largest 
revenue of sales tax is positive when compared to budget and the majority of expenses are 
within the 25% benchmark for the first three months of the fiscal year.  

 
 

General Fund 
 
Property Taxes: Property taxes were due by January 31, 2014.  As of December 31, 2013, 

the City has received 25% of the budgeted amount.  An increase of 76.5% 
from the actual amount collected for the first quarter of FY2013. 

 
Sales Taxes:   Sales tax collections are at 28% of budget, which is 3% higher than the 

expected budgeted amount of 25%, Sales tax revenues are also 11.7% 
greater than the actual amount collected at the same time last year.  The 
budgeted sales tax revenues were increase by $867,562, or 9% for 
FY2014 over FY2013. 

                                  
Franchise Taxes: Franchise Taxes are collected quarterly, with the exception of electricity 

franchise which is collected monthly, and are at 30% of budget which is 
5% higher than the budgeted amount. 

 
Permit Fees: Permit and Licenses are at 28% of budget, an increase of 3% higher from 

the budgeted amount for FY2014 and a 23.7% increase from the actual 
amount collected for the first quarter of FY2013.   

 



Fines/Forfeitures: Fines and Forfeitures are at 17% of budget, which is 8% below the 
benchmark of 25% of budget.  As well as a 22.9% decrease from the 
actual amount collected for the first quarter of FY2013.  We will continue 
to monitor revenues. 

 
Total Revenues: Total revenues year to date are at 26% of budget, total revenues are 

11.3% greater than at this time last year.  Since revenues as a whole are 
budgeted at $1,201,141 more than last year, it is very positive that the 
percentage of budget is also higher. 

 
Expenditures: Total expenditures to date are at 20% of the budget.  All departments are 

within the 25% benchmark.   
 
Overall, the General Fund is in a net positive position year-to-date with total revenues at 
$5,497,477 and total expenditures at $4,577,879.  

 
 

Hotel/Motel Fund 
 

Hotel/Motel Taxes: These taxes are collected on a monthly basis and are at 23% of budget 
which is a slight 2% below the benchmark.  Hotel/Motel Tax Revenues 
were budgeted with an increase of $100,000 over last year’s revenues.  
Hotel/Motel tax revenues are actually 17.1% greater than the actual 
amount collected at the same time last year.  We will continue to 
monitor these revenues. 

 
Expenditures:   Currently expenditures are at 21% of budget which is 4% under the 25% 

benchmark. 
 
 

Rosenberg Development Corporation 
 
Sales Taxes:   Sales tax collections through December 31, 2013 are at 27% of budget, 

which is a positive variance of 2% increase over the 25% benchmark.  
 
Expenses: Total expenditures to date are at 8% of budget which is 17% under the 

25% benchmark. 
 
Overall, the Rosenberg Development Corporation Fund is in a net positive position with 
revenues exceeding expenditures by $511,519.  
 
 

 



Debt Service Fund 
 

Property Tax Revenues were due on January 31, 2014, and are at 23% as of December 31, 2013. 
Tax revenues show an increase of 61% over last year’s actual amount collected. 
 
Debt Service expenses are at 2% of budget and this is due to the majority of payments for 
general obligation debt being due at the beginning of the calendar year.  Interest only 
payments were due during the first quarter of the fiscal year.  

 
 

Water/Wastewater Fund 
 
W/WW Revenue: Current revenue is at 27% of budget for the first quarter, which is at the 

same percentage when compared to budget to last year.  Water and 
Sewer Tap revenues continue to increase and are above the 25% 
benchmark.  Water taps are at 34% and sewer taps are at 33% of budget.  
Connect fees and backflow permit revenue also show a positive variance 
with connect fees at 38% and backflow permit revenue at 51% of budget. 

   
Expenses: Total operating expenses year to date are at 27% of budget, which is  

slightly over the benchmark of 35%.  This is partly is due to the fund 
transfers from the Water Wastewater Fund to the W/WW Capital 
Improvement Project Funds for funding of projects.   

 
Overall, the Water/Wastewater fund is meeting expectations at this time and is on track to 
meet the budget for both the revenues and expenses. 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this analysis or need additional information, please let me 
know. 
 



CITY OF ROSENBERG
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FISCAL YEAR 2014 -  1st Qtr

ACCRUED PERCENT OF

ADJUSTED ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUES: BUDGET 25%

PROPERTY TAXES 4,160,200           1,047,943          25%

SALES TAXES 9,890,562           2,748,554          28%

FRANCHISE AND OTHER TAXES 1,672,500           504,195              30%

LICENSES AND PERMITS 498,091               139,923              28%

FINES AND FORFEITURES 559,600               97,112                17%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 920,399               2,476                  0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICE 3,556,601           935,746              26%

INVESTMENT EARNINGS 5,000                   469                      9%
OTHER 78,900                 21,059                27%

TOTAL REVENUE 21,341,853$       5,497,477$        26%

EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 44,122                 10,542                24%

CITY MANAGER 1,023,845           205,561              20%

CITY SECRETARY 217,706               40,121                18%

FINANCE 515,256               109,226              21%

MUNICIPAL COURT 366,728               57,370                16%

LEGAL 205,000               28,786                14%

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,068,822           212,710              20%

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 3,441,479           664,316              19%

PUBLIC SAFETY

POLICE 7,363,275           1,519,201          21%

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 12,345                 80                        1%

ANIMAL CONTROL 204,055               39,821                20%

SCHOOL OFFICERS & CROSSING GUARDS 910,398               218,755              24%

FIRE AND FIRE MARSHAL 3,611,568           908,506              25%
TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 12,101,641         2,686,362          22%

PUBLIC WORKS

STREETS AND DRAINAGE 3,882,143           674,787              17%

STREET LIGHTING AND SIGNALS 438,000               70,586                16%

FLEET MAINTENANCE 295,068               61,832                21%

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 4,615,211           807,204              17%

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PLANNING  ADMINISTRATION 234,102               47,110                20%

ENGINEERING 150,980               10,440                7%

CODE ENFORCEMENT 540,307               102,984              19%

HEALTH 118,152               18,029                15%

COMMUNICATIONS 111,399               19,419                17%

PARKS AND RECREATION 955,712               214,692              22%

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 2,110,652           412,673              20%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 342,175               7,324                  2%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,611,158$       4,577,879$        20%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

  OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,269,305)          919,598              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TRANSFER IN 1,575,236           391,778              25%

TRANSFER OUT (752,293)             (188,073)             25%

GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS 5,000                   -                       0%

  TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 827,943               203,704              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (441,362)             1,123,303          

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 6,401,991           6,779,610          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5,960,629           7,902,913          

 GENERAL FUND 



CITY OF ROSENBERG
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL

HOTEL/ MOTEL FUND
FISCAL YEAR 2014 -  1st Qtr

ACCRUED PERCENT OF 

ADJUSTED ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUES: BUDGET 25%

HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX 500,000              115,565              23%

INVESTMENT EARNINGS 1,100                  104                     9%
OTHER REVENUE 32,000                18,130                57%

TOTAL REVENUE 533,100$           133,799$           25%

EXPENDITURES:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PERSONAL SERVICES 68,488                20,104                29%

SUPPLIES 3,250                  408                     13%

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 167,600              18,215                11%

TRANSFER OUT 256,208              64,052                25%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 495,546$           102,779$           21%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

  OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 37,554                31,020                

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 37,554                31,020                

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,163,103          1,083,687          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 1,200,657          1,114,707          

HOTEL/ MOTEL FUND



CITY OF ROSENBERG
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL

RDC FUND
FISCAL YEAR 2014 -  1st Qtr

ACCRUED PERCENT OF

ADJUSTED ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUES: BUDGET 25%

SALES AND USE TAXES 3,445,200          917,676              27%
INVESTMENT EARNINGS 5,000                  939                     19%-                      

TOTAL REVENUE 3,450,200$        918,616$           27%

EXPENDITURES:

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

ADMINISTRATION 255,451              61,300                24%

MARKETING 118,142              55,948                47%

STRATEGIC PLANNING 40,000                40,000                100%

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 20,000                -                      0%

INFRASTRUCTURE 500,000              -                      0%

PRINCIPAL & INTEREST 999,394              249,848              25%

TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS 2,914,000          -                      0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,846,987$        407,097$           8%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

  OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,396,787)         511,519              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,396,787)         511,519              

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING * 4,650,911          3,489,342          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 3,254,124          4,000,861          

*  Working Capital Basis is used to calculate fund balance.

-              

RDC FUND



CITY OF ROSENBERG
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL

DEBT SERVICE FUND
FISCAL YEAR 2014 -  1st Qtr

ACCRUED PERCENT OF

ADJUSTED ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUES: BUDGET 25%

CURRENT TAXES 3,935,817          898,822              23%

DELINQUENT TAXES 30,000                17,839                59%
PENALTY AND INTEREST 40,000                4,872                  12%
INTEREST EARNINGS 6,000                  439                     7%
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 2,986,720          746,680              25%

TOTAL REVENUE 6,998,537$        1,668,651$        24%

EXPENDITURES:

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT 4,903,510          147,199              3%

INTEREST RETIREMENT 2,028,828          14,823                1%

FISCAL AGENT FEES 25,000                6,250                  25%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,957,338$        168,272$           2%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

  OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 41,199                1,500,379          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 41,199                1,500,379          

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 5,079,063          5,170,780          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5,120,262          6,671,159          

DEBT SERVICE FUND



CITY OF ROSENBERG
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES- BUDGET TO ACTUAL

WATER WASTEWATER FUND
FISCAL YEAR 2014 -  1st Qtr

ACCRUED PERCENT OF

ADJUSTED ACTUAL #REF!

REVENUES: BUDGET 25%

WATER SALES 4,020,000           1,123,457          28%

WASTEWATER SALES 3,920,000           1,011,384          26%

WATER TAP FEES 80,000                26,965                34%

SEWER TAP FEES 80,000                26,720                33%

RECONNECT FEES 40,000                10,725                27%

CONNECT FEES 25,000                9,555                  38%

PENALTY FEES 170,000              50,338                30%

RECLAIMED WATER SOURCE 15,000                -                       0%

BACKFLOW PERMIT REVENUE 1,500                   760                      51%

RETURNED CHECK FEES 5,000                   1,600                  32%

INTEREST EARNINGS 7,000                   545                      8%

PROPERTY LEASE 80,000                48,986                61%

OTHER REVENUE 5,000                   19                        0%

TOTAL REVENUE 8,448,500$        2,311,054$        27%

TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 75,398                18,850                25%

TOTAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 8,523,898$        2,329,903$        27%

EXPENSES:
-                       

DEPARTMENT

CUSTOMER SERVICE 395,835              73,200                18%

WATER/WASTEWATER ADMINISTRATION 225,131              40,853                18%

WATER PRODUCTION 518,861              107,263              21%

WATER DISTRIBUTION 829,956              229,274              28%

WASTEWATER COLLECTION 620,956              121,734              20%

WASTEWATER TREATMENT 1,179,177           206,093              17%

RECLAIMED WATER 27,100                -                       0%

TOTAL DEPARTMENT EXPENSES 3,797,015           778,417              21%-                       

OTHER EXPENSES

HEALTH INSURANCE FEE 6,000                   1,500                  25%

INFORMATION SERVICES FEE 118,485              29,621                25%

BAD DEBT EXPENSES 26,897                -                       0%

PERFORMANCE ASSURANCE SERVICES 35,988                35,988                100%

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 187,370              67,109                36%

TRANSFERS

TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 1,484,056           371,014              25%

TRANSFER TO CDBG 69,900                69,900                100%

TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE FUND 1,923,503           480,876              25%

TRANSFER TO W/WW SUPPLEMENTAL 96,500                96,500                100%

TRANSFER TO GRP PROJECTS FUND 200,000              200,000              100%

3,773,959           1,218,290          32%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,758,344$        2,063,816$        27%

NET OPERATING REVENUE 690,156$            247,238$           36%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                       -                       0%

DEBT SERVICE 778,978              189,805              24%

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,537,322$        2,253,621$        26%

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
  OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (13,424)               76,282                

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING * 4,559,773           5,167,794          

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 4,546,349           5,244,076          

*  Working Capital Basis is used to calculate fund balance.

 WATER/WASTEWATER FUND 



The investment portfolio detailed in the attached report includes all investment transactions

made during the above referenced period.  The investment portfolio and all related transactions

comply with the investment policy of the City of Rosenberg, Texas and the Public Funds Investment

Act of the State of Texas.

2/4/2014

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Joyce Vasut, Finance Director

Date:

Investment Officer:  



Book Book Book Book

Value Value Value Value

INVESTMENT BALANCES BY TYPE 3/31/2013 6/30/2013 9/30/2013 12/31/2013

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT / CDARS 2,000,000$      2,000,000$      2,000,000$      2,000,000         

TEXPOOL 27,948,622      29,245,454      29,572,503      24,427,860      

LOGIC 13,406,508      13,160,861      8,507,025         8,509,336         

LONESTAR 9,202,887         8,704,591         7,955,736         9,957,042         

AMEGY BANK - OPERATING ACCOUNT 823,347            978,321            869,087            1,770,041         

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 53,381,364$    54,089,227$    48,904,351$    46,664,279$    

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

Balance Comparison by Quarter



Purchase Maturity # Days to Par Coupon Book Market Purchases Maturities Interest Book Market Unrealized

Date Description Date Maturity Cost Value Yield Value Value Value Value Gain/Loss

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

9/12/2013 CDARS 09/11/14 364          2,000,000       2,000,000             0.27% 2,000,000          2,000,000          2,000,000          2,000,000          

2,000,000$        2,000,000$        -                      -                        -          2,000,000$        2,000,000$       

4% 4% OF TOTAL

N/A Texpool - Consolidated Cash N/A N/A 24,427,860          0.04% 29,572,503        29,572,503        3,670,126          (8,817,676)          2,907      24,427,860        24,427,860       -                 

29,572,503        29,572,503        3,670,126          (8,817,676)          2,907      24,427,860        24,427,860       

64% 57% OF POOLS

N/A LONESTAR - General Fund Liquidity Plus N/A N/A 2,188,092             0.04% 187,887              187,931              2,000,000          205         2,188,092          2,188,393          301                

N/A LONESTAR - CO Series 2013 N/A N/A 7,768,950             0.04% 7,767,849          7,769,669          1,101      7,768,950          7,770,018          1,068             

7,955,736          7,957,600          -                      -                        1,306      9,957,042          9,958,411          1,369             

17% 23% OF POOLS

N/A Logic - Consolidated Cash N/A N/A 3,952,445             0.10% 3,951,372          3,951,372          1,074      3,952,445          3,952,445          -                 

N/A Logic - CO 2010B N/A N/A 912,810                0.10% 912,562              912,562              248         912,810              912,810             

N/A Logic - Series 2012 Bonds N/A N/A 3,644,081             0.10% 3,643,091          3,643,091          990         3,644,081          3,644,081          

8,507,025          8,507,025          -                      -                        2,311      8,509,336          8,509,336          

18% 20% OF POOLS

TOTAL POOLED INVESTMENTS 46,035,264        46,037,128        3,670,126          (8,817,676)          6,524      42,894,238        42,895,607       

94% 92% OF TOTAL

CITY DEPOSITORY- Amegy Bank

N/A Consolidated Cash N/A N/A 1,770,041             0.00% 869,087              869,087              16,279,802       (15,378,847)        -          1,770,041          1,770,041          

869,087              869,087              16,279,802       (15,378,847)        -          1,770,041          1,770,041          

2% 4% OF TOTAL

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 46,664,279$        0.06% 48,904,351        48,906,215        19,949,928       (24,196,524)        6,524      46,664,279        46,665,648       1,369             

9/30/2013 12/31/2013

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS

INVESTMENTS OUTSTANDING AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

Quarterly Activity

4% 

92% 

4% 

Investments by Type 

Certificate of Deposit / CDARS 

Pooled Investments 

Operating Accounts 

57% 23% 

20% 

Pooled Investments 

Texpool 

Lonestar 

Logic 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

G Surplus Property Item List Consideration 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on authorization to offer for sale a proposed list of surplus radio equipment 
items. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

  MUD #:  N/A 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1.  Surplus Radio Equipment List 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Dallis Warren 
Interim Police Chief 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In December 2012, City Council authorized the City-wide replacement of all radio equipment that had met and/or 
exceeded its useful life.  All radio equipment on the attached list has exceeded its useful life; staff recommends 
the sale or disposal of all surplus radio equipment.   
 
For City Council’s consideration, staff has provided a list of items to be offered for sale or disposed of as retired 
surplus equipment.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the surplus list as presented. 
 



SURPLUS RADIO EQUIPMENT LIST 

 

204 ‐ Portable Radios  

113 ‐ Mobile Radios   

7‐ Multi Unit Portable Radio Charger 

143 ‐ Single Unit Radio Chargers 

17 ‐ Astro Spectra Base Radios 

1 ‐ Gold Elite Dispatch System; Equipment and Hardware for 6 stations 

‐ Miscellaneous Portable Radio Accessories (batteries, microphones) 

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2014-05 – Location of Stop Signs 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a second reading of Ordinance No. 2014-05, an Ordinance amending the 
Code of Ordinances by deleting all of Section 28-41 (b) and (d), Stop Signs Designated, of Article II, 
Division 2 of Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting therefor a new Section 28-41 (b) and (d) of Article 
II, Division 2 of Chapter 28 thereof; providing a penalty in an amount of not less than $1.00 or more than 
$200.00 for violation of any provision hereof; repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent 
or in conflict herewith; and, providing for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[X] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-05 – Redline 
2. Ordinance No. 2014-05 
3. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 02-04-14 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 01-21-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager for 
Public Services 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

During the January 21, 2014 meeting, City Council discussed the proposed installation of four-way stop 
signs at the intersection of Avenue L and Millie Street. City Council did take action directing the installation 
of four-way stop signs at this intersection. 

 
Staff has prepared an Ordinance that deletes the above listed intersection from the two-way stop sign 
designations and adds said intersection to the four-way stop sign designations.  This Ordinance was 
initially considered at the February 04, 2014 City Council Meeting where it was approved by a vote of four 
(4) to three (3).  Pursuant to Section 3.10 of the City Charter, a second reading of the Ordinance is 
required without an affirmative vote of five (5) Council members.   
  
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-05 as presented on this second reading. 
 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 
(b) AND (d), STOP SIGNS DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28, STOP STREETS, AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A 
NEW SECTION 28-41 (b) AND (d) OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28 THEREOF; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF 
NOT LESS THAN $1.00 OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF 
ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has 

determined that the safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and other members of the 

traveling public require removing certain stop signs and placing stop signs at certain 

locations which requires deleting the following stop sign designations from Section 28-41 

(b) and (d) of Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting a new 

Section 28-41 (b) and (d) with new stop sign designations; and, 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 28 is hereby amended to include a penalty range of a fine in 

an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars 

($200.00); now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg is hereby 

amended by deleting from Chapter 28, Section 28-41 (b) and (d) Stop Signs 

Designated, of Article II, Division 2, and substituing a new Section 28-41 (b) and (d) 

Stop Signs Designated as follows: 

 



2 
 

“Sec. 28-41. - Stop signs designated. 
 

* * * 

 
    (b)     Two-way stops. Stop signs indicating two-way stops shall be placed at the 
following locations within the city:  

 
Stop Street Intersecting Streets 
1st Street 1st Street and Avenue D 
1st Street 1st Street and Avenue E 
2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue D 
2nd Street 2nd Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
2nd Street 2nd Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
3rd Street 3rd Street and Avenue M 
3rd Street 3rd Street and Brooks Avenue 
3rd Street 3rd Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
3rd Street 3rd Street and Main Street 
4th Street 4th Street and Avenue D 
4th Street 4th Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue D 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue G 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue M 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue N 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue O 
5th Street 5th Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
5th Street 5th Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
6th  Street 6th  Street and Avenue G 
6th Street 6th Street and Avenue M 
6th Street 6th Street and Avenue N 
6th Street 6th Street and Avenue O 
6th Street 6th Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
7th Street 7th Street and Avenue G 
7th Street 7th Street and Avenue L 
7th Street  7th Street and Avenue M 
7th Street 7th Street and Avenue O 



3 
 

7th Street 7th Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
7th Street 7th Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
8th Street 8th Street and Avenue A 
8th Street 8th Street and Avenue G 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and Avenue G 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and Avenue J 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and Avenue K 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Allen Street Allen Street and Avenue K 
Allen Street Allen Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Allwright Street Allwright Street and Reading Road 
Aquarius Street Aquarius Street and Pisces Street 
Avenue A Avenue A and 2nd Street 
Avenue A Avenue A and 7th Street 
Avenue B Avenue B and 2nd Street 
Avenue B Avenue B and 7th Street 
Avenue C Avenue C and 5th Street 
Avenue D Avenue D and 6th Street 
Avenue E Avenue E and 3rd Street 
Avenue E Avenue E and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue E Avenue E and Willow Street 
Avenue F Avenue F and 8th Street 
Avenue F Avenue F and Jennetta Street 
Avenue F Avenue F and San Jacinto Street 
Avenue G Avenue G and Houston Street 
Avenue G Avenue G and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 2nd Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 3rd Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 4th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 5th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 6th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 8th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Allen Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Austin Street 



4 
 

Avenue J Avenue J and Brazos Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Carlisle Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Damon Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Frost Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Houston Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and James Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Lawrence Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and MacArthur Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Miles Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and San Jacinto Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Avenue J Avenue J and Tobola Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Ward Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and West Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 3rd Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 4th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 5th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 6th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 7th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Austin Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Carlisle Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Frost Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and George Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Avenue K Avenue K and West Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 2nd Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 3rd Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 4th Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 6th Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Brazos Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Carlisle Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Damon Street 



5 
 

Avenue L Avenue L and Frost Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Georgina Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Miles Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Millie Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Avenue L Avenue L and Tobola Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and West Street 
Avenue M Avenue M and Frost Street 
Avenue M Avenue M and George Street 
Avenue M Avenue M and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue N Avenue N and 7th Street 
Avenue P Avenue P and Tobola Street 
Avenue R Avenue R and Avenue P 
Bamore Road Bamore Road and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue E 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue K 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Brooks Avenue Brooks Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Callaway Cove Court Callaway Cove Court and Iris Hills Lane 
Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Dyer Avenue 
Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Cottage Creek Lane Cottage Creek Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 
Cypress Lane Cypress Lane and Mons Avenue 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Brazos Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Carlisle Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Frost Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and George Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Houston Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Mulcahy Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and West Street 
Damon Street Damon Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Davis Avenue Davis Avenue and Ward Street 



6 
 

Divin Drive Divin Drive and Town Center Boulevard 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Brazos Street 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Frost Street 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Mulcahy Street 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and West Street 
Elizabeth Avenue Elizabeth Avenue and West Street 
Frances Drive Frances Drive and Lane Drive 
Frost Street Frost Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Frost Street Frost Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
George Street George Street and Avenue J 
George Street George Street and Walger Avenue (North) 
Georgina Street Georgina Street and Avenue J 
Glenmeadow Drive Glenmeadow Drive and Tobola Street 
Hemple Drive Hemple Drive and Town Center Boulevard 
Houston Street Houston Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Houston Street Houston Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
James Street James Street and Avenue K 
Jones Street Jones Street and Avenue N 
Klauke Street Klauke Street and Avenue N 
Lark Street Lark Street and Meadow Lane 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Brumbelow Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Jones Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Junker Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Klauke Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Marilyn Street 
Lawrence Street Lawrence Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Leaman Avenue Leaman Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Brumbelow Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Jones Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Junker Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Klauke Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Marilyn Street 
Lindsey Drive Lindsey Drive and Lane Drive 
Longhorn Drive Longhorn Drive and Airport Avenue 



7 
 

Louise Street Louise Street and Avenue J 
Louise Street Louise Street and Avenue L 
Louise Street Louise Street and Avenue N 
Louise Street Louise Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Madison Avenue Madison Avenue and Ward Street 
Mahlman Street Mahlman Street and Avenue N 
Manor Drive Manor Drive and Village Court Drive 
Matamoros Drive Matamoros Drive and Blume Road 
Miles Street Miles Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Oak Briar Lane Oak Briar Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 
Pecan Park Drive Pecan Park Drive and Westwood Drive 
Randon Dyer Road Randon Dyer Road and US Highway 90A 
Randon School Road Randon School Road and Spur 10 
Raven Street Raven Street and Meadow Lane 
Rice Street  Rice Street and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Ripple Creek Drive Ripple Creek Drive and Freeway Manor Drive 
Robinowitz Road Robinowitz Road and Spur 10 
San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and Avenue G 
San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue 

I) 
San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue 

H) 
Silverton Bend Silverton Bend and Wagon Wheel Lane 
Spur 10 Ramp North of U.S. 
Highway 59 

Spur 10 Ramp North of U.S. Highway 59 and Spur 
10 

Spur 529 Spur 529 and U.S. Highway 59 (Southbound) 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Brazos Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Carlisle Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Frost Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Houston Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Mulcahy Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and West Street 
Timber Lane  Timber Lane and Lane Drive 



8 
 

 
* * * 

(d) Four-way stops. Stop signs indicating four-way stops shall be placed at the 
following locations within the city:  

 
3rd Street and Avenue F 
3rd Street and Avenue G  
Avenue C and 3rd Street  
Avenue D and Mulcahy Street  
Avenue D, Willow Drive, and Candler Street  
Avenue D and 3rd Street  
Avenue E and Carlisle Street  
Avenue E and 6th Street  
Avenue F and Alamo Street  
Avenue F and Damon Street  
Avenue F and 6th Street  
Avenue G and 4th Street  
Avenue G and 2nd Street  
Avenue J and Millie Street  
Avenue J and 7th Street  
Avenue K and 2nd Street  
Avenue K and Ward Street  
Avenue L and 5th Street  
Avenue L and Lawrence Street  
Avenue L and Millie Street 
Avenue L and Mulcahy Street  
Avenue M and Brazos Street  
Avenue M and 4th Street  
Avenue N and Alamo Street and the driveway opposite Alamo Street  
Avenue N and 8th Street  

Tobola Street Tobola Street and Avenue N 
Turtle Creek Drive Turtle Creek Drive and Longhorn Drive 
U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) and 
Cottonwood Church Road 

Vera Cruz Drive Vera Cruz Drive and Blume Road 
Vera Cruz Drive Vera Cruz Drive and Seabourne Meadows Drive 
Ward Street Ward Street and Avenue F 
Ward Street Ward Street and Avenue G 
West Street West Street and Avenue D 
Wild Cotton Road Wild Cotton Road and Bamore Road 
Wilson Drive Wilson Drive and Lane Drive 
Winding Lakes Lane Winding Lakes Lane and F.M. Highway 2977 



9 
 

Avenue N and Ward Street  
Avenue O and Tobola Street  
Brazos Center Boulevard, Winding Lakes Lane, Brazos Town Crossing, and driveway 
opposite Brazos Center Boulevard 
Carlisle Street and Avenue M 
Commercial Drive, Mercantile Drive, and driveway opposite Mercantile Drive 
Commercial Drive, Plaza Drive, and driveway opposite Plaza Drive  
Ellis Grove Lane and Archer Ranch Lane  
George Street and Avenue L 
Hartledge Road, Spur 10, and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound)  
Herbie Road and Debbie Street 
Louise Street and Airport Avenue  
Mahlman Street and Avenue O  
Monroe Avenue and Ward Street  
Mulcahy Street and Walger Avenue  
Mustang Avenue and Lane Drive  
Oakland Valley Drive and Wagon Wheel Lane  
Parrott Avenue and Ward Street  
Radio Lane, Ida Street, and Mustang Avenue 
Reading Road and Spacek Road 
Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard  
Sally Anne Drive and Lane Drive  
Southgate Drive and West Street  
Spacek Road and Brazos Town Crossing 
Spur 10 and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 
Timber Lane and Frances Drive  
Town Center Boulevard and driveways approximately 320 feet north of Commercial 
Drive  
Walger Avenue (North) and West Street  
West Street and Avenue M”  

 
Section 3. Any person who shall violate any provision contained in this 

Ordinance, or who shall commit or perform any act declared herein to be unlawful shall be 

deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount 

of not less than one dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

Section 4. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 5. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 



10 
 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council 

of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part 

of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ four (4) “ayes” in favor and 

_______ three (3) “noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with 

the provisions of Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ 

4th day of February________________ 2014. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _____ “ayes” in favor and ______ 

“noes” against on this the second/final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on this the _________ day of 

____________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 
(b) AND (d), STOP SIGNS DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28, STOP STREETS, AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A 
NEW SECTION 28-41 (b) AND (d) OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28 THEREOF; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF 
NOT LESS THAN $1.00 OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF 
ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has 

determined that the safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and other members of the 

traveling public require removing certain stop signs and placing stop signs at certain 

locations which requires deleting the following stop sign designations from Section 28-41 

(b) and (d) of Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting a new 

Section 28-41 (b) and (d) with new stop sign designations; and, 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 28 is hereby amended to include a penalty range of a fine in 

an amount of not less than one dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars 

($200.00); now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg is hereby 

amended by deleting from Chapter 28, Section 28-41 (b) and (d) Stop Signs 

Designated, of Article II, Division 2, and substituing a new Section 28-41 (b) and (d) 

Stop Signs Designated as follows: 

 



2 
 

“Sec. 28-41. - Stop signs designated. 
 

* * * 

 
    (b)     Two-way stops. Stop signs indicating two-way stops shall be placed at the 
following locations within the city:  

 
Stop Street Intersecting Streets 
1st Street 1st Street and Avenue D 
1st Street 1st Street and Avenue E 
2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue D 
2nd Street 2nd Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
2nd Street 2nd Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
3rd Street 3rd Street and Avenue M 
3rd Street 3rd Street and Brooks Avenue 
3rd Street 3rd Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
3rd Street 3rd Street and Main Street 
4th Street 4th Street and Avenue D 
4th Street 4th Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue D 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue G 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue M 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue N 
5th Street 5th Street and Avenue O 
5th Street 5th Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
5th Street 5th Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
6th  Street 6th  Street and Avenue G 
6th Street 6th Street and Avenue M 
6th Street 6th Street and Avenue N 
6th Street 6th Street and Avenue O 
6th Street 6th Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
7th Street 7th Street and Avenue G 
7th Street 7th Street and Avenue L 
7th Street  7th Street and Avenue M 
7th Street 7th Street and Avenue O 



3 
 

7th Street 7th Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
7th Street 7th Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
8th Street 8th Street and Avenue A 
8th Street 8th Street and Avenue G 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and Avenue G 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and Avenue J 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and Avenue K 
Alamo Street Alamo Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Allen Street Allen Street and Avenue K 
Allen Street Allen Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Allwright Street Allwright Street and Reading Road 
Aquarius Street Aquarius Street and Pisces Street 
Avenue A Avenue A and 2nd Street 
Avenue A Avenue A and 7th Street 
Avenue B Avenue B and 2nd Street 
Avenue B Avenue B and 7th Street 
Avenue C Avenue C and 5th Street 
Avenue D Avenue D and 6th Street 
Avenue E Avenue E and 3rd Street 
Avenue E Avenue E and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue E Avenue E and Willow Street 
Avenue F Avenue F and 8th Street 
Avenue F Avenue F and Jennetta Street 
Avenue F Avenue F and San Jacinto Street 
Avenue G Avenue G and Houston Street 
Avenue G Avenue G and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 2nd Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 3rd Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 4th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 5th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 6th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and 8th Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Allen Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Austin Street 



4 
 

Avenue J Avenue J and Brazos Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Carlisle Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Damon Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Frost Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Houston Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and James Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Lawrence Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and MacArthur Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Miles Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and San Jacinto Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Avenue J Avenue J and Tobola Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and Ward Street 
Avenue J Avenue J and West Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 3rd Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 4th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 5th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 6th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and 7th Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Austin Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Carlisle Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Frost Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and George Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue K Avenue K and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Avenue K Avenue K and West Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 2nd Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 3rd Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 4th Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and 6th Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Brazos Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Carlisle Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Damon Street 



5 
 

Avenue L Avenue L and Frost Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Georgina Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and Miles Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Avenue L Avenue L and Tobola Street 
Avenue L Avenue L and West Street 
Avenue M Avenue M and Frost Street 
Avenue M Avenue M and George Street 
Avenue M Avenue M and Mulcahy Street 
Avenue N Avenue N and 7th Street 
Avenue P Avenue P and Tobola Street 
Avenue R Avenue R and Avenue P 
Bamore Road Bamore Road and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue E 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue K 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Brazos Street Brazos Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Brooks Avenue Brooks Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Callaway Cove Court Callaway Cove Court and Iris Hills Lane 
Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Dyer Avenue 
Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Cottage Creek Lane Cottage Creek Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 
Cypress Lane Cypress Lane and Mons Avenue 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Brazos Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Carlisle Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Frost Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and George Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Houston Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Mulcahy Street 
Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and West Street 
Damon Street Damon Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Davis Avenue Davis Avenue and Ward Street 
Divin Drive Divin Drive and Town Center Boulevard 



6 
 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Brazos Street 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Frost Street 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Mulcahy Street 
Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and West Street 
Elizabeth Avenue Elizabeth Avenue and West Street 
Frances Drive Frances Drive and Lane Drive 
Frost Street Frost Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Frost Street Frost Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
George Street George Street and Avenue J 
George Street George Street and Walger Avenue (North) 
Georgina Street Georgina Street and Avenue J 
Glenmeadow Drive Glenmeadow Drive and Tobola Street 
Hemple Drive Hemple Drive and Town Center Boulevard 
Houston Street Houston Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Houston Street Houston Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
James Street James Street and Avenue K 
Jones Street Jones Street and Avenue N 
Klauke Street Klauke Street and Avenue N 
Lark Street Lark Street and Meadow Lane 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Brumbelow Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Jones Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Junker Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Klauke Street 
Laurel Street Laurel Street and Marilyn Street 
Lawrence Street Lawrence Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Leaman Avenue Leaman Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Brumbelow Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Jones Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Junker Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Klauke Street 
Leonard Street Leonard Street and Marilyn Street 
Lindsey Drive Lindsey Drive and Lane Drive 
Longhorn Drive Longhorn Drive and Airport Avenue 
Louise Street Louise Street and Avenue J 



7 
 

Louise Street Louise Street and Avenue L 
Louise Street Louise Street and Avenue N 
Louise Street Louise Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Madison Avenue Madison Avenue and Ward Street 
Mahlman Street Mahlman Street and Avenue N 
Manor Drive Manor Drive and Village Court Drive 
Matamoros Drive Matamoros Drive and Blume Road 
Miles Street Miles Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 
Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 
Oak Briar Lane Oak Briar Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 
Pecan Park Drive Pecan Park Drive and Westwood Drive 
Randon Dyer Road Randon Dyer Road and US Highway 90A 
Randon School Road Randon School Road and Spur 10 
Raven Street Raven Street and Meadow Lane 
Rice Street  Rice Street and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 
Ripple Creek Drive Ripple Creek Drive and Freeway Manor Drive 
Robinowitz Road Robinowitz Road and Spur 10 
San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and Avenue G 
San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue 

I) 
San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue 

H) 
Silverton Bend Silverton Bend and Wagon Wheel Lane 
Spur 10 Ramp North of U.S. 
Highway 59 

Spur 10 Ramp North of U.S. Highway 59 and Spur 
10 

Spur 529 Spur 529 and U.S. Highway 59 (Southbound) 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Brazos Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Carlisle Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Frost Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Houston Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and Mulcahy Street 
Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and West Street 
Timber Lane  Timber Lane and Lane Drive 
Tobola Street Tobola Street and Avenue N 



8 
 

 
* * * 

(d) Four-way stops. Stop signs indicating four-way stops shall be placed at the 
following locations within the city:  

 
3rd Street and Avenue F 
3rd Street and Avenue G  
Avenue C and 3rd Street  
Avenue D and Mulcahy Street  
Avenue D, Willow Drive, and Candler Street  
Avenue D and 3rd Street  
Avenue E and Carlisle Street  
Avenue E and 6th Street  
Avenue F and Alamo Street  
Avenue F and Damon Street  
Avenue F and 6th Street  
Avenue G and 4th Street  
Avenue G and 2nd Street  
Avenue J and Millie Street  
Avenue J and 7th Street  
Avenue K and 2nd Street  
Avenue K and Ward Street  
Avenue L and 5th Street  
Avenue L and Lawrence Street  
Avenue L and Millie Street 
Avenue L and Mulcahy Street  
Avenue M and Brazos Street  
Avenue M and 4th Street  
Avenue N and Alamo Street and the driveway opposite Alamo Street  
Avenue N and 8th Street  
Avenue N and Ward Street  

Turtle Creek Drive Turtle Creek Drive and Longhorn Drive 
U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) and 
Cottonwood Church Road 

Vera Cruz Drive Vera Cruz Drive and Blume Road 
Vera Cruz Drive Vera Cruz Drive and Seabourne Meadows Drive 
Ward Street Ward Street and Avenue F 
Ward Street Ward Street and Avenue G 
West Street West Street and Avenue D 
Wild Cotton Road Wild Cotton Road and Bamore Road 
Wilson Drive Wilson Drive and Lane Drive 
Winding Lakes Lane Winding Lakes Lane and F.M. Highway 2977 



9 
 

Avenue O and Tobola Street  
Brazos Center Boulevard, Winding Lakes Lane, Brazos Town Crossing, and driveway 
opposite Brazos Center Boulevard 
Carlisle Street and Avenue M 
Commercial Drive, Mercantile Drive, and driveway opposite Mercantile Drive 
Commercial Drive, Plaza Drive, and driveway opposite Plaza Drive  
Ellis Grove Lane and Archer Ranch Lane  
George Street and Avenue L 
Hartledge Road, Spur 10, and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound)  
Herbie Road and Debbie Street 
Louise Street and Airport Avenue  
Mahlman Street and Avenue O  
Monroe Avenue and Ward Street  
Mulcahy Street and Walger Avenue  
Mustang Avenue and Lane Drive  
Oakland Valley Drive and Wagon Wheel Lane  
Parrott Avenue and Ward Street  
Radio Lane, Ida Street, and Mustang Avenue 
Reading Road and Spacek Road 
Reading Road and Town Center Boulevard  
Sally Anne Drive and Lane Drive  
Southgate Drive and West Street  
Spacek Road and Brazos Town Crossing 
Spur 10 and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 
Timber Lane and Frances Drive  
Town Center Boulevard and driveways approximately 320 feet north of Commercial 
Drive  
Walger Avenue (North) and West Street  
West Street and Avenue M”  

 
Section 3. Any person who shall violate any provision contained in this 

Ordinance, or who shall commit or perform any act declared herein to be unlawful shall be 

deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount 

of not less than one dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

Section 4. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 5. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 



10 
 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council 

of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part 

of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of four (4) “ayes” in favor and three (3) 

“noes” against on this first reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 

of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the 4th day of February 2014. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _____ “ayes” in favor and ______ 

“noes” against on this the second/final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on this the _________ day of 

____________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 



 

 
PAGE 2 of 7 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 04, 2014 

 
 

when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

 
The following speakers addressed Council under the Comments from the Audience. 
Carol Moore, 5914 Homestead Road, Rosenberg, Texas: 

• I am here tonight to give you an update on Suburban Estates.  You all know the song and title “What a 
Difference a Day Makes”, well tonight I can report to you “what a difference a stop sign makes”.  In just a 
little over a month since stop signs and reduced speed limits signs were put into place, there has been a 
significant change in our neighborhood.  This has certainly slowed down the traffic.  It is much safer for 
the students walking to school and for residents backing out of their driveways.  Our neighborhood 
cannot be compared to any other subdivision street or whatever else critics want to compare us to in the 
City.  Any criticism on our stop signs from non-residents of this neighborhood should be dropped by the 
wayside.  The action of Council to proceed with stop signs was a great compromise of all residents of 
this neighborhood.  Everyone who wanted Homestead Road reopened got their wish; therefore, this 
should be end of this on-going saga.  The end result is we have a safer neighborhood and we are 
getting back the neighborhood we once had.  Former Councilwoman, Fran Naylor had a very good 
response letter in the January 30, 2014 edition of the Fort Bend Herald.  She has given me permission 
to quote her last two paragraphs of her letter which deserves to be acknowledged.  It reads as follows:  
“As Rosenberg continues to grow, the City may need to look at these types of requests and take action 
to encourage drivers to either slow down or go to streets meant to be used as thoroughfares. New 
subdivisions are planned in ways that ensure that safe travel in residential areas.  The older parts of 
town may need a little relief.”  I commend all of you on Council who responded to our need for help.  To 
all of City government from City Manager, Mayor, Interim Police Chief, and all Council Members thank 
you for your commitment to the City.  I would also like to say thanks to Assistant City Manager, John 
Maresh; City Secretary, Linda Cernosek; and Citizen Relations Coordinator, Karen Zwahr.  Over the last 
two years, all of you have been so helpful, polite and professional. 
 

Mike Parsons, 2635 Sequoia Lane, Rosenberg, Texas: 
• [start 6:56:59 pm] 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. REVIEW OF CONSENT AGENDA. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items 
unless a City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item 
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the 
Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR JANUARY 07, 
2014. 
 

 B.  

 C. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05, AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 (B) AND 
(D), STOP SIGNS DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28, STOP 
STREETS, AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A NEW SECTION 28-41 (B) AND (D) OF 
ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28 THEREOF; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN 
AMOUNT OF NOT LESS THAN $1.00 OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF ANY 
PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  
Executive Summary: During the January 21, 2014 meeting, City Council discussed the 
proposed installation of four-way stop signs at the intersection of Avenue L and Millie Street. City 
Council did take action directing the installation of four-way stop signs at this intersection. 

 

reneel
Rectangle



 

 
PAGE 3 of 7 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 04, 2014 

 
 

Staff has prepared an Ordinance that deletes the above listed intersection from the two-way 
stop sign designations and adds said intersection to the four-way stop sign designations. 
  
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-05 as presented. 

 D.  

 E.  
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2A. This item was formerly Item C. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON ORDINANCE NO. 2014-05, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 (B) AND (D), STOP SIGNS 
DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28, STOP STREETS, AND 
SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A NEW SECTION 28-41 (B) AND (D) OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28 THEREOF; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF NOT LESS THAN $1.00 
OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 
Executive Summary: During the January 21, 2014 meeting, City Council discussed the proposed 
installation of four-way stop signs at the intersection of Avenue L and Millie Street. City Council did take 
action directing the installation of four-way stop signs at this intersection. 
 
Staff has prepared an Ordinance that deletes the above listed intersection from the two-way stop sign 
designations and adds said intersection to the four-way stop sign designations.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-05 as presented. 
 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Grigar asked this item to be pulled into the Regular Agenda because of the outcome 
of the vote at the last meeting and did not want to say no to all the Consent Agenda items, so 
he wanted to vote on this item individually. 

• Councilor Benton stated we heard some comments from Carol Moore that were precise.  
Before he was on City Council, he contacted Councilor Grigar about these intersections which 
were four (4) way intersections without any stop signs at all.  Councilor Benton addressed 
Council in 2001-2003 and the Council at that time took action to install stop signs, but they that 
live in this neighborhood would say they put them in the wrong direction, because they put 
them east/west, instead of north/south, which protected those going north/south and now use 
this street as a drag strip.  It was not as easy as some made it sound to get Council approval 
or to get any action on this stop sign.  It was in fact a process that took at least two and a half 
years.  There are dozens and dozens of more intersections, I feel, that need to be addressed.  
I would like to note that studies are not required, they are not required by law to have a study 
as far as my knowledge, unless it is at an intersection that connects with a state street, is that a 
correct statement? 

• John Maresh stated as he read the State Traffic Manual, it addresses stop signs at any 
intersection.  

• Councilor Benton stated he spoke to Texas Municipal League to their legal counsel, and he 
was told that it is not required. 

• John Maresh stated he cannot speak as to what TML advised him, but the information in the 
traffic manual generally states that a study should be done to document the need or warrant of 
that stop sign. 

• Councilor Benton stated that if we do not do a study, we are breaking the law?  
• Lora Lenzsch, City Attorney, stated that Section 2b.07 of the Texas Manual of the Uniform 

Traffic Control Device, does state that for a traffic control device, such as a stop sign, a study 
needs to be done.  Are you breaking the law?  I think last time I explained the situation.  When 
you charge someone with a violation, one of the elements is that the sign is lawfully placed.  
Arguably, does the City have the authority on their own, without anything to substantiate the 
sign to place it there—that would be an argument for the Judge to decide, if that would come 
up.  I am asked to go into the courts to prosecute and one of the elements in running a stop 
sign if someone had a trial, it would be I would have to prove that the sign is lawfully placed 
there.  Usually, if the issue comes up to ask for a study, rarely but it has come up.  If there is 

reneel
Rectangle



 

 
PAGE 4 of 7 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 04, 2014 

 
 

no study the judge is going to dismiss the case. 
• Councilor Benton asked if there is passing or failing with a study or is it just for your 

information? 
• Lora Lenzsch advised that the manual provides what the study needs to show.  It gives you the 

standards.  You don’t need to guess on it.  There is a percentage you have to hit, how many 
cars, at how many speeds, and how many times at that intersection. 

• Councilor Benton asked if a study has been done at this intersection.  John Maresh stated it 
probably has, but it has been some time. 

• Councilor Benton stated he asked for it, after he had an accident.  Charles Kalkomey stated 
the last study at this intersection was done in 2011.  We haven’t been asked to do a study 
since then. 

• Councilor Benton stated we did a study in 2011 and there was no passing or failing, so it is up 
to the discretion of the Council whether or not we wish to install a stop sign there. 

• Lora Lenzsch answered she did not know what the study showed.  Sometimes the study 
makes a conclusion at the end. 

• Charles Kalkomey stated the way the manual is written they are created certain warrant 
conditions that will warrant the placement of the stop sign, just like there are warrant conditions 
that will warrant the placement of a traffic light, and those are the conditions we test against to 
see if a stop sign is warranted. 

• Councilor Benton asked if a fatality or several accidents warrant a particular device.  Charles 
Kalkomey answered there is one of the warrants that has to do with the number of accidents in 
the previous three (3) year period, I believe.  

• Councilor Benton stated this is what he is trying to avoid.  Charles Kalkomey stated that is not 
the way the warrant is written--that is the way TXDOT wrote the manual. 

• Councilor Benton stated if there is no prohibition in having the stop sign, we heard statement 
from someone tonight what a world of difference a day makes or a stop sign makes. 

• Lora Lenzsch stated I told you what the issue is, I am not saying do it or don’t do it, I am saying 
these are the issues that surround the placement of a stop sign.  There is a standardized 
manual that has been provided throughout the State of Texas for placement of stop signs.  It 
does specifically say an engineer study for traffic control devices, but again, if a stop sign is 
there-it is there. 

• Councilor Benton stated we don’t want to do anything to break the law. 
• Lora Lenzsch stated she thinks the problem will start arising if you start putting several of these 

stop signs out without a study, then the City will be in a situation where eventually people are 
going to start understanding that some of these signs are not warranted. 

• Councilor Benton stated we had this discussion before about Homestead Road, about stop 
signs, and you said you can’t answer for other cities, but think of the logic, you get little towns 
like Orchard and Needville. 

• Councilor Benton asked Charles Kalkomey what the cost is for a low budget study of these 
stop signs?  Charles Kalkomey stated $500-$600. 

• Lora Lenzsch stated these cities do studies, they just don’t hire an engineer and they use the 
manual or use their Public Works Director who has been there for years and has done these 
studies.  The manual dictates how to do the studies and maybe some of the cities are not 
doing studies—the stop signs are just there.  I am educating in the fact that many people do 
not understand – is a stop sign legally posted there.  People can go that extra step and they 
do.   

• Councilor Benton is trying to get a legal opinion because he is getting mixed messages. 
• Lora Lenzsch stated she is not saying do not put a stop sign out, I am saying as your 

prosecutor, when I go into the court, there will be stop signs not supported by a traffic study 
and if that is the case, the police are not authorized to issue citations.  Does the general public 
know that? 

• Councilor Benton stated he is not here to get something over on the general public, I am trying 
to save someone from getting killed. 

• Councilor Benton stated when the time comes, he would move that we approve these stop 
signs. 

• Councilor McConathy asked Charles Kalkomey if the signs on page 2-8, the signs both two 
way and four way stop signs, you are saying that all of these signs before they were placed 
had a traffic study to justify their position in installation? 

• Charles Kalkomey stated back many years ago, the City undertook a project to identify 
intersections with stop signs, because we came to the realization that not every stop sign on 

reneel
Rectangle



 

 
PAGE 5 of 7 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 04, 2014 

 
 

the street was contained in the ordinance.  At that time, we prepared a map of all the stop 
signs in the city and all the intersections.  Council made a policy decision that said every 
intersection shall have at least one traffic control device.  In other words, if it’s a T-intersection 
the street coming into the T would have a stop sign.  If it was a four (4) way intersection, at 
least one of the cross streets would have a stop sign.  We gave preference to north-south 
movement of traffic if there was a decision to be made which way it was to go.  We prepared a 
map and Council adopted those stop sign placements in one big ordinance.  Ever since that 
time, stop sign placements have been done with traffic studies as far as I am aware.  

• Councilor McConathy stated that if any one of these stop signs were to contest the ticket, they 
could get out of it, because it was not done by a traffic study. 

• Lora Lenzsch stated that is up to the judge to make that determination, but it has happened—
not often and it surprises you, because they will ask for the traffic study for that particular 
intersection.  Sometimes, the city will have the study and sometimes they will have a study.  
Councilor Benton is correct, not every sign, not only in Rosenberg, but throughout the State of 
Texas every sign is supposed to be supported by a traffic study. 

• Mayor Morales asked in new developments, don’t new developments have to do certain traffic 
studies to qualify for certain traffic control devices? 

• Charles Kalkomey stated in the newer developments following the policy of council where 
there needs to be a stop sign at an intersection, we make sure those stop signs are placed and 
the ordinances are changed at the appropriate time.  The major intersections of developments 
where they enter out onto Reading Road for example, those are obviously stop signs.  I think 
some of the TIA’s done for those developments have indicated that, but I am sure there may 
be some that did not, but one of the warrants for a traffic sign would be an entrance into a 
major highway or roadway, you always want to have a stop sign so that one is not necessarily 
needing a study to place because it’s one of those warrant conditions that are on the books.  
It’s the ones you don’t know if it’s warranted or not is where the study comes in handy. 

• Councilor Bolf stated besides Ms. Moore, she has heard from others who have said that 
putting in stop signs has helped a great deal, it has helped on the cut through traffic and I know 
that sometimes studies can be a big benefit, but sometimes depending on the area of the 
neighborhood, we can rely on the common sense of the people who have lived there twenty 
(20) years and have seen the traffic and I agree with what we did last week and what we are 
doing today. 

• Councilor Grigar didn’t mean for it to get into this depth of a conversation again.  We have 
already done this and all I wanted to do is take it out of the Consent Agenda because of the 
outcome of the last vote.  I didn’t want to vote “no” on all the Consent Agenda items.  We 
already know how everyone up here feels and all I want to do is pull it into the Regular Agenda 
and have a vote of “no” for myself. 

• Councilor Pena stated we already made our decision on this, and I am going to stand by it. 
• Councilor Euton stated she didn’t say it before, but she will say it this time, I did vote against it 

before.  I talked to some residents who were not on the petition, and they said it is an “iffy” 
thing, but it’s probably a good idea and since the intersection before has a four (4)-way stop, I 
felt that a traffic study would help determine whether an additional four (4) way stop just one 
block down would be of any benefit and that is why I had voted no the first time. 

• Mayor Morales stated he voted no.  Without the traffic study again as he said that evening, we 
take these seriously, but we have to have some type of criteria to base it on.  Just like 
Homestead Road, the traffic studies that were done, made my decision because of the fact we 
saw that 47% of the traffic coming through Homestead Road were not residents in that area. 
There was some criteria to be able to base that decision.  As far as this particular item at Millie 
Street, again, that area had the traffic study in 2011, but should have been updated and based 
on that, there would be some criteria to decide whether it would be warranted or not after 
hearing what the residents had to say.  Again, as our legal counsel said, we can make that 
decision up here, but it could be challenged by a lawyer.  I think going forward, that we should 
have some type of mechanism in place that warrants whatever type of traffic calming device 
that we provide.  Again, we should listen to our citizens if there is a request, but I think there is 
some criteria to be done.  As I stated that night, on my own street, Bryan Road, the residents 
did a petition and did not ask me to lower the speed limit.  I told them the City has a policy that 
we do a traffic study and what the traffic study shows, we do.  That traffic study showed that a 
portion of Bryan Road needed to be reduced.  The other portion from Spacek Road to FM 
2977 (Minnonite Road) needed to stay at the 45 mph.  I would not have known to make that 
decision.  If they would have said to lower to 40 mph, not being a traffic engineer, we probably 
would have lowered the entire street to 40 mph, so I think we need to have some type of 

reneel
Rectangle



 

 
PAGE 6 of 7 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 04, 2014 

 
 

 
____________________________________________ 

     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

criteria to make our decisions on.  This particular item did not agree without the traffic study at 
that time, but this item is to put it into a four (4)-way stop sign. 

• Lora Lenzsch clarified that this vote is to pass the Ordinance placing the stop signs in at Millie 
Street and Avenue L. 
 

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve Ordinance 
No. 2014-05, An Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances by deleting all of Section 28-41 (b) and 
(d), Stop Signs Designated, of Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting 
therefor a new Section 28-41 (b) and (d) of Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28 thereof; providing a 
penalty in an amount of not less than $1.00 or more than $200.00 for violation of any provision hereof; 
repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith; and, providing for 
severability.  Upon voting, the motion passed by a vote of 4-3 as follows:  Ayes:  Councilors Benton, 
McConathy, Pena, and Bolf.  Noes:  Mayor Morales, Councilors Euton and Grigar. 
 

2B. This item was formerly Item E. 

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

6.  

7.  

 ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 9:01 p.m. 

reneel
Rectangle



 
PAGE 6 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 21, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 

8. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED INSTALLATION OF FOUR-WAY STOP SIGNS AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF AVENUE L AND MILLIE STREET, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.   
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Agenda to allow City Council the opportunity to 
discuss the proposed addition of four-way stop signs at the intersection of Avenue L at Millie Street. 
 
Speakers: 

• The following citizens spoke at the meeting: 
• Diana Cook, 1312 Millie Street, Rosenberg: 
• She has resided at this address for almost 40 years.  There is much traffic that goes through on 

Millie Street.  Much of this traffic moves at a high rate of speed, sometimes it sounds like a 
racetrack and goes on all the time.  In the mornings, there are young children and teenagers 
standing near this intersection waiting for the school bus to pick them up.  In the afternoon, the 
bus drops them off at this intersection as well.  Please, for the safety of the children, the 
subdivision, as well as community as a whole, drivers included, let us make this a safe area.  I 
strongly believe that a preventative action needs to be taken and that a four way stop sign needs 
to be placed at the intersection of Avenue L and Millie Street.  Thank you for letting me speak to 
you today. 

• Evelyn Ward, 1317 Mille Street, Rosenberg: 
• Councilor Benton stated that Evelyn Ward has laryngitis and he would help her speak.  She has 

seen a lot of accidents and it scares her. 
• Councilor Benton stated that Evelyn has been home a lot recently, since she has been sick, and 

has seen a lot of near misses.  Before he was on Council, Evelyn, along with the Dresner’s and 
others, have expressed concern about the danger and near misses of accidents.  There is fast 
traffic and requested Council to consider a four way stop sign at that location. 

• Wanda Sebesta, 1220 Millie Street, Rosenberg: 
• She has lived there for approximately 13 years and for 13 years the speeding traffic has been an 

issue.  There is a four way stop on the north side of Millie Street and Avenue K, which slows down 
the traffic on the north side, but once they clear that four way stop, it has increased speed all the 
way to Avenue N.  I am here to ask that you give us consideration in placing a four way stop at 
Avenue L and Millie Street.  Thank you. 

• Nina Davis, 1217 Millie Street, Rosenberg: 
• She lives directly across the street from Wanda Sebesta and has lived there for just over ten (10) 

years and wants to express the same concern as the other.  The traffic is exceptionally fast.  The 
cars seem to have no concern for anybody on the street or close to the street.  We have children 
that walk to school and walk home down to the corner where there is no stop sign.  There seems 
to be a cross through from the Walgreens and the bank down the street for people to get to 
Avenue N.  It is quite a thoroughfare day and night, so please consider putting the four way stop 
signs in at Avenue L and Millie Streets.  Thank you. 

• Mike Parsons, 2635 Sequoia Lane, Rosenberg: 
• While I have little issue with any individual or individuals suggesting that stop signs be placed on 

their street, I would assume that the Council person or persons who represent them have 
explained in detail the process in which streets are considered.  In addition, I would suggest that 
this Council or Councils in the future use uniform methods to arrive at those decisions or every 
corner in Rosenberg may find itself with four way stops. 

• Trust me when I say that there would be no problem to attain 19 to 20 signatures for a number of 
stop signs on Mons Avenue--a street, which was “improved” at the disfavor of the citizens who live 
on it or live on streets that have direct access. 

• A street where the average speed was verified to be 38 miles per hour (mph), with highs to 50 to 
60 mph after an accident at the corner of Mons and Sequoia several years back.  A street where I 
encourage the Rosenberg Police Department and any other law enforcement agency to use my 
driveway to monitor speeds and issue tickets thereon, including access to my house, facilities if 
they so desire. 

• Once Council goes down the silly road (no pun intended) of petitions they will be smothered with 
petition after petition to deal with, rather than focus and concentrate on the long term growth of 
Rosenberg. 

• It is of interest that some members of this Council scoff at the recorded instances of traffic issues 
as it has to do with Avenues H (90) and I (1640), but appear not to have considered accident rates 
on either L or Millie?  Could this be a prelude to the addition of other requests for four way stops 
on other streets in the area having been sought for years? 

 

reneel
Rectangle



 
PAGE 7 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 21, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 

 • Council might consider some consistency in making decisions regarding streets with regard to 
safety, in my humble opinion.  Suggest a traffic study in the area and determine if safety incidents 
appear to require a four way stop, as has been done in the past and make a uniform and 
consistent decision on the topic.  It is these kinds of issue that appear to be, at best, a simulation 
of politics at a national level.  Thank you. 

 
Key discussion points: 

• Councilor Benton stated that Council has received a copy of the request signed by nineteen (19) 
individuals that live closest to the area and are most affected by the lack of traffic control.  He 
respectfully asked that Council place a four way stop sign at the intersection of Avenue L and 
Millie Street.  He doesn’t object to Mr. Parson’s comments that there are a lot of intersections 
around town that need stop signs, but you can’t finish until you start, and we have folks that are 
interested and four folks here tonight.  I don’t think as representatives of folks we cannot help 
them out in situations like this. 

• Mayor Morales stated that Council takes these requests very seriously.  On his own street, Bryan 
Road, he had a petition last year given to him to lower the speed limit.  He explained to the 
citizens that the City has a process and criteria to follow.  We do a traffic study, the traffic study 
may come back it may be in your favor, it may not.  The traffic study was done, and part of Bryan 
Road qualified for a lower speed, and part of it did not.  Without the requested criteria, this Council 
could not have made that decision.  We are not traffic engineers.  I do take your request very 
seriously, but I think a traffic study should be done and that should be the criteria that we follow on 
what the results are.  I hope you respect what I am asking. 

• Councilor Benton stated we have done traffic studies.   
• Councilor McConathy had a question.  Have we done a recent traffic study on that street? Charles 

Kalkomey stated last time we took traffic counts was the latter half of 2011 which is about 2.5 
years. 

• Councilor McConathy asked how much of a gap do we allow before we do another traffic study.  
Charles Kalkomey stated there is no policy on the time and another count would be appropriate if 
Council desired. 

• Councilor Bolf stated everyone knows what she thinks about studies, but I think the people who 
live there is a great study.  We definitely need to look at it, and do something.  I think the citizens 
see it every day, but something needs to go in that direction. 

• Councilor Grigar stated he agrees something may need to be looked at, but to be across the 
board, we need to be fair.  Just because I think someone is speeding, speed is deceiving.  With 
our counters we have, they count the axles so we know if 18-wheelers are going through there 
and they count the speed, and how many axles.  The manual on Uniform Traffic Control devices 
takes the politics out of it.  It keeps it uniform across the City, so that we apply these all across.  If 
we keep on doing it without a traffic study, without any criteria that’s being followed, then this City 
could be in chaos and we could begin having stop signs everywhere.  Avenue N is a perfect 
example.  We have no stop sign between Alamo Street and Radio Lane.  You could have how 
many stop signs along there—at every intersection.  That’s not feasible.  There are other places in 
the City that are the same way, so I would like to have a traffic study and count done to see what 
those speeds are and if it does warrant that, then I would like to have those put in place.   

• At this intersection, are there already two stop signs?  Charles Kalkomey answered yes there are 
two stop signs at the cross street.  Councilor Grigar asked if we had any accidents at this there 
since 2011?  Charles Kalkomey answered that in 2011 there was one accident at the intersection 
in the previous three years.  We have not looked at any accident counts since then.  If we do 
another study, we would look at that. 

• Councilor Pena stated he doesn’t think these people are looking at the speed limit being lowered, 
they are asking for someone to regulate the traffic coming through there with a stop sign.  I don’t 
believe everyone wants a stop sign in their corner.  I don’t like driving down some of the streets in 
Rosenberg. In fact, I avoid them because they do have stop signs everywhere.  I think the lady 
might have seen me almost have an accident in that same intersection.  I personally experienced 
a near accident at that very intersection and I do think it is very dangerous and if we need to follow 
the traffic study, then we will do that.  They park a lot of trucks close to the intersection there and it 
makes it a blind spot.  I think I didn’t see the car.  Maybe there is some other way to help you.  We 
thank you for your concern. 

• Councilor Euton stated she agrees with Councilor Bolf in that she is not a real fan of all the 
studies, but in a city of this size, we probably need to have some sort of criteria in order to 
establish the rules uniformly, so I would propose we do a study and try to find out some cure for 
the residents there. 

 

reneel
Rectangle



 
PAGE 8 of 9 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 21, 2014 

***DRAFT*** 

 
 

___________________________________ 
  Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary 

 • Councilor Benton stated this intersection has been studied to death.  We are not being good 
stewards of the people’s money to continue to pay for studies.  We have people that have 
requested action by their representatives.  They are taxpayers too. We know what we need.  I, 
myself, Charles, had an accident of March 2012 at this intersection.  Also, to compare Avenue N 
with Millie is not a fair comparison.  Avenue N is designated as a thoroughfare.  I do not believe 
Millie Street is a thoroughfare.  We have a lot of drag strips in this town.  We need to start 
addressing them. 

• Mayor Morales stated one thing brought up by Councilor Pena is that like the truck there may be 
some no parking that needs to be done.  This is where the traffic study comes in and not us 
guessing what needs to be done. 

 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Pena to approve the four way stop 
signs at the intersection of Avenue L and Millie Street.  The motion carried 4-3, as follows:  Ayes:  
Councilors Benton, McConathy, Pena, and Bolf.  Noes:  Mayor Morales, Councilors Euton and 
Grigar. 
 
Mayor Morales stated he respects the vote, but thinks a traffic study should be done.  Thank you very 
much. 
 

9. CONSIDER MOTION TO ADJOURN FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to adjourn for executive 
session.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

10. HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 551.074 TO 
DELIBERATE THE APPOINTMENT OF THE POLICE CHIEF; AND, FOR DELIBERATIONS 
REGARDING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT NEGOTIATIONS AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 551.087 
OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  
An Executive Session was held pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.074 to deliberate the 
appointment of the police chief; and, for deliberations regarding economic development negotiations as 
authorized by Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code.  
 

11. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 

12. REVIEW AND DISCUSS POLICE CHIEF POSITION, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY.  
Executive Summary:  This Agenda item has been included for City Council to take action if deemed 
necessary following Executive Session. 
 
No action to be taken as a result of executive session. 
 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
• Councilor McConathy congratulated the City of Rosenberg Parks Department for their recognition 

by the Houston-Galveston Area Council particularly the Texas Master Naturalists for all the work 
they have done in the parks.  The City received a big recognition on behalf of the Parks and the 
Texas Master Naturalists today. 

• Mayor Morales recognized the Police Department and Sergeant Ariel Soltura for the positive 
national media attention. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 9:45 p.m. 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Receive Public Comment on MUD No. 162 Restated and Amended Fire 
Protection Agreement 

ITEM/MOTION 

Receive public comment from Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 162 regarding the increase in 
monthly fire protection fee pursuant to the Restated and Amended Fire Protection Agreement. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  162 (Sunrise Meadow) 
 

1. Lutz Email – 01-03-14 
2. Restated and Amended Fire Protection Agreement (2012) – 09-04-12 
3. Resolution No. R-1701 – 09-17-13 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 09-17-13 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

Lora Lenzsch/rlm 
 
Lora Lenzsch 
City Attorney 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. for Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Fire Chief  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Board of Directors for Municipal Utility District No. 162 (MUD No. 162) has requested an Agenda item 
to address City Council regarding the Restated and Amended Fire Protection Agreement (2012) as it 
relates to Resolution No. R-1701, which extended the compliance deadline for the provision of fire services 
to September 30, 2016. 
 



1

Renee LeLaurin

From: Angela Lutz [alutz@abhr.com]
Sent: Friday, January 03, 2014 2:09 PM
To: llenzsch@yahoo.com; Kaye Supak
Cc: Michael Gutierrez (gutierrm@co.fort-bend.tx.us)
Subject: Fort Bend 162

Ms. Lenzsch and Ms. Supak— 
  
The Directors of Fort Bend MUD 162 are requesting that a specific agenda item be placed on the next 
City of Rosenberg city council agenda to discuss the increase in the Rosenberg Fire Fee.  Please let me 
know if you need anything further from me on this item.  I am happy to help in any way I can. 
  
Sincerely, 
Angie Lutz 
Attorney for FB MUD 162    
 

 
. . . . . . . . . .. CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE . . . . . . . . . . 
 
The information in this email may be confidential and/or privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you 
are not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this 
email and its attachment, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you received this email in error please immediately notify the sender by return 
email and delete this email from your system. 
 
. . . . . . . . . . . .CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE . . . . . . . . . . . . 
 
The rules imposed by IRS Circular 230 require Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP to inform you that, unless expressly stated above or in an attachment 
hereto, this communication including any attachments, is not intended or written to be used, and it cannot be used, by you or any person or entity for the purpose 
of avoiding any penalties that may or could be imposed under the United States Internal Revenue Code, nor for the promoting, marketing or recommending to 
another party any transaction or tax-related matter(s). 







































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
February 18, 2014 

 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Resolution No. R- 1753 - Budget Amendment 14-07 
 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1753, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-07 in the amount of $11,469.15, for the annual Summer Park 
Owner’s Association Assessment Fees. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X]  One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

See attached 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1753 
2. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 02-04-14 

 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 
 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Budget Amendment 14-07, in the amount of $11,469.15, is presented to allocate funding for the annual Summer 
Park Property Owner’s Association Assessment Fees.  The Summer Park Property Owner’s Association Fees 
are fees assessed to the Fire Station No. 3 tract.  The total amount of the annual assessment on this tract is 
$11,469.15 ($11,045.20 for the Land Area Assessment and $423.95 for the Tract Use Assessment).  
 
City Council discussed this item at the February 04, 2014, City Council Meeting and requested staff to 
prepare a budget adjustment as presented. 
 
Budget Amendment 14-07 is included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1753 to fund the annual Summer Park 
Property Owner’s Association Assessment Fees for Fiscal Year 2014. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1753 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, BUDGET AMENDMENT 14-07 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$11,469.15, FOR THE ANNUAL SUMMER PARK PROPERTY 
OWNER’S ASSOCIATION ASSESSMENT FEES.  
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes Budget Amendment 14-07 

(Amendment), in the amount of $11,469.15, for the annual Summer Park Property 

Owner’s Association Assessment Fees.  A copy of such Amendment is attached hereto 

as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



NUMBER: 14‐07

Fund Departments: Fiscal Year: 2013‐14

Item [     ]  was  [ X  ]  was not included in the Department's original budget request.

Type of expenditure:  (    ) Recurring   (  X  ) Nonrecurring

Type of adjustment:   (     ) line‐item transfer [    ] department transfer
(  X  ) request for additional funds [    ] accounting correction

The budget amendment requested will require the following revisions:

FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS ACCOUNT(S): ORIGINAL REQUESTED AMENDED
 ACCOUNT NUMBER  BUDGET (1)   TRANSFER   BUDGET  

230‐0000‐350‐0000 Fund Balance 464,705.65$             (11,469.15)$    453,236.50$ 

‐               

TOTAL 464,705.65$             (11,469.15)$    453,236.50$ 

REVENUE ACCOUNT(S): ORIGINAL REQUESTED AMENDED
 ACCOUNT NUMBER  BUDGET (1)   TRANSFER   BUDGET  

      ‐$              

      ‐               

TOTAL ‐$                           ‐$                 ‐$              

EXPENSE ACCOUNT(S):
230‐3100‐520‐4370 Association Assessment Fee ‐$                           11,469.15$     11,469.15$   

‐               

‐               

‐               

TOTAL ‐$                           11,469.15$       11,469.15$   

 (1) INCLUDES PREVIOUSLY APPROVED AMENDMENTS

Reason for Amendment:  Please explain the reason(s) the amendment is requested.

This budget adjustment provides funding for the annual Summer Park Property Owner's Association Assessment Fees.
These assessment fees are for the Fire Station No. 3 tract.
 

02/10/2014
Director of Finance Date   City Manager Date  

Mayor/City Council Date  

ACCOUNTING USE ONLY: DATE POSTED:_______________ POSTED BY:_______________

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

230

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Fire Station No. 3 Operating Fund

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1753



CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this the 4th day of February, 2014, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 Fourth 
Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 

 
10. REVIEW AND DISCUSS SUMMER PARK PROPERTY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION 

ASSESSMENT FEES, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item has been included to allow City Council to take 
action following Executive Session if deemed necessary. 
 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to place a 
budget item on the next Council Agenda regarding Summer Park Property Owners’ 
Association Assessment Fees.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

 

reneel
Rectangle



 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
February 18, 2014 

 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Resolution No. R- 1754 – Financial Management Policies 
 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1754, a Resolution regarding the Financial Management 
Policies of the City of Rosenberg. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ]  One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1754 
2. Financial Management Policies - Redlined 
3. Finance/Audit Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 01-29-14 

 
 

APPROVALS 
Submitted by:   
 
 
 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Director of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City’s existing Financial Management Goals and Objectives were approved by City Council in 2002.  The 
goals and objectives state that they should be reviewed annually by the Finance/Audit Committee and any 
proposed changes shall be approved by City Council. Attached you will find a redlined copy of the original 
Financial Management Goals and Objectives as approved by the City Council in 2002. 
 
The Finance/Audit Committee reviewed the revised policies on January 29, 2014, and recommended a few 
additional changes.  These changes are included in the redlined copy of the policies. 
  
Resolution No. R-1754 was prepared for City Council to consider and formally adopt the amended policies.  The 
Finance/Audit Committee and City staff both recommend approval of Resolution No. R-1754, thereby adopting 
the proposed changes to the Financial Management Policies.     
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1754 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, REGARDING THE FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT POLICIES OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Rosenberg adopted the Financial Management Goals 

and Objectives (Financial Management Policies) in 2002; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Item 1.5 states that these Financial Management Policies shall 

remain in effect until amended by the City Council and shall be reviewed at least 
annually by the Finance/Audit Committee; and, 
 

WHEREAS, staff and the Finance/Audit Committee have suggested certain 
revisions to said Financial Management Policies; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, on January 29, 2014, the Finance/Audit Committee reviewed said 
revisions to the Financial Management Policies and recommended approval of the 
proposed changes; now, therefore,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1.  The City of Rosenberg, Texas, deems it necessary and proper and 

in accordance with the City’s Financial Management Policies to review said policies on 

an annual basis.  

Section 2. That the City is hereby approving and accepting the Financial 

Management Policies of the City of Rosenberg with the proposed revisions.  A copy of 

such Financial Management Policies are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 

hereof for all purposes.  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED on this _____ day of _____________ 

2014.     

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
  
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
 
Section 1. General Guidelines. 
 

1.1  The City will establish and maintain a high standard of accounting practices.  The 
City's accounting system shall conform to generally accepted governmental 
accounting principles (GAAP), as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) for governmental entities. 

 
1.2  The City will prepare and maintain in a current status written procedures relating to 

each financial management area. 
 

1.3  The Mayor/City Council shall appoint an Audit/Finance Committee whose members 
shall serve terms of one (1) year.  The Committee will be responsible for 
recommending a certified public accounting firm, as well as monitoring the 
independent audit process and making suggestions regarding internal controls within 
the City.  Members of the Committee shall be comprised of three members of the City 
Council.  Committee staff members will be the City Manager, Finance Director, , and 
Budget Analyst. 

 
1.4  Every three to five years, the City will issue a request for proposal to choose an 

auditor for a period of three years, with an optional one-time two-year extension. 
 

1.5  These financial management guidelines shall remain in effect until amended by the 
City Council.  In addition, these guidelines shall be reviewed at least annually by the 
Audit/Finance Committee. 

 
Section 2. Operating Budgets. 
 

2.1  Annual estimates of revenue in both the general fund and enterprise funds shall be 
based on historical trends and a reasonable expectation of growth.  A conservative 
approach shall be observed in estimating revenues, so that revenue estimates will not 
be overstated. 

 
2.2  The adoption of a balanced budget, where current resources (current revenues plus 

fund balances or reserves) shall be required.  Current resources will equal or exceed 
current expenditures for each individual fund. 

 
2.3  Fund balances or reserves of operating funds at the end of each fiscal year shall be at 

least twenty percent (20%) of the fund operating expenditures (excluding non-
recurring expenditures), or seventy-two days (72) of total fund operating expenditures 
for the same fiscal year. 

 
2.4  The City should endeavor to maintain a diversified and stable revenue base in order 

to prevent overall revenue shortfalls as a result of periodic fluctuations in any one 
revenue source.  Each existing and potential revenue source will be re-examined 
annually. 

 
2.5  The City shall use non-recurring resources (one-time revenues), including reserves 

and fund balances, to fund non-recurring (one-time) expenditures.  Recurring (on-
going) revenues shall be used to fund recurring (on-going) expenditures. 

 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1754



 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
  
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 

2.6  User charges, rates and fees shall be established at a level related to the cost of 
providing the services.  These charges, rates and fees shall be reviewed annually in 
order to determine the appropriate level of funding anticipated to support the various 
related activities. 

 
2.7  Rates for water and sewer enterprise activities shall be fixed and maintained at levels 

sufficient to ensure that annual revenues will be available to pay all direct and indirect 
costs of the enterprise activity, including costs of operation, capital improvements, 
maintenance, principal and interest requirements on outstanding debt, and interest 
and sinking fund and reserve fund requirements. 

 
2.8  Net earnings of the enterprise funds for any fiscal period shall be at least 1.25 times 

the average annual principal and interest requirements of outstanding debt.  Net 
earnings shall be defined to include non-operating revenues available for debt 
service, excluding depreciation and transfers to other funds. 

 
2.9  Budgets of operating funds shall provide for costs of fully maintaining all City facilities. 

 
2.10  The City shall follow a policy of aggressively pursuing the collection of current and 

delinquent ad valorem taxes, and shall strive to maintain a current ad valorem tax 
collection rate equal to or exceeding 95 percent (95%) of the current levy. 

 
2.11  Sound appraisal procedures and practices will be monitored by the City in order to 

keep property values current.  The City will annually review the various levels of 
property tax exemptions and abatements which may be optionally granted by the City. 

 
2.12  Transfers from enterprise activities to the general fund for administrative services, in-

lieu-of tax payments, and dividends shall not exceed the estimated costs incurred by 
the general fund in providing such services.  The basis for each transfer shall be fully 
explained each year in the proposed budget. 

 
2.13  A contingency budget, to be used in the case of unforeseen items of expenditures, 

shall be established in accordance with Section 9.14 of the Rosenberg City Charter.  
Provision shall be made in the annual budget and in the appropriation ordinances for 
a contingency appropriation of not more than three (3) percent of total General fund 
operating expenditures.  Expenditures from this contingency appropriation shall be 
made only in case of established emergencies, as authorized by the City Council. 

 
2.14  A proposed budget for all funds shall be submitted by the City Manager between sixty 

(60) and ninety (90) days prior to the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year.  The 
proposed budget shall be filed in the Office of the City Secretary, and be available for 
review and inspection by interested citizens during normal business hours. 

 
2.15  Annual fixed-dollar budgets are adopted for all funds except for capital project and 

trust funds for the period beginning October 1 and ending September 30 of the 
following year. Project-based budgets for capital projects are adopted on a project 
basis, and not on a fiscal year basis. 

2.16  All budget appropriations (except for capital projects) lapse at year-end (September 
30). Any encumbered appropriations at year-end may be re-appropriated by the City 
Manager in the ensuing fiscal year.  Such re-appropriations shall be subsequently 
reported to City Council. 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
  
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 
 

2.17  All budgets shall be adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with GAAP, as 
applied to governmental entities, with the exception of Enterprise and Internal Service 
funds.  Revenues are budgeted when they become measurable and available.  
Expenditures are charged against the budget when they become measurable, or 
when a liability has been incurred and the liability is expected to be liquidated with 
available current resources.  Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are re-
appropriated in the budgets of the ensuing fiscal year.  For Enterprise and Internal 
Service funds, depreciation is not budgeted, and capital improvements and debt 
service principal payments are budgeted as expenditures/expenses. 

 
2.18  The budget shall be adopted at the legal level of control which is the department 

within the individual fund.  Expenditures may not exceed the legal level of control at 
the department level within an individual fund without the approval of the City Council. 
 The City Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a department in an 
individual fund in accordance with these policy guidelines.  Except in emergency 
situations, and only upon prior approval by the City Council, no department shall 
exceed appropriations. 

 
2.19  Authority to transfer appropriations within a department.  The City Manager may 

approve transfers of unencumbered appropriations between general classifications of 
expenditures within a department, provided the transfer amounts do not result in a net 
increase in total appropriations, and further provided that no amounts shall be 
transferred from or to any capital outlay line-item accounts.  All transfers within a 
department shall be reported to the City Council at the next regularly scheduled City 
Council meeting.   

 
2.20  Authority to transfer appropriations between a fund/department.  Transfer of un-

encumbered appropriations in general classifications of expenditures between funds 
or departments shall be approved only by the City Council.  The City Council shall 
also approve any budget modification(s) resulting in a net increase in appropriations, 
or any proposed use of contingency funds. 

 
2.21  The City will strive to receive and retain the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 

presented annually by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).  
 

2.22  Budgets of Enterprise and Internal Service funds shall be self-supporting, i.e., current 
revenues (including retained earnings) will equal or exceed current expenditures 
(excluding depreciation). 

 
2.23  Contingency reserves should be maintained at a level sufficient to provide for 

unanticipated expenditures of a non-recurring nature. 
 

2.24  Budgets of Enterprise and Internal Service funds are prepared on a working capital 
basis, whereby depreciation expenses are not budgeted and capital outlay and debt 
service principal payments are budgeted as expenses. 

 
2.25  Budgets shall integrate performance measures, goals and objectives, service levels 

and productivity measures where appropriate, and provide a means of measuring and 
monitoring performance, goals and productivity. 

 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
  
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 

2.26  The proposed budget should disclose both a "current services level" and an 
"expanded services level" separately.  Current services level is that level of funding 
necessary to provide the same level of services for the upcoming fiscal year that is 
currently being provided.  Expanded services level includes funding requests 
associated with new or expanded service(s), additional personnel or new capital. 

 
Section 3. Capital Improvements. 
 

3.1  The City will develop and maintain a five-year plan for capital improvements. This plan 
shall be reviewed at least annually by the City Council.  Capital improvements for 
planning purposes shall be considered all land, land improvements, building projects, 
infrastructure (i.e., streets, water and wastewater improvements) and equipment 
exceeding $100,000 in cost. 

 
3.2  All capital improvements should be made in accordance with the five-year plan as 

adopted by or presented to the City Council. 
 

3.3  The City Council shall adopt an annual capital budget based on the approved five-
year capital improvement plan.  This capital budget shall identify the sources of 
funding for each capital project authorized for the ensuing fiscal year.  Assessments 
and pro-rata charges may be applied where applicable to fund capital projects. 

 
3.4  The City's capital improvement program shall be coordinated with the operating 

budgets. Operating costs associated with each capital improvement project will be 
identified in the capital budget and included in the appropriate operating budget if the 
project is authorized. 

 
3.5  A capital project status report shall be prepared for the City Council each quarter. 

 
3.6  Interest earnings on bond proceeds shall be credited to the appropriate capital project 

fund. 
 
Section 4. Debt Management. 
 

4.1  Long-term debt shall not be incurred to finance current operations.  Long-term debt 
shall be defined as debt requiring more than five years to retire.  Short-term or interim 
debt shall be defined as debt requiring five (5) years or less to retire, and may be 
used to fund purchases of machinery, equipment (including office equipment) and 
vehicles.   

 
4.2  When any debt is issued to finance capital improvements, the City shall retire the debt 

within a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the projects or improvements 
being financed. 

 
4.3  The average maturity of each general obligation bond issue shall not exceed twenty 

(20) years. 
 

4.4  Total debt service requirements (principal and interest) in any fiscal year should 
generally not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of total expenditures/expenses. 

 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
  
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 

4.5  Total direct debt shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the assessed value of taxable 
property. 

 
4.6  The City shall maintain good communications with the major bond rating agencies 

concerning the City's financial condition, and shall follow a policy of full disclosure in 
every financial report and official bond statement.  The City will maintain sound fiscal 
management practices to maintain and improve current bond ratings. 

 
4.7  Interest and sinking fund and/or debt reserve balances shall be maintained at the 

minimum of the following: (a) equal to fifty (50) percent of the ensuing year's principal 
and interest requirements; or, (b) in accordance with the City's most restrictive bond 
ordinances and/or covenants. 

 
Section 5. Financial Reporting. 
 

5.1  The City will strive to receive and retain the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting awarded annually by the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). 

 
5.2  An annual independent financial audit shall be performed by a properly licenses 

independent public accounting firm, and results of this audit will be presented to the 
City Council by March 31 of the following year in the form of a Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR), in accordance with GAAP and governmental accounting, 
auditing and financial reporting (GAAFR) requirements. 

 
5.3  Timely interim financial reports will be produced for department managers for internal 

purposes.  Departmental reports comparing budget to actual amounts shall be 
prepared by the Finance Department in a timely manner. 

 
5.4  Financial statements shall be prepared on a monthly basis and made available to the 

City Council in a condensed format.  Financial statements shall be prepared and 
presented to the City Council as a formal agenda item on a quarterly basis. 

 
 
Section 6. Purchasing. 
 

6.1  The Finance Director shall be responsible for maintaining written purchasing policies 
and procedures in accordance with State statutes, City ordinances and these policies. 

 
 6.2  Generally, purchases are authorized as follows: 
 

6.2.1 The Finance Director and the Department Head may approve purchases for 
$5,000 or less. 

 
6.2.2 Purchases exceeding $5,000 but less than $50,000 will require detailed 

purchasing specifications, and must be approved by the Department Head, 
the Finance Director and the City Manager. 

 
6.2.3 Purchases exceeding $50,000 will be subject to competitive bidding 

requirements and may be approved only by the City Council.  Formal 
competitive bids shall be required for all purchases in excess of those limits 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
  
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES 
 

established by State statutes.  Purchases below State statute limitations may 
be approved by the Department Head and Finance Director, and/or the City 
Manager in accordance with City statutes and written purchasing policies 
and procedures. 

 
6.3  Lease purchase agreements shall only be used to finance capital items with a 

purchase price exceeding $25,000 and a useful life of at least three years.  All lease 
purchase agreements in excess of limits established by State statutes will be awarded 
by City Council. 

 
6.4  All City purchases should be made locally, to the extent possible. 

 
6.5  The City will enter into interlocal agreements, whenever practical, with entities such as 

the State of Texas, Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments, or Fort Bend 
County in order to take advantage of purchasing contracts with favorable pricing 
arrangements. 

 
Section 7. Cash and Investments. 
 

7.1  The Finance Director shall be responsible for maintaining written policies and 
procedures for all areas of cash and investments, in accordance with State statutes, 
City ordinances and these policies. 

 
7.2  The City will enter into a depository agreement with one or more banks for a specified 

period of time and specified fees for banking services.  The term of each depository 
agreement shall not exceed five (5) years unless otherwise approved by the City 
Council. 

 
7.3  Collection, deposit and disbursement of all funds will be scheduled to ensure 

maximum cash availability and investment earnings. 
 

7.4  The City will obtain the best possible return on cash investments consistent with State 
laws and the City's investment policy. 

 
7.5  The City will utilize the consolidated (pooled) cash method of accounting for cash, 

whereby multiple accounting funds are accounted for in one consolidated (pooled) 
cash bank account.  Consolidated or pooled cash will enhance the City's ability to 
effectively manage the City's investment portfolio, through controlled receipts and 
disbursements functions. 

 
Section 8. General Accounting Guidelines. 
 

8.1  The City Manager is authorized to write off utility accounts less than $1,000 which 
have been delinquent for more than 120 days. These accounts will be aggressively 
pursued for collection by any lawful and available means.  Accounts which are in 
bankruptcy status, involving a claim of $1,000 or less, which requires the City to make 
an election to the bankruptcy court, will be referred to the City Manager, with a recom-
mendation by the City Attorney.  The City Manager shall report all utility write-offs to 
City Council at the next regularly scheduled City Council Meeting.  All accounts 
involving amounts greater than $1,000 shall be referred directly to City Council for 
write off, or further recommended action. 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 
In addition to the previous provisions contained in the City's Charter, the City Council adopted the 
following "Financial Management Goals and Objectives" in November, 2002. 
 
Section 1. General Guidelines. 
 

1.1  The City will establish and maintain a high standard of accounting practices.  The 
City's accounting system shall conform to generally accepted governmental 
accounting principles (GAAP), as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) for governmental entities. 

 
1.2  The City will prepare and maintain in a current status written procedures relating to 

each financial management area. 
 

1.3  The Mayor/City Council shall appoint an Audit/Finance Committee whose members 
shall serve terms of one (1) year.  The Committee will be responsible for 
recommending a certified public accounting firm, as well as monitoring the 
independent audit process and making suggestions regarding internal controls within 
the City.  Members of the Committee shall be comprised of three members of the City 
Council.  Committee staff members will be the City Manager, Finance Director, 
Assistant Finance Director, and Budget Analyst. 

 
1.4  Every three to five years, the City will issue a request for proposal to choose an 

auditor for a period of three years, with an optional one-time two-year extension. 
option. 

 
1.5  These financial management guidelines shall remain in effect until amended by the 

City Council.  In addition, these guidelines shall be reviewed at least annually by the 
Audit/Finance Committee. 

 
Section 2. Operating Budgets. 
 

2.1  Annual estimates of revenue in both the general fund and enterprise funds shall be 
based on historical trends and a reasonable expectation of growth.  A conservative 
approach shall be observed in estimating revenues, so that revenue estimates will not 
be overstated. 

 
2.2  The adoption of a balanced budget, where current resources (current revenues plus 

fund balances or reserves) shall be required.  Current resources will equal or exceed 
current expenditures for each individual fund. 

 
2.3  Fund balances or reserves of operating funds at the end of each fiscal year shall be at 

least twenty percent (20%) of the fund operating expenditures (excluding non-
recurring expenditures), or seventy -two days (72) of total fund operating expenditures 
for the same fiscal year. 

 
2.4  The City should endeavor to maintain a diversified and stable revenue base in order 

to prevent overall revenue shortfalls as a result of periodic fluctuations in any one 
revenue source.  Each existing and potential revenue source will be re-examined 
annually. 

 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 

2.5  The City shall use non-recurring resources (one-time revenues), including reserves 
and fund balances, to fund non-recurring (one-time) expenditures.  Recurring (on-
going) revenues shall be used to fund recurring (on-going) expenditures. 

 
2.6  User charges, rates and fees shall be established at a level related to the cost of 

providing the services.  These charges, rates and fees shall be reviewed annually in 
order to determine the appropriate level of funding anticipated to support the various 
related activities. 

 
2.7  Rates for water and sewer enterprise activities shall be fixed and maintained at levels 

sufficient to ensure that annual revenues will be available to pay all direct and indirect 
costs of the enterprise activity, including costs of operation, capital improvements, 
maintenance, principal and interest requirements on outstanding debt, and interest 
and sinking fund and reserve fund requirements. 

 
2.8  Net earnings of the enterprise funds for any fiscal period shall be at least 1.25 times 

the average annual principal and interest requirements of outstanding debt.  Net 
earnings shall be defined to include non-operating revenues available for debt 
service, excluding depreciation and transfers to other funds. 

 
2.9  Budgets of operating funds shall provide for costs of fully maintaining all City facilities. 

 
2.10  The City shall follow a policy of aggressively pursuing the collection of current and 

delinquent ad valorem taxes, and shall strive to maintain a current ad valorem tax 
collection rate equal to or exceeding 95 percent (95%) of the current levy. 

 
2.11  Sound appraisal procedures and practices will be monitored by the City in order to 

keep property values current.  The City will annually review the various levels of 
property tax exemptions and abatements which may be optionally granted by the City. 

 
2.12  Transfers from enterprise activities to the general fund for administrative services, in-

lieu-of tax payments, and dividends shall not exceed the estimated costs incurred by 
the general fund in providing such services.  The basis for each transfer shall be fully 
explained each year in the proposed budget. 

 
2.13  A contingency budget, to be used in the case of unforeseen items of expenditures, 

shall be established in accordance with Section 9.14 of the Rosenberg City Charter.  
Provision shall be made in the annual budget and in the appropriation ordinances for 
a contingency appropriation of not more than three (3) percent of total General fund 
operating expenditures.  Expenditures from this contingency appropriation shall be 
made only in case of established emergencies, as authorized by the City Council. 

 
2.14  A proposed budget for all funds shall be submitted by the City Manager between sixty 

(60) and ninety (90) days prior to the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year.  The 
proposed budget shall be filed in the Office of the City Secretary, and be available for 
review and inspection by interested citizens during normal business hours. 

 
2.15  Annual fixed-dollar budgets are adopted for all funds except for capital project and 

trust funds for the period beginning October 1 and ending September 30 of the 
following year. Project-based budgets for capital projects are adopted on a project 
basis, and not on a fiscal year basis. 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 

2.16  All budget appropriations (except for capital projects) lapse at year-end (September 
30). Any encumbered appropriations at year-end may be re-appropriated by the City 
Manager in the ensuing fiscal year.  Such re-appropriations shall be subsequently 
reported to City Council. 

 
2.17  All budgets shall be adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with GAAP, as 

applied to governmental entities, with the exception of Enterprise and Internal Service 
funds.  Revenues are budgeted when they become measurable and available.  
Expenditures are charged against the budget when they become measurable, or 
when a liability has been incurred and the liability is expected to be liquidated with 
available current resources.  Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are re-
appropriated in the budgets of the ensuing fiscal year.  For Enterprise and Internal 
Service funds, depreciation is not budgeted, and capital improvements and debt 
service principal payments are budgeted as expenditures/expenses. 

 
2.18  The budget shall be adopted at the legal level of control which is the department 

within the individual fund.  Expenditures may not exceed the legal level of control at 
the department level within an individual fund without the approval of the City Council. 
 The City Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a department in an 
individual fund in accordance with these policy guidelines.  Except in emergency 
situations, and only upon prior approval by the City Council, no department shall 
exceed appropriations. 

 
2.19  Authority to transfer appropriations within a fund/department.  The City Manager may 

approve transfers of unencumbered appropriations between general classifications of 
expenditures within a department, provided the transfer amounts do not result in a net 
increase in total appropriations, and further provided that no amounts shall be 
transferred from or to any capital outlay line-item accounts.  All transfers within a 
department shall be reported to the City Council at the next regularly scheduled City 
Council meeting.   

 
2.20  Authority to transfer appropriations between a fund/department.  Transfer of un-

encumbered appropriations in general classifications of expenditures between funds 
or departments shall be approved only by the City Council.  The City Council shall 
also approve any budget modification(s) resulting in a net increase in appropriations, 
or any proposed use of contingency funds. 

 
2.21  The City will strive to receive and retain the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 

presented annually by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).  
 

2.22  Budgets of Enterprise and Internal Service funds shall be self-supporting, i.e., current 
revenues (including retained earnings) will equal or exceed current expenditures 
(excluding depreciation). 

 
2.23  Contingency reserves should be maintained at a level sufficient to provide for 

unanticipated expenditures of a non-recurring nature. 
 

2.24  Budgets of Enterprise and Internal Service funds are prepared on a working capital 
basis, whereby depreciation expenses are not budgeted and capital outlay and debt 
service principal payments are budgeted as expenses. 

 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 

2.25  Budgets shall integrate performance measures, goals and objectives, service levels 
and productivity measures where appropriate, and provide a means of measuring and 
monitoring performance, goals and productivity. 

 
2.26  The proposed budget should disclose both a "current services level" and an 

"expanded services level" separately.  Current services level is that level of funding 
necessary to provide the same level of services for the upcoming fiscal year that is 
currently being provided.  Expanded services level includes funding requests 
associated with new or expanded service(s), additional personnel or new capital. 

 
Section 3. Capital Improvements. 
 

3.1  The City will develop and maintain a five-year plan for capital improvements. This plan 
shall be reviewed at least annually by the City Council.  Capital improvements for 
planning purposes shall be considered all land, land improvements, building projects, 
infrastructure (i.e., streets, water and wastewater improvements) and equipment 
exceeding $100,000 in cost. 

 
3.2  All capital improvements should be made in accordance with the five-year plan as 

adopted by or presented to the City Council. 
 

3.3  The City Council shall adopt an annual capital budget based on the approved five-
year capital improvement plan.  This capital budget shall identify the sources of 
funding for each capital project authorized for the ensuing fiscal year.  Assessments 
and pro-rata charges may be applied where applicable to fund capital projects. 

 
3.4  The City's capital improvement program shall be coordinated with the operating 

budgets. Operating costs associated with each capital improvement project will be 
identified in the capital budget and included in the appropriate operating budget if the 
project is authorized. 

 
3.5  A capital project status report shall be prepared for the City Council each 

monthquarter. 
 

3.6  Interest earnings on bond proceeds shall be credited to the appropriate capital project 
fund. 

 
Section 4. Debt Management. 
 

4.1  Long-term debt shall not be incurred to finance current operations.  Long-term debt 
shall be defined as debt requiring more than five years to retire.  Short-term or interim 
debt shall be defined as debt requiring five (5) years or less to retire, and may be 
used to fund purchases of machinery, equipment (including office equipment) and 
vehicles.   

 
4.2  When any debt is issued to finance capital improvements, the City shall retire the debt 

within a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the projects or improvements 
being financed. 

 
4.3  The average maturity of each general obligation bond issue shall not exceed twenty 

(20) years. 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 
 

4.4  Total debt service requirements (principal and interest) in any fiscal year should 
generally not exceed twenty-five (25) percent of total expenditures/expenses. 

 
4.5  Total direct debt shall not exceed ten (10) percent of the assessed value of taxable 

property. 
 

4.6  The City shall maintain good communications with the major bond rating agencies 
concerning the City's financial condition, and shall follow a policy of full disclosure in 
every financial report and official bond statement.  The City will maintain sound fiscal 
management practices to maintain and improve current bond ratings. 

 
4.7  Interest and sinking fund and/or debt reserve balances shall be maintained at the 

minimum of the following: (a) equal to fifty (50) percent of the ensuing year's principal 
and interest requirements; or, (b) in accordance with the City's most restrictive bond 
ordinances and/or covenants. 

 
Section 5. Financial Reporting. 
 

5.1  The City will strive to receive and retain the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting awarded annually by the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA). 

 
5.2  An annual independent financial audit shall be performed by a properly licenses 

independent public accounting firm, and results of this audit will be presented to the 
City Council by January March 31 of the following year in the form of a 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), in accordance with GAAP and 
governmental accounting, auditing and financial reporting (GAAFR) requirements. 

 
5.3  Timely interim financial reports will be produced for department managers for internal 

purposes.  Departmental reports comparing budget to actual amounts shall be 
prepared by the Finance Department in a timely manner. 

 
5.4  Financial statements shall be prepared on a monthly basis and made available to the 

City Council in a condensed format.  Financial statements shall be prepared and 
presented to the City Council as a formal agenda item by the Audit/Finance 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

 
 
Section 6. Purchasing. 
 

6.1  The Finance Director shall be responsible for maintaining written purchasing policies 
and procedures in accordance with State statutes, City ordinances and these policies. 

 
 6.2  Generally, purchases are authorized as follows: 
 

6.2.1 The Finance Director and the Department Head may approve purchases for 
$5,000 or less. 

 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 

6.2.2 Purchases exceeding $5,000 but less than $2550,000 will require detailed 
purchasing specifications, and must be approved by the Department Head, 
the Finance Director and the City Manager. 

 
6.2.3 Purchases exceeding $2550,000 will be subject to competitive bidding 

requirements and may be approved only by the City Council.  Formal 
competitive bids shall be required for all purchases in excess of those limits 
established by State statutes.  Purchases below State statute limitations may 
be approved by the Department Head and Finance Director, and/or the City 
Manager in accordance with City statutes and written purchasing policies 
and procedures. 

 
6.3  Lease purchase agreements shall only be used to finance capital items with a 

purchase price exceeding $25,000 and a useful life of at least three years.  All lease 
purchase agreements in excess of limits established by State statutes will be awarded 
by City Council. 

 
6.4  All City purchases should be made locally, to the extent possible. 

 
6.5  The City will enter into interlocal agreements, whenever practical, with entities such as 

the State of Texas, Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments, or Fort Bend 
County in order to take advantage of purchasing contracts with favorable pricing 
arrangements. 

 
Section 7. Cash and Investments. 
 

7.1  The Finance Director shall be responsible for maintaining written policies and 
procedures for all areas of cash and investments, in accordance with State statutes, 
City ordinances and these policies. 

 
7.2  The City will enter into a depository agreement with one or more banks for a specified 

period of time and specified fees for banking services.  The term of each depository 
agreement shall not exceed two (2)five (5) years unless otherwise approved by the 
City Council. 

 
7.3  Collection, deposit and disbursement of all funds will be scheduled to ensure 

maximum cash availability and investment earnings. 
 

7.4  The City will obtain the best possible return on cash investments consistent with State 
laws and the City's investment policy. 

 
7.5  The City will utilize the consolidated (pooled) cash method of accounting for cash, 

whereby multiple accounting funds are accounted for in one consolidated (pooled) 
cash bank account.  Consolidated or pooled cash will enhance the City's ability to 
effectively manage the City's investment portfolio, through controlled receipts and 
disbursements functions. 

 
Section 8. General Accounting Guidelines. 
 

8.1  The City Manager is authorized to write off utility accounts less than $1,000 which 
have been delinquent for more than 120 days. These accounts will be aggressively 



 CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 2013-14 BUDGET 
 
 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVESPOLICIES 
 

pursued for collection by any lawful and available means.  Accounts which are in 
bankruptcy status, involving a claim of $1,000 or less, which requires the City to make 
an election to the bankruptcy court, will be referred to the City Manager, with a recom-
mendation by the City Attorney.  The City Manager shall report all utility write-offs to 
City Council at the next regularly scheduled City Council Meeting.  All accounts 
involving amounts greater than $1,000 shall be referred directly to City Council for 
write off, or further recommended action. 



 
Page 3 of 4 * DRAFT FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE * JANUARY 29, 2014 

February 5, 2013 by Resolution No. R-1613. 
• Joyce Vasut stated that the Committee may take action to move forward with the 

idea that the RDC will provide advance funding for the City and the City will reduce 
RDC’s debt service requirements by the amount estimated in the property taxes. 

 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to move 
forward with the funding for the Rosenberg Business Park with the proposal that the 
Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) will provide advance funding for the City and 
the City will reduce the RDC’s debt service requirements by the amount estimated in the 
property taxes.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES, AND TAKE ACTION 
AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary:  The City’s existing Financial Management Goals and Objectives were 
approved by City Council in 2002.  The goals and objectives state that they should be reviewed 
and approved annually by City Council. Attached you will find a copy of the original Financial 
Management Goals and Objectives as approved by the City Council in 2002, as well as a 
redlined copy with recommended changes. 
Staff presented the recommended changes to the Committee and addressed any 
questions that the Committee members may have.  
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut said the Financial Management Goals and Objectives were not 
brought to the Finance Audit Committee every year, but were included in the 
budget.  In the future, she plans to bring to both the Committee and the Council on 
an annual basis for review. 

• Joyce Vasut pointed out the changes she made to the Financial Management 
Goals and Objectives and is renaming them Financial Management Policies.  Many 
of the changes were wording changes.  Some of the changes were made because 
processes had changed and the policy needed to be updated.  A change was 
recommended to be made in Section 3.5 to read “quarterly”, instead of “monthly”. 
 

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to accept 
the changes to the Financial Management Policies as discussed and presented. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY OF ROSENBERG ORGANIZATION CHART, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY.   
Executive Summary:  City Manager Robert Gracia will present the City of Rosenberg 
Organization Chart and discuss proposed changes. 
Key discussion points: 

• Robert Gracia handed out an Organization Chart with proposed revisions. 
• City Manager (Robert Gracia) will supervise the following: City Secretary, 

Communications Director, Economic Development Director, City Attorney, 
Assistant City Manager – Public Services, Police Chief (Police Operations; 
Emergency Management; Animal Control; School Officers & Crossing Guards),  
Fire Chief (Fire Operations and Fire Marshal), Executive Director of Administrative 
Services, Executive Director of Community Development and Executive Director of 
Support Services.   

• Titles have been revised as follows: Executive Director of Support Services (Jeff 
Trinker) will supervise Parks & Recreation (Civic Center); Contract 
Administration/Purchasing; Fleet Maintenance; and Facilities Maintenance; 
Executive Director of Community Development (Travis Tanner) will supervise 
Planning (GIS); Building Official (Code Enforcement and Health); and Cemetery; 
Executive Director of Administrative Services (Joyce Vasut) will supervise 
Finance (Customer Service and Municipal Court); and Human Resources; and 
Assistant City Manager Public Services (John Maresh) will supervise the Public 
Works Director, the Utility Director; Project Director; and City Engineer. 

• A 2006 study recommended the Public Works be separated into two divisions: 
Utilities and Public Works.  The Public Works Director Karl Zwahr will take the new 

joycev
Rectangle



 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
February 18, 2014 

 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Resolution No. R- 1755 – Rosenberg Business Park Funding 
 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1755, a Resolution regarding a funding arrangement by and 
between the City of Rosenberg and the Rosenberg Development Corporation for the infrastructure 
improvements to serve the Rosenberg Business Park. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ]  One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1755 
2. Rosenberg Business Park Financial Analysis 
3. Resolution No. R-1613 – 02-05-13 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-05-13 
5. Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-14-13 
6. Finance/Audit Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 01-29-14 

 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney  LJL/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Interim Economic Development Director RK/rl 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On February 05, 2013, the Rosenberg City Council approved Resolution No. R-1613, authorizing the City 
Manager to negotiate and execute a Development Agreement (Agreement), by and among the City, Rosenberg 
Development Corporation (RDC) and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., for the development of the Rosenberg 
Business Park. 
 
Per this Agreement, the City and RDC will construct the public improvements which include the water distribution 
system, sanitary sewer, storm sewer drainage, paving improvements, installation of natural gas lines and 
electrical services.  These improvements have been divided into two (2) phases, with Phase I estimated at 
$3,478,300 and Phase II estimated at $1,700,000.  The City and RDC will each fund fifty percent (50%) of the 
improvements.  The RDC had agreed to advance their funding and has also agreed to advance the City’s 
portion.   
 
At the November 14, 2013 RDC Board meeting, the Board agreed to propose a request to City Council to lower 
the debt the RDC owes the City in return for funding the City’s portion of the Rosenberg Business Park.  This 
option was presented to the Finance /Audit Committee on January 29, 2014.  The RDC’s Debt Schedule is 
proposed to be decreased each year based on the anticipated new property taxes created by the Rosenberg 



Business Park until the City’s portion of the advance funding is repaid.  The attached Rosenberg Business Park 
Financial Analysis summarizes the estimated amount of property taxes to be collected based on building 
projections.  
 
The Finance/Audit Committee reviewed the funding option as presented and recommends approval of this 
option.  The RDC will consider a Resolution regarding same at the regularly scheduled RDC meeting on 
February 13, 2014.  The Finance/Audit Committee and City staff recommend approval of Resolution No. R-1755.   
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1755 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, REGARDING A FUNDING ARRANGEMENT BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND THE 
ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR THE 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO SERVE THE ROSENBERG 
BUSINESS PARK. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
WHEREAS, The Rosenberg Development Corporation (“RDC”) Strategic Plan, 

adopted in 2008, established as a priority the development of a business park in the 

City of Rosenberg (“City”); and, 

WHEREAS, the RDC and City staff worked with a developer who purchased a 

184-acre tract in order to develop a business park within the corporate limits of the City; 

and, 

 WHEREAS, on February 05, 2013, the Rosenberg City Council approved 

Resolution No. R-1613, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and 

execute, for an on behalf of the City, a Development Agreement (“Agreement”), by and 

among the City, RDC, and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., for the development of the 

Rosenberg Business Park; and, 

 WHEREAS, on February 14, 2013, the RDC Board of Directors authorized the 

Executive Director to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the RDC, a 

Development Agreement, by and among the RDC, the City, and Rosenberg Business 

Park, Ltd., for the development of the Rosenberg Business Park; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1.  Pursuant to Section 3 of said Development Agreement 

(Agreement), the City will construct the infrastructure improvements (“improvements”) 

which include the water distribution system, sanitary sewer, storm sewer drainage, 



2 
 

paving improvements, installation of natural gas lines, and electrical services in two (2) 

phases. The cost of Phase I is estimated to be $3,478,300 and Phase II is estimated to 

be $1,700,000.   

Section 2. The City and RDC will each fund fifty percent (50%) of said 

improvements pursuant to Section 3(c) of said Agreement.   

Section 3. On November 14, 2013, the RDC Board agreed to propose a 

request to the City that the RDC’s debt be lowered in return for the RDC’s advance 

funding of approximately fifty percent (50%) of the City’s portion of the Rosenberg 

Business Park Phase I improvements. 

 Section 4. On January 29, 2014, the Rosenberg Finance/Audit Committee 

recommended approval to City Council of the RDC’s proposed request to reduce the 

amount of RDC debt owed to the City by approximately $1,700,000.   

Section 5. That the City agrees to the reduction in RDC debt each year until  

the total amount of $1,700,000 is reduced from RDC’s debt, and agrees to approve the 

new RDC debt schedule with the stated reductions as summarized therein, attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A”, and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED on this _____ day of _____________ 
2014.  

    
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



Total Adjustment Adjusted
Fiscal Principal Total Principal & for Business Principal &
Year Due Interest Interest Park Interest

2013-14 779,700 219,694 999,394 999,394        
2014-15 802,235 197,708 999,943 35,000           964,943        
2015-16 652,770 177,221 829,991 35,000           794,991        
2016-17 657,305 160,476 817,781 113,000         704,781        
2017-18 672,840 147,957 820,797 113,000         707,797        
2018-19 687,875 126,890 814,765 113,000         701,765        
2019-20 703,410 104,444 807,854 113,000         694,854        
2020-21 382,980 85,627 468,607 191,000         277,607        
2021-22 387,515 71,341 458,856 191,000         267,856        
2022-23 284,800 59,162 343,962 270,000         73,962          
2023-24 297,835 48,994 346,829 270,000         76,829          
2024-25 228,190 39,216 267,406 256,000         11,406          
2025-26 236,225       29,874 266,099 266,099        
2026-27 247,295       19,974 267,269 267,269        
2027-28 255,330       9,557 264,887 264,887        
2028-29 71,400         2,621 74,021 74,021          
2029-30 23,005         489 23,494 23,494          

Total $7,370,710 $1,501,245 $8,871,955 1,700,000    $7,171,955

Outstanding Debt Service

Rosenberg Development Corporation

 7

joycev
Rectangle

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1755



Project 

Year

Calendar 

Year New Construction

Cumulative 

Valuation

Annual Taxes 

Collected

Cumulative Taxes 

Collected

1 2013 $0 $0 $0 $0

2 2014 $6,822,759 $6,822,759 $34,796 $34,796

3 2015 $0 $6,822,759 $34,796 $69,592

4 2016 $15,276,492 $22,099,251 $112,706 $182,298

5 2017 $0 $22,099,251 $112,706 $295,005

6 2018 $0 $22,099,251 $112,706 $407,711

7 2019 $0 $22,099,251 $112,706 $520,417

8 2020 $15,436,575 $37,535,826 $191,433 $711,850

9 2021 $0 $37,535,826 $191,433 $903,282

10 2022 $15,436,575 $52,972,401 $270,159 $1,173,442

11 2023 $0 $52,972,401 $270,159 $1,443,601

12 2024 $15,436,575 $68,408,976 $348,886 $1,792,487

13 2025 $0 $68,408,976 $348,886 $2,141,372

14 2026 $15,436,575 $83,845,551 $427,612 $2,568,985

15 2027 $0 $83,845,551 $427,612 $2,996,597

16 2028 $15,436,575 $99,282,126 $506,339 $3,502,936

17 2029 $0 $99,282,126 $506,339 $4,009,275

18 2030 $15,436,575 $114,718,701 $585,065 $4,594,340

19 2031 $0 $114,718,701 $585,065 $5,179,405

20 2032 $15,436,575 $130,155,276 $663,792 $5,843,197

21 2033 $0 $130,155,276 $663,792 $6,506,989

22 2034 $15,436,575 $145,591,851 $742,518 $7,249,508

23 2035 $0 $145,591,851 $742,518 $7,992,026

24 2036 $15,436,575 $161,028,426 $821,245 $8,813,271

25 2037 $0 $161,028,426 $821,245 $9,634,516

26 2038 $12,987,305 $174,015,731 $887,480 $10,521,996

27 2039 $0 $174,015,731 $887,480 $11,409,476

28 2040 $0 $174,015,731 $887,480 $12,296,957

29 2041 $0 $174,015,731 $887,480 $13,184,437

30 2042 $0 $174,015,731 $887,480 $14,071,917

reneel
Text Box
Rosenberg Business Park Financial Analysis































































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



 
Page 1 of 4 * DRAFT FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE * JANUARY 29, 2014 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

On this 29th day of January, 2014, the Finance Audit Committee met in a regular session held at 
the Rosenberg City Hall Council Office, located at 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 
 
PRESENT: 
William Benton   Councilor At Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy  Councilor At Large, Position 2 
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 1 
Robert Gracia   City Manager 
Linda Cernosek   City Secretary 
Joyce Vasut   Finance Director 
Maritza Salazar   Budget Analyst 
Luis Garza   Payroll Clerk 
Jeff Trinker   Assistant to the City Manager 
John Maresh   Assistant City Manager 
 
Call to Order: 
Joyce Vasut, Finance Director called the meeting to order at 12:10 p.m. 
 
1. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

MINUTES FOR NOVEMBER 18, 2013. 
Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve the 
Finance/Audit Committee Meeting minutes for the November 18, 2013 meeting.  The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS FUNDING FOR THE ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary:  The Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) Strategic Plan, 
adopted in 2008, established as a priority the development of a deed-restricted business 
park in the City of Rosenberg.  Staff worked with a Houston-area developer with 
experience in developing business parks who later purchased a 184-acre tract. On 
February 05, 2013, the Rosenberg City Council approved Resolution No. R-1613, a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the 
City, a Development Agreement, by and among the City, Rosenberg Development 
Corporation and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., for the development of the Rosenberg 
Business Park. 
 
Per this agreement, the City will construct the public improvements which include the water 
distribution system, sanitary sewer, storm sewer drainage, paving improvements, installation of 
natural gas lines and electrical services.  These improvements have been divided into two 
phases, with Phase I estimated at $3,478,300 and Phase II estimated at $1,700,000.  The City 
and RDC will each fund fifty percent (50%) of the improvements.  RDC had agreed to advance 
their funding and has also agreed to advance the City’s portion.   
 
At the November 14, 2013 RDC Board meeting, the Board agreed to request City Council lower 
the debt RDC owes the City in return for funding the City’s portion of the Rosenberg Business 
Park.  This option is presented as an adjustment to RDC’s Debt Schedule.  Another option would 
be for the City to rebate the new property taxes created by the Business Park to the RDC each 
year until the City’s portion of the advance funding is repaid.  The Rosenberg Business Park 
Financial Analysis summarizes the estimated amount of property taxes to be collected based on 
building projections.  
 
Staff will present the information included in the packet and answer any question the 
committee members may have. 
 
 

joycev
Rectangle



 
Page 2 of 4 * DRAFT FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE * JANUARY 29, 2014 

Key discussion points: 
• Joyce Vasut, Finance Director gave the history and explained the information 

presented in the executive summary. 
• Joyce Vasut highlighted the Public Improvements and the Funding of the Public 

Improvements in the agreement that she is discussing.  Joyce Vasut provided the 
estimate of the timeframe when the new development would take place and 
calculations of the amount of proposed property taxes that the City should receive 
off of the new development. 

• The other schedules reviewed were the Rosenberg Development Corporation 
Status of Outstanding Debt Service.  Since RDC had committed to advance 
funding this project, the RDC would fund the City portion, which is $1.7M and the 
City would reduce the debt payments that the RDC owes the City by the estimated 
amount of property taxes generated from the new development. So, it will be a 
wash to the City’s general fund.  The City will receive tax money to pay a portion of 
RDC’s debt up to the $1.7M amount.  The last schedule showed the adjustments 
for the business park, based on the estimates and the balances that the RDC will 
pay the City each year.  The RDC board asked that we bring this to the City 
Council since the City does not have $1.7M to spend at this time.  RDC will pay for 
the construction cost for Phase 1.  Phase 2 is not being considered at this time. 

• Councilor Euton commented that this is a very creative way of financing this 
project, and she feels it is an excellent idea. 

• Joyce Vasut said if everything goes as planned the property tax on the new 
developments will pay for the infrastructure improvements in eleven (11) years, 
based on the estimates and the current property tax rate.   

• Councilor McConathy had several questions on the agreement, as follows: 
• 1) Page 3 (last sentence before the box) which reads: “The Developer is not liable 

to the City for any subsequent changes in deed restrictions that are made after the 
Developer no longer owns a majority interest in the Property.” She stated that this 
sentence seems to conflict with 3.a.i.: “The Developer has recorded approved deed 
restrictions (described in Section 2 above) as a covenant running with the land that 
binds all future owners of the Property;”.  Her question is: we want to hold the land 
in some type of obligation to the deed restriction.  From a legal perspective can we 
hold the current as well as future owners to the deeds? 

• 2) Top of page 4; the word “to” needs to be inserted in the first sentence: “The City 
agrees to use”. 

• 3) Page 5, Item 4.b., I understand we are going to continue to charge impact fees, 
are we waiving any other fees required on this construction project? 

• 4) Page 6, b. Performance Requirements, iii. “convey the Ditch to the City and 
forego any rights to reimbursement; and”…  This seems to conflict with the sixth 
sentence under b.iv. “The City agrees to credit against the Reimbursement Amount 
the costs of the Ditch and the value of the right of way donated to the City,” it 
seems like the word “monetary” should be inserted before the word reimbursement 
under b.iii. to read: iii. “Convey the Ditch to the City and forego any rights to 
monetary reimbursement; and” 

• 5) Page 7, d. Removal of Special Appraisal. For record keeping, how is the City 
going to track if this particular circumstance should occur with the removal from the 
Property all special appraisals for agricultural use, open space, etc…It says the 
City will not be required to invoice the developer. 

• 6) Page 9, under 11. Insurance.  Will the City or the Developer administer the bid 
process and the selection of the design and contractors? John Maresh answered 
the City has hired IDS to follow the City’s obligations. 

• 7) Page 12, under i. has Matt Fielder’s name. Should the name be changed?   
• 8) Page 13, under Item 17. What abatements, if any, did we agree to?  Jeff Trinker 

stated no abatements.  The abatements may come into play with the actual 
relocation of businesses.  Jeff Trinker stated that Matt Fielder would usually put in 
infrastructure as an incentive, especially if that would benefit other businesses or 
future businesses in the area. 

• 9) Page 13, under Item 20.  Is a twenty-five (25) year term standard? 
• Joyce Vasut stated she would take these comments back to Lora Lenzsch, City 

Attorney for review, but this agreement was previously approved by the City on 

joycev
Rectangle



 
Page 3 of 4 * DRAFT FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE * JANUARY 29, 2014 

February 5, 2013 by Resolution No. R-1613. 
• Joyce Vasut stated that the Committee may take action to move forward with the 

idea that the RDC will provide advance funding for the City and the City will reduce 
RDC’s debt service requirements by the amount estimated in the property taxes. 

 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to move 
forward with the funding for the Rosenberg Business Park with the proposal that the 
Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) will provide advance funding for the City and 
the City will reduce the RDC’s debt service requirements by the amount estimated in the 
property taxes.  The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES, AND TAKE ACTION 
AS NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary:  The City’s existing Financial Management Goals and Objectives were 
approved by City Council in 2002.  The goals and objectives state that they should be reviewed 
and approved annually by City Council. Attached you will find a copy of the original Financial 
Management Goals and Objectives as approved by the City Council in 2002, as well as a 
redlined copy with recommended changes. 
Staff presented the recommended changes to the Committee and addressed any 
questions that the Committee members may have.  
 
Key discussion points: 

• Joyce Vasut said the Financial Management Goals and Objectives were not 
brought to the Finance Audit Committee every year, but were included in the 
budget.  In the future, she plans to bring to both the Committee and the Council on 
an annual basis for review. 

• Joyce Vasut pointed out the changes she made to the Financial Management 
Goals and Objectives and is renaming them Financial Management Policies.  Many 
of the changes were wording changes.  Some of the changes were made because 
processes had changed and the policy needed to be updated.  A change was 
recommended to be made in Section 3.5 to read “quarterly”, instead of “monthly”. 
 

Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to accept 
the changes to the Financial Management Policies as discussed and presented. The 
motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS CITY OF ROSENBERG ORGANIZATION CHART, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY.   
Executive Summary:  City Manager Robert Gracia will present the City of Rosenberg 
Organization Chart and discuss proposed changes. 
Key discussion points: 

• Robert Gracia handed out an Organization Chart with proposed revisions. 
• City Manager (Robert Gracia) will supervise the following: City Secretary, 

Communications Director, Economic Development Director, City Attorney, 
Assistant City Manager – Public Services, Police Chief (Police Operations; 
Emergency Management; Animal Control; School Officers & Crossing Guards),  
Fire Chief (Fire Operations and Fire Marshal), Executive Director of Administrative 
Services, Executive Director of Community Development and Executive Director of 
Support Services.   

• Titles have been revised as follows: Executive Director of Support Services (Jeff 
Trinker) will supervise Parks & Recreation (Civic Center); Contract 
Administration/Purchasing; Fleet Maintenance; and Facilities Maintenance; 
Executive Director of Community Development (Travis Tanner) will supervise 
Planning (GIS); Building Official (Code Enforcement and Health); and Cemetery; 
Executive Director of Administrative Services (Joyce Vasut) will supervise 
Finance (Customer Service and Municipal Court); and Human Resources; and 
Assistant City Manager Public Services (John Maresh) will supervise the Public 
Works Director, the Utility Director; Project Director; and City Engineer. 

• A 2006 study recommended the Public Works be separated into two divisions: 
Utilities and Public Works.  The Public Works Director Karl Zwahr will take the new 

joycev
Rectangle



 
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
February 18, 2014 

 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Resolution No. R- 1756 - Budget Amendment 14-08 
 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1756, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14-08 in the amount of $44,538.81, to fund a change order as 
approved by the Rosenberg Development Corporation for the Seatex/State Highway 36 Drainage Project. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X]  One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[   ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[  ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

See attached 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1756 
2. Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-14-13 

 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Joyce Vasut 
Executive Director of 
Administrative Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

At the November 14, 2013 Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) meeting, a change order for the 
Seatex/State Highway 36 Drainage Project was considered by the Board.  The purpose of the change 
order is to fund additional work to hand-dig a section around a previously unknown telecommunications 
cable in the project area.  The change order was approved by the RDC. 
 
Budget  Amendment  14‐08,  in  the  amount  of  $44,538.81,  is  presented  to  allow  for  the  transfer of 
$44,538.81 from the Rosenberg Development Corporation (RDC) Fund Balance to the RDC Projects Fund 
to provide funding for the change order for the Seatex/State Highway 36 Drainage Project. 
 
Based on governmental accounting standards, the $44,538.81 is included twice in the total budget 
adjustment amount since it is considered both a transfer expense to the RDC Fund and a capital expense 
to the RDC Projects Fund. 
 
Budget Amendment 14-08 is included as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1756.  Staff recommends approval of 
Resolution No. R-1756 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1756 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, BUDGET AMENDMENT 14-08 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$44,538.81, TO FUND A CHANGE ORDER AS APPROVED BY THE 
ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR THE 
SEATEX/STATE HIGHWAY 36 DRAINAGE PROJECT. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes Budget Amendment 14-08 

(Amendment), in the amount of $44,538.81, for the transfer of Rosenberg Development 

Corporation funds for a change order for the Seatex/State Highway 36 Drainage 

Project.  A copy of such Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part 

hereof for all purposes.  

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



NUMBER: 14‐08

Fund Departments: Fiscal Year: 2013‐14

Item [     ]  was  [ X  ]  was not included in the Department's original budget request.

Type of expenditure:  (    ) Recurring   (  X  ) Nonrecurring

Type of adjustment:   (     ) line‐item transfer [    ] department transfer
(  X  ) request for additional funds [    ] accounting correction

The budget amendment requested will require the following revisions:

FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS ACCOUNT(S): ORIGINAL REQUESTED AMENDED
 ACCOUNT NUMBER  BUDGET (1)   TRANSFER   BUDGET  

219‐0000‐350‐0000 Fund Balance 5,042,489.00$          44,538.81$     5,087,027.81$   

‐                     

TOTAL 5,042,489.00$          44,538.81$     5,087,027.81$   

REVENUE ACCOUNT(S): ORIGINAL REQUESTED AMENDED
 ACCOUNT NUMBER  BUDGET (1)   TRANSFER   BUDGET  

225‐0000‐481‐3000 Transfer from RDC Fund 2,914,000.00$          44,538.81$     2,958,538.81$   

      ‐                     

TOTAL 2,914,000.00$          44,538.81$     2,958,538.81$   

EXPENSE ACCOUNT(S):
219‐7000‐540‐9225 Transfer to RDC Projects Fund 2,914,000.00$          44,538.81$     2,958,538.81$   

225‐7000‐540‐7030  (CP1207) Improvements O/T Building ‐ Seatex Project 3,313,390.49$          44,538.81$     3,357,929.30     

‐                     

‐                     

TOTAL 6,227,390.49$          89,077.62$     6,316,468.11$   

 (1) INCLUDES PREVIOUSLY APPROVED AMENDMENTS

Reason for Amendment:  Please explain the reason(s) the amendment is requested.

This budget adjustment will transfer funds from RDC Fund to the RDC Projects Fund for the change order approved
for the State Highway 36 Drainage Project.
 

02/10/2014
Director of Finance Date   City Manager Date  

Mayor/City Council Date  

ACCOUNTING USE ONLY: DATE POSTED:_______________ POSTED BY:_______________

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

219 & 225

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

RDC & RDC Projects Fund

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1756





CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Resolution No. R-1758 – Awarding Bid for 2014 Family 4th Celebration 
Fireworks Display 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1758, a Resolution awarding a bid for the July 04, 2014, 
Family 4th Celebration fireworks display; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, an Agreement, and/or all necessary documentation regarding same.   
FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[  ]  Recurring 
[  ]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [  ] N/A 

Source of Funds: 

212-1900-540-5315 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #: N/A 
1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal – Pyro Shows of Texas, Inc. 
3. Acosta Memorandum- 02-06-14  
4. Resolution No. R-1758 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Lydia Acosta 
Recreation Programs 
Coordinator 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney 
[   ] City Engineer 
[X]  Parks and Recreation Director  
[X]  Exec. Dir. of Support Services 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council:   

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A Request for Written Quotations was posted to state-licensed pyrotechnic companies on January 10, 2014, and 
distributed to sixteen (16) pyrotechnics providers.  Potential providers were asked to submit pricing for one (1) year 
along with two (2) optional one-year extensions, should the City decide to use the same company for consecutive 
years.  Staff received five (5) written quotations and five (5) no-bids.  The proposals received are summarized in the 
attached bid summary form.     
 
Staff has reviewed the proposals and bidder qualifications and recommends acceptance of the bid from the Texas-
based company providing the best show for the value over three (3) years, Pyro Shows of Texas, Inc. (Pyro Shows).  
Pyro Show’s quote for the first year and the two (2) optional one-year extensions is $30,000 per year, representing a 
cumulative three-year total of $90,000.  Although Pyro Show’s cost in the first year is $1,552 higher than the lowest bid, 
the company’s pre-bid site visit, combined with a substantial shell count and higher numbers of medium and large 
shells, represents the high-quality fireworks show that the community has come to expect. Evaluating the cost over 
three (3) years, Pyro Show’s cumulative total would be within the City’s budget for a pyrotechnic display.    
 
Pyro Shows offered eight (8) municipal and civic organizations as references. Of the agencies contacted, all reported 
multiple years using the company, quality pyrotechnic shows and professional customer service.    
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1758, a Resolution awarding a bid for the July 04, 2014, Family 4th 
Celebration fireworks display; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, 
an Agreement, and/or all necessary documentation regarding same. Should City Council award the bid as 
recommended, the proposal will serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1758.
 



BID SUMMARY
2014 FAMILY 4TH FIREWORKS DISPLAY

BID # COMPANY LIABILITY NO. OF SHELLS  SHELL SIZES LENGTH OF SHOW TOTAL BIDS 3 YR. TOTAL
COVERAGE (Year 1) (Year 2) (Year 3)

1 Pyro Shows of Texas $3,000,000 1428 3"‐10" 20 mins $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $90,000

2 Magic in the Sky $5,000,000 1930‐2509 3"‐10" 20 mins $28,448 $29,108 $29,784 $87,340

3 Zambelli $2,000,000 1726 3"‐10" 19‐21 mins $28,500 $29,000 $30,000 $87,500

4 Bay Fireworks $2,000,000 1022 ea. yr. 3"‐8" 20 mins $30,000 $30,000 $31,000 $91,000

5 Celestial Displays, LLC $2,000,000 819‐1102 ea. yr. 3"‐10" 20‐22 mins $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $90,000

6 Fireworks Artistry No Bid

7 G. W. Kovar Co. No Bid

8 Illumination Fireworks, LLC No Bid

9 Melrose Pyrotechnics, Inc. No Bid

10 Pyrotex, Inc. No Bid









































  Memo 
To: Darren McCarthy 

From: Lydia Acosta 

Date: February 6, 2014 

Re: 2014 Fireworks Display – Bid Summary/Company Recommendation 

Below are my recommendations for top three companies for 2014 July 4th fireworks display:  
 
#1 PYRO SHOWS OF TEXAS 
     Pros: 

• Made pre-bid site visit to see event/shoot site and terrain 
• Will use multiple, safe launch sites to maximize audience view and show effects 
• Will provide the most 10" shells of top three bidders (8) 
• More 4" and 5" shells than other bids 
• Not using any cakes/barrages 
• National company with Texas-based branch 

     Cons: 
• Highest of the three low bidders  
• Lowest total shell count of the three low bidders (1428) 
(Company indicated that shell count should roughly equal number of seconds in show; CofR show is 1200 seconds long) 

 
#2 MAGIC IN THE SKY 
     Pros: 

• Highest in overall shell count (1930 or 2509 depending on option) 
• Will provide 10" shells (4) 
• Lowest bidder of top three low bids  
• Texas-based company 

     Cons: 
• No pre-bid site visit 
• Using cakes/barrages 
• Using twice or three times as many 3" shells versus 4" or 5" shells 

 
#3 ZAMBELLI 
     Pros: 

• Second in overall shell count (1726) 
• Will provide 10" shells (3) 
• Second lowest bidder of top three low bids 

     Cons: 
• No pre-bid site visit 
• Using cakes/barrages 
• Using four times as many 3" shells versus 4" or 5" shells 
• East Coast based 

 
 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1758 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING A BID FOR THE JULY 04, 2014, 
FAMILY 4th CELEBRATION FIREWORKS DISPLAY; AND, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AN 
AGREEMENT, AND/OR ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION  
REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of a bid to ________________________in 

the amount of $___________ for the July 04, 2014, Family 4th Celebration fireworks 

display in the City of Rosenberg, Texas. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014.  

  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 Rosenberg Special Events Committee Recommendation 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a proposal to combine the Special Events Committee and Parks and 
Recreation Board. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
 

1. McCarthy Memorandum – 12-13-13 
2. Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 01-23-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Darren McCarthy 
Parks and Recreation 
Director 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney  
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Support Services 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

To eliminate redundancies, staff presented to the Parks and Recreation Board (Board) a proposal to 
combine the Rosenberg Special Events Committee with the Board.  This would eliminate the Rosenberg 
Special Events Committee.  After reviewing the proposal, the Board unanimously approved the proposal.  
 
Per Ordinance, the Board can have as few as seven (7) members and as many as thirteen (13) members.  
The proposed combination would create a Board of ten (10) members.  If the proposal is approved, staff 
anticipates combining the Special Events Committee with the Board for the regularly scheduled Parks and 
Recreation Board meeting on March 27, 2014.   
 
Staff recommends combining the Rosenberg Special Events Committee with the Parks and Recreation 
Board and eliminating the Rosenberg Special Events Committee. 
 



Memo 
To:  Mr. Robert Gracia, City Manager 

Date: December 13, 2013 

Re: Rosenberg Special Events Committee Recommendation      

On December 12th the Rosenberg Special Events Committee had a scheduled meeting for 
6:00 pm at the Rosenberg Civic Center.  It was the second consecutive meeting where the 
Committee did not have a quorum.  The last meeting that had a quorum was on October 10th. 
 
To eliminate redundancies, staff is proposing combining the Special Events Committee with 
the Parks Board.  This would eliminate the need for the Special Events Committee. 
 
Currently, there is a significant overlap of members on both the Committee and the Board.  
Additionally, the Council liaison is the same for both the Committee and the Board.  Should 
you and Council consider this proposal, the new Parks Board would consist of the following 
members: 
 
Teresa Bailey 
Laurie Cook 
Melissa Dixon 
Rufus Guebarra III 
Rudy Guerrero 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Ray Kueck 
Stanley Kucherka 
Eric Ramirez 
George Zepeda 
 
Council Representative: Amanda Bolf 
 
John Dorman and Curtis Matheaus have notified the City in writing that they will no longer be 
able to participate in either meeting due to time and date changes.  Melissa Dixon has also 
indicated that she may not be able to participate regularly due to the time and date changes.  
Per Ordinance, the Parks Board can consist of as few as seven (7) and as many as thirteen 
(13) members.  The combination of the Committee and Board above would consist of ten 
(10) members.   
 
With your permission, we would like to review this proposal with the Parks Board at their 
regularly scheduled meeting on January 23, 2014.  Should the Parks Board recommend this 
proposal, we would bring it to City Council for consideration on February 18, 2014. 
 
Please let me know if you need any additional information. 
 
Cc: Matt Fielder, Economic Development Director 
 Lydia Acosta, Recreation Programs Coordinator 
 

                                   From the desk of 
                        Darren McCarthy, CPRP 

         Parks and Recreation Director 
 



DRAFT 

PAGE 1 of 1  PARKS & RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES  JANUARY 23, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF ROSENBERG 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

*** DRAFT *** 
 
On this the 23rd day of January 2014, the Parks and Recreation Board of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend 
County, Texas, met in a Regular Session at Rosenberg Civic Center located at 3825 Hwy. 36 South, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  
Teresa Bailey 
Stanley Kucherka 
Bertha Nell Kelm 
Laurie Cook 
Eric Ramirez 
George Zepeda 
Amanda Bolf 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Vice Chairman  
Parks and Recreation Board Secretary  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Council Liaison 

MEMBERS ABSENT  
Rufus Guebara 
Ray Kueck 
 

Parks and Recreation Board Member 
Parks and Recreation Board Member  
 

STAFF PRESENT  
Jeff Trinker 
Darren McCarthy 
Lydia Acosta 
 

Assistant to the City Manager 
Parks and Recreation Director  
Recreation Programs Coordinator 

GUESTS PRESENT  
Rick Adams 
Joshua Hicks 

Coastal Prairie Chapter of Texas Master Naturalists 
Boy Scout Troop 1656 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON COMBINING PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD AND SPECIAL 
EVENTS COMMITTEE. 
 
Key Discussion:  Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director, explained to the Board that now that the 
Parks Department was in charge of the two large special events in town (Christmas in Rosenberg and Family 
4th), he noticed that many of the members of the Special Events Committee were the same citizens who serve 
on the Parks and Recreation Board. He also noted that Councilor Bolf served as liaison to both groups. 
Therefore, he asked Members to consider making a recommendation to merge the two committees into one, 
thereby reducing redundancy and streamlining the responsibilities of both groups’ members, as well as staff. 
Laurie Cook asked what the Special Committee does. Teresa Bailey – a Member of both groups – noted that 
the Special Events Committee served as an advisory committee for Christmas in Rosenberg and Family 4th and 
nothing more. By combining the groups, Darren explained that with City Council’s approval, Special Event 
Committee members Rudy Guerrero and Melissa Dixon would be added to the Parks and Recreation Board, 
noting that Curtis Matheaus had formally resigned. Darren added that the Parks and Recreation Board would 
continue to meet on the fourth Thursday of the month at 6:00 pm.   
 
ACTION:  Eric Ramirez made a motion, seconded by Stanley Kucherka, to combine the members of the Special 
Events committee with the Parks and Recreation Board. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of those 
present.   
 
 

  



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 Ordinance No. 2014-10 - Flood Prevention and Control 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-10, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by deleting Articles I, II, and III of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor new Articles I, II, and III of Chapter 
12 thereof; providing for general definitions and guidelines for flood prevention and control, administrative 
procedures, and provisions for flood hazard reduction; providing a penalty not to exceed $500 for violation 
of any provision hereof; and providing for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

  MUD #:  N/A 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-10 – Redline 
2. Ordinance No. 2014-10 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Executive Director of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[X] City Attorney LJL/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) for Fort Bend County and all incorporated areas within the 
County has been updated and reissued by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  The 
primary changes in the maps were based on modifications to the Brazos River flows and improved terrain 
mapping with LiDAR elevations.  This resulted in an increase in the Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) along 
the Brazos River, generally increasing the width of the floodplain along the Brazos River.  Within the City, 
the improved terrain mapping resulted in removal of a large portion of Cambridge Village from the 
floodplain.   
 
These new FIRMs have an effective date of April 04, 2014.  Therefore, Chapter 12 of the Code of 
Ordinances needs to be updated to adopt these new maps. 
 
In addition, Chapter 12 has been amended to be in agreement with our design standards which require 
that structures in a regulatory floodplain be elevated to twelve (12) inches above the BFE.  There are 
additional “housekeeping” revisions to Chapter 12 within the Texas Water Development Board sample 
ordinance that are included in this amended Ordinance such as updated and additional definitions. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-10 as presented. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ARTICLES I, II, AND III 
OF CHAPTER 12 AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR NEW ARTICLES I, 
II, AND III OF CHAPTER 12 THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR GENERAL 
DEFINITIONS AND GUIDELINES FOR FLOOD PREVENTION AND 
CONTROL, ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, AND PROVISIONS FOR 
FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO 
EXCEED $500 FOR VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

amended by deleting Article I of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor a new Article I of 

Chapter 12 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
“Chapter 12 - FLOOD PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 
 

Sec. 12-1. - Definitions. 
 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall 
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:  

 
Alluvial fan flooding means flooding occurring on the surface of an alluvial 

fan or similar landform which originates at the apex and is characterized by high-
velocity flows; active processes of erosion, sediment transport, and deposition; 
and unpredictable flow paths. 

  
Apex means a point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the 

flow path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable and 
alluvial fan flooding can occur.  

 
Appurtenant structure means a structure which is on the same parcel of 

property as the principal structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental 
to the use of the principal structure. 

 
Area of future conditions flood hazard means the land area that would be 

inundated by the 1-percent-annual chance (100 year) flood based on future 
conditions hydrology. 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 22 
 

Area of shallow flooding means a designated AO, AH, or VO Zone on a 
community's flood insurance rate map (FIRM) with a one (1) percent chance or 
greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one (1) to three (3) feet 
where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is 
unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is 
characterized by ponding or sheet flow. 

  
Area of special flood hazard is the land in the floodplain within a 

community subject to a one (1) percent or greater chance of flooding in any given 
year. The area may be designated as Zone A on the flood hazard boundary map 
(FHBM). After detailed ratemaking has been completed in preparation for 
publication of the FIRM, Zone A usually is refined into Zones A, AE, AH, AO, A1-
99, VO, V1-30, VE or V.  

 
Area of special flood hazard means the land in the floodplain within a 

community subject to a 1 percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year.  
The area may be designated as Zone A on the Flood Hazard Boundary Map 
(FHBM).  After detailed rate making has been completed in preparation for 
publication of the FIRM, Zone A usually is refined into Zones A, AO, AH, A1-30, 
AE, A99, AR, AR/A1-30, AR/AE, AR/AO, AR/AH, AR/A, VO, V1-30, VE or V. 

 
Base flood means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of being 

equaled or exceeded in any given year.  
 
Base flood elevation (BFE) means the elevation shown on the Flood 

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and found in the accompanying Flood Insurance 
Study (FIS) for Zones A, AE, AH, A1-A30, AR, V1-V30, or VE that indicates the 
water surface elevation resulting from the flood that has a 1% chance of equaling 
or exceeding that level in any given year - also called the Base Flood. 

 
Basement means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below 

ground level) on all sides.  
 
Breakaway wall means a wall that is not part of the structural support of 

the building and is intended through its design and construction to collapse under 
specific lateral loading forces, without causing damage to the elevated portion of 
the building or supporting foundation system. 

 
Critical feature means an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood 

protection system, without which the flood protection provided by the entire 
system would be compromised. 

  
Development means any manmade change in improved and unimproved 

real estate, including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, 
dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of 
equipment or materials.  



 
 

Page 3 of 22 
 

 
Elevated building means a nonbasement building (i) built, in the case of a 

building in Zones A1-30, AE, A, A99, AO, AH, B, C, X, and D, to have the top of 
the elevated floor, or in the case of a building in Zones V1-30, VE, or V, to have 
the bottom of the lowest horizontal structure member of the elevated floor 
elevated above the ground level by means of pilings, columns (posts and piers), 
or shear walls parallel to the floor of the water and (ii) adequately anchored so as 
not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a flood of up to the 
magnitude of the base flood. In the case of Zones A1-30, AE, A, A99, AO, AH, B, 
C, X, and D, "elevated building" also includes a building elevated by means of fill 
or solid foundation perimeter walls with openings sufficient to facilitate the 
unimpeded movement of flood waters. In the case of Zones V1-30, VE, or V, 
"elevated building" also includes a building otherwise meeting the definition of 
"elevated building," even though the lower area is enclosed by means of 
breakaway walls if the breakaway walls met the standards of Section 60.3(e)(5) 
of the National Flood Insurance Program Regulations. 

  
Existing construction means for the purpose of determining rates, 

structures for which the "start of construction" commenced before the effective 
date of the FIRM or before January 1, 1975, for FIRMs effective before that date. 
"Existing construction" may also be referred to as "existing structures." 

  
Existing manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured 

home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the 
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, 
the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading 
or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community. 

  
Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision means 

the preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the 
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including the installation 
of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring 
of concrete pads).  

 
Flood or flooding means a general and temporary condition of partial or 

complete inundation of normally dry land areas from:  
 

(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 
 
(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters 

from any source. 
 
Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means an official map of a community, 

on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the 



 
 

Page 4 of 22 
 

areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to the 
community.  

 
Flood insurance study is the official report provided by the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency. The report contains flood profiles, water 
surface elevation of the base flood, as well as the Flood Boundary-Floodway 
Map.  

 
Floodplain or flood-prone area means any land area susceptible to being 

inundated by water from any source (see definition of flooding).  
 
Floodplain management means the operation of an overall program of 

corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not 
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works and floodplain 
management regulations.  

 
Floodplain management regulations means zoning ordinances, 

subdivision regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose 
ordinances (such as a floodplain ordinance, grading ordinance and erosion 
control ordinance) and other applications of police power. The term describes 
such state or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide 
standards for the purpose of flood damage prevention and reduction.  

 
Flood protection system means those physical structural works for which 

funds have been authorized, appropriated, and expended and which have been 
constructed specifically to modify flooding in order to reduce the extent of the 
areas within a community subject to a "special flood hazard" and the extent of the 
depths of associated flooding. Such a system typically includes hurricane tidal 
barriers, dams, reservoirs, levees or dikes. These specialized flood modifying 
works are those constructed in conformance with sound engineering standards. 

  
Flood proofing means any combination of structural and non-structural 

additions, changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood 
damage to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, 
structures and their contents.  

 
Floodway (regulatory floodway) means the channel of a river or other 

watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to 
discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface 
elevation more than a designated height.  

 
Functionally dependent use means a use which cannot perform its 

intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. 
The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the 
loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair 



 
 

Page 5 of 22 
 

facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing 
facilities.  

 
Highest adjacent grade means the highest natural elevation of the ground 

surface prior to construction next to the proposed walls of a structure. 
  
Historic structure means any structure that is: 
  

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a 
listing maintained by the department of interior) or preliminarily 
determined by the secretary of the interior as meeting the 
requirements for individual listing on the National Register; 

  
(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the secretary of the interior 

as contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic 
district or a district preliminarily determined by the secretary to 
qualify as a registered historic district; 

  
(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states 

with historic preservation programs which have been approved by 
the secretary of interior; or 

  
(4) Individually listed on a local inventory or historic places in 

communities with historic preservation programs that have been 
certified either:  

 
a. By an approved state program as determined by the 

secretary of the interior or; 
 
b. Directly by the secretary of the interior in states without 

approved programs. 
 

Levee means a manmade structure, usually an earthen embankment, 
designed and constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to 
contain, control, or divert the flow of water so as to provide protection from 
temporary flooding.  

 
Levee system means a flood protection system which consists of a levee, 

or levees, and associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, 
which are constructed and operated in accordance with sound engineering 
practices.  

 
Lowest floor means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including 

basement). An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking 
or vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement area is 
not considered a building's lowest floor; provided that such enclosure is not built 



 
 

Page 6 of 22 
 

so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design 
requirement of Section 60.3 of the National Flood Insurance Program 
Regulations.  

 
Manufactured home means a structure transportable in one (1) or more 

sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or 
without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The 
term "manufactured home" does not include a "recreational vehicle." 

  
Manufactured home park or subdivision means a parcel (or contiguous 

parcels) of land divided into two (2) or more manufactured home lots for rent or 
sale.  

 
Mean sea level means, for purposes of the National Flood Insurance 

Program, the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 or other datum, 
to which base flood elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate 
Map are referenced.  

 
Mean sea level means, for purposes of the National Flood Insurance 

Program, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 or other datum, to 
which base flood elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map 
are referenced. 

 
New construction means, for the purpose of determining insurance rates, 

structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the 
effective date of an initial FIRM or after December 31, 1974, whichever is later, 
and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures. For floodplain 
management purposes, "new construction" means structures for which the "start 
of construction" commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain 
management regulation adopted by a community and includes any subsequent 
improvements to such structures.  

 
New manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured 

home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the 
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, 
the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading 
or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community.  

 
Recreational vehicle means a vehicle which is (i) built on a single chassis; 

(ii) four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest 
horizontal projections; (iii) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable 
by a light duty truck; and (iv) designed primarily not for use as a permanent 
dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or 
seasonal use.  

 



 
 

Page 7 of 22 
 

Riverine means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including 
tributaries), stream, brook, etc. 

 
Start of construction (for other than new construction or substantial 

improvements under the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (Pub. L. 97-348)), 
includes substantial improvement and means the date the building permit was 
issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was within one hundred 
eighty (180) days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first 
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring 
of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any 
work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home 
on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such 
as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets 
and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for basement, footings, piers or 
foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation 
on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied 
as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, 
the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, 
or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building. 

  
Structure means a walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid 

storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home.  
 
Structure means, for floodplain management purposes, a walled and 

roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above 
ground, as well as a manufactured home.  

 
Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure 

whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would 
equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the 
damage occurred.  

 
Substantial improvement means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, 

addition, or other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or 
exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before "start of 
construction" of the improvement. This includes structures which have incurred 
"substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term 
does not, however, include either: (1) Any project for improvement of a structure 
to correct existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code 
specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official 
and which are the minimum necessary conditions or (2) Any alteration of a 
"historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a "historic structure."  

 



 
 

Page 8 of 22 
 

Variance is a grant of relief to a person from the requirement of this 
chapter when specific enforcement would result in unnecessary hardship. A 
variance, therefore, permits construction or development in a manner otherwise 
prohibited by this ordinance. (For full requirements see Section 60.6 of the 
National Flood Insurance Program Regulations.)  

 
Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully 

compliant with the community's floodplain management regulations. A structure 
or other development without the elevation certificate, other certifications, or 
other evidence of compliance required in Section 60.3(b)(5), (c)(4), (c)(10), 
(d)(3), (e)(2), (e)(4), or (e)(5) is presumed to be in violation until such time as that 
documentation is provided.  

 
Water surface elevation means the height, in relation to the North 

American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 (or other datum, where specified), of 
floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or 
riverine areas.  

 
 Water surface elevation means the height, in relation to the National 

Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929 (or other datum, where specified), of 
floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or 
riverine areas.  

 
Sec. 12-2. Findings of fact. 
 

(a) The flood hazard areas of the City of Rosenberg, Texas are subject to 
periodic inundation which results in loss of life and property, health and 
safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, and 
extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, all of 
which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare.  

 
(b) Flood losses are created by the cumulative effect of obstructions in 

floodplains which cause an increase in flood heights and velocities, and by 
the occupancy of flood hazard areas by uses vulnerable to floods and 
hazardous to other lands because they are inadequately elevated, 
floodproofed or otherwise protected from flood damage. 

  
Sec. 12-3. Statement of purpose. 
 

It is the purpose of this chapter to promote the public health, safety and 
general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions 
in specific areas by provisions designed to: 

  
(1) Protect human life and health; 

 



 
 

Page 9 of 22 
 

(2) Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control 
projects; 

 
(3) Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with 

flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general 
public;  

 
(4) Minimize prolonged business interruptions; 
 
(5) Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and 

gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges 
located in floodplains;  

 
(6) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and 

development of flood-prone areas in such a manner as to minimize 
future flood blight areas; and  

 
(7) Insure that potential buyers are notified that property is in a flood 
area. 

 
Sec. 12-4. Methods of reducing flood losses. 
 

In order to accomplish its purposes, this chapter and its several sections 
use the following methods:  

 
(1) Restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety or 

property in times of flood, or cause excessive increases in flood 
heights or velocities;  

 
(2) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which 

serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of 
initial construction;  

 
(3) Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and 

natural protective barriers, which are involved in the 
accommodation of flood waters;  

 
(4) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may 

increase flood damage;  
 
(5) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will 

unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards 
to other lands.  

 
 
Sec. 12-5. Lands to which this chapter applies. 



 
 

Page 10 of 22 
 

 
This chapter shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard within the city. 
  

Sec. 12-6. Basis for establishing the areas of special flood hazard. 
 

The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency in the current scientific and engineering report entitled, 
"The Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for Fort Bend County, Texas and Incorporated 
Areas," dated April 4, 2014, with accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
and/or Flood Boundary-Floodway Maps (FIRM and/or FBFM) dated April 4, 2014, 
and any revisions thereto are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a 
part of this chapter.  

 
 The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency in a scientific and engineering report entitled, "The Flood 
Insurance Study for the City of Rosenberg," dated January 3, 1997, with 
accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps and Flood Boundary-Floodway Maps 
(FIRM and FBFM) and any revisions thereto are hereby adopted by reference 
and declared to be a part of this chapter.  

 
Sec. 12-7. Development permit required. 
 

A development permit shall be required to ensure conformance with the 
provisions of this chapter. 

 
Sec. 12-8. Compliance. 
 

No structure or land shall hereafter be located, altered, or have its use 
changed without full compliance with the terms of this chapter and other 
applicable regulations. 

  
Sec. 12-9. Abrogation and greater restrictions. 
 

This chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing 
easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this chapter and 
another ordinance or chapter of the Code, easement, covenant, or deed 
restriction conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions 
shall prevail.  

 
Sec. 12-10. Interpretation. 
 

In the interpretation and application of this chapter, all provisions shall be; 
(1) considered as minimum requirements; (2) liberally construed in favor of the 
governing body; and (3) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers 
granted under state law. 

  



 
 

Page 11 of 22 
 

Sec. 12-11. Warning and disclaimer of liability. 
 

The degree of flood protection required by this chapter is considered 
reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering 
considerations. On rare occasions greater floods can and will occur and flood 
heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This chapter does not 
imply that land outside the areas of special flood hazards or uses permitted 
within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This chapter shall 
not create liability on the part of the city or any official or employee thereof for 
any flood damages that result from reliance on this chapter or any administrative 
decision lawfully made thereunder.  

 
Secs. 12-12—12-30. Reserved.” 
 
 Section 2. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

further amended by deleting Article II of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor a new 

Article II of Chapter 12 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
“Chapter 12 - FLOOD PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE II. ADMINISTRATION 
 

Sec. 12-31. Designation of the floodplain administrator. 
 

The city engineer or his designee is hereby appointed as the floodplain 
administrator and is directed to implement the provisions of this chapter and 
other appropriate sections of Title 44 of the United States Code of Federal 
Regulations (The National Flood Insurance Program Regulations) pertaining to 
floodplain management. 

  
Sec. 12-32. Duties and responsibilities of the floodplain administrator. 
 

The duties and responsibilities of the floodplain administrator shall include, 
but not be limited to, the following: 

  
(1) Maintain and hold for public inspection all records pertaining to the 

provisions of this chapter.  
 
(2) Review permit application to determine whether proposed building 

site, including the placement of manufactured homes, will be 
reasonably safe from flooding.  

 
(3) Review, approve or deny all applications for development permits 

required by adoption of this chapter.  
 



 
 

Page 12 of 22 
 

(4) Review permits for proposed development to assure that all 
necessary permits have been obtained from those Federal, state or 
local governmental agencies (including Section 404 of the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334) 
from which prior approval is required.  

 
(5) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of the 

boundaries of the areas of special flood hazards (for example, 
where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary 
and actual field conditions) the floodplain administrator shall make 
the necessary interpretation.  

 
(6) Notify, in riverine situations, adjacent communities and the state 

coordinating agency which is the Texas Natural Resource 
Conservation CommissionWater Development Board (TWDB) and 
also the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), prior 
to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, and submit 
evidence of such notification to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency. 

  
(7) Assure that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or 

relocated portion of any watercourse is maintained.  
 
(8) When base flood elevation data has not been provided in 

accordance with aArticle I, section 12-6, the floodplain administrator 
shall obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation 
data and floodway data available from a federal, state or other 
source, in order to administer the provisions of Article III.  

 
(9) When a regulatory floodway has not been designated, the 

floodplain administrator must require that no new construction, 
substantial improvements, or other development (including fill) shall 
be permitted within Zones A1-30 and AE on the city's FIRM, unless 
it is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed 
development, when combined with other existing and anticipated 
development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the 
base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within the municipal 
limits of the city.  

 
(10) Under the provisions of 44 CFR Chapter 1, Section 65.12, of the 

National Flood Insurance Program Regulations, a community may 
approve certain development in Zones A1-30, AE, AH, on the 
community's FIRM which increases the water surface elevation of 
the base flood by more than one (1) foot, provided that the 
community first applies for a conditional FIRM revision through 
FEMAcompletes all of the provisions required by Section 65.12.  



 
 

Page 13 of 22 
 

 
Sec. 12-33. Permit procedures. 
 

(a) Application for a development permit shall be presented to the floodplain 
administrator on forms furnished by him/her and may include, but not be 
limited to, plans in duplicate drawn to scale showing the location, dimensions, 
and elevation of proposed landscape alterations, existing and proposed 
structures, including the placement of manufactured homes, and the location 
of the foregoing in relation to areas of special flood hazard. In addition, the 
following information is required:  
 

(1) Elevation (in relation to mean sea level), of the lowest floor 
(including basement) of all new and substantially improved 
structures;  
 

(2) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any nonresidential 
structure shall be floodproofed; 
  

(3) A certificate from a registered professional engineer or architect 
that the nonresidential floodproofed structure shall meet the 
floodproofing criteria of Article III, section 12-52(2); 

 
(4) Description of the extent to which any watercourse or natural 

drainage will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed 
development. 

  
(5) Maintain a record of all such information in accordance with Article 

II, section 12-32(1). 
  

(b) Approval or denial of a development permit by the floodplain administrator 
shall be based on all of the provisions of this chapter and the following 
relevant factors: 
  

(1) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 
 

(2) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood 
damage and the effect of such damage on the individual owner; 
  

(3) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the 
injury of others; 

 
(4) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated 

development; 
 
(5) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary 

and emergency vehicles; 



 
 

Page 14 of 22 
 

  
(6) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood 

conditions including maintenance and repair of streets and bridges, 
and public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and 
water systems; 

  
(7) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment 

transport of the flood waters and the effects of wave action, if 
applicable, expected at the site; 

  
(8) The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where 

applicable; 
 
(9) The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or 

erosion damage, for the proposed use; 
  
(10) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan for 

that area. 
 
Sec. 12-34. Variance procedures. 
 

(a) The planning and zoning commission as established by the city shall hear 
and render judgment on requests for variances from the requirements of 
this Code. 

  
(b) The planning and zoning commission shall hear and render judgment on 

an appeal only when it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, 
decision, or interpretation made by the floodplain administrator in the 
enforcement or administration of this chapter. 

  
(c) Any person or persons aggrieved by the decision of the planning and 

zoning commission may appeal such decision in the courts of competent 
jurisdiction. 

  
(d) The floodplain administrator shall maintain a record of all actions involving 

an appeal and shall report variances to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency upon request. 

  
(e) Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or 

restoration of structures listed on the National Register of Historic Places 
or the State Inventory of Historic Places, without regard to the procedures 
set forth in the remainder of this chapter. 

  
(f) Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial 

improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half (½) acre or less in size 
contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed 



 
 

Page 15 of 22 
 

below the base flood level, providing the relevant factors in section 12-
33(b) of this article have been fully considered. As the lot size increases 
beyond the one-half (½) acre, the technical justification required for 
issuing the variance increases. 

  
(g) Upon consideration of the factors noted above and the intent of this 

chapter, the planning and zoning commission may attach such conditions 
to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purpose 
and objectives of this chapter (Article I, section 12-3). 

  
(h) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any 

increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result. 
  
(i) Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic 

structures upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation 
will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic 
structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the 
historic character and design of the structure. 

  
(j) Prerequisites for granting variances: 
 

(1) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the 
variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, 
to afford relief.  

 
(2) Variances shall only be issued upon, (i) showing a good and 

sufficient cause; (ii) a determination that failure to grant the 
variance would result in exceptional hardship to the applicant, and 
(iii) a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in 
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, 
extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or 
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or 
ordinances. 

  
(3) Any application to whom a variance is granted shall be given 

written notice that the structure will be permitted to be built with the 
lowest floor elevation below the base flood elevation, and that the 
cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased 
risk resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation. 

  
(k) Variances may be issued by a community for new construction and 

substantial improvements and for other development necessary for the 
conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that (i) the criteria 
outlined in Aarticle II, section 12-34, (a) through (i) are met, and (ii) the 
structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood 



 
 

Page 16 of 22 
 

damages during the base flood and create no additional threats to public 
safety. 

  
Secs. 12-35—12-50. Reserved.” 
 

 Section 3. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

further amended by deleting Article III of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor a new 

Article III of Chapter 12 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
“Chapter 12 - FLOOD PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE III. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION 
 
Sec. 12-51. General standards. 
 

In all areas of special flood hazards the following provisions are required 
for all new construction and substantial improvements.  

 
(1)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be designed 

(or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse 
or lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic 
and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy;  

 
(2) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be 

constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;  
 
(3) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be 

constructed with materials resistant to flood damage; 
  
(4) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be 

constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air 
conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are 
designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or 
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding; 

  
(5) All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to 

minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system; 
  
(6) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed 

to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system 
and discharge from the systems into flood waters; and,  

 
(7) On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid 

impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding. 
  

Sec. 12-52. Specific standards. 



 
 

Page 17 of 22 
 

 
In all areas of special flood hazards where base flood elevation data has 

been provided as set forth in (i) Article I, section 12-6, (ii) Article II, section 12-
32(8), or (iii) Article III, section 12-53(c), the following provisions are required: 

  
(1)  Residential construction. New construction and substantial 

improvement of any residential structure shall have the lowest floor 
(including basement), elevated to a minimum of twelve (12) inches 
or above the base flood elevation. A registered professional 
engineer, architect, or land surveyor shall submit a certification to 
the floodplain administrator that the standard of this subsection as 
proposed in Article II, section 12-33(a)(1), is satisfied. 

  
(2) Nonresidential construction. New construction and substantial 

improvements of any commercial, industrial or other nonresidential 
structure shall either have the lowest floor (including basement) 
elevated to a minimum of twelve (12) inches or above the base 
flood level or together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be 
designed so that below the base flood level the structure is 
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of 
water and with structural components having the capability of 
resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of 
buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall 
develop and/or review structural design, specifications, and plans 
for the construction, and shall certify that the design and methods of 
construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice 
as outlined herein. A record of such certification which includes the 
specific elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which such 
structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the floodplain 
administrator.  

 
(3) Enclosures. New construction and substantial improvements, with 

fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are usable solely for 
parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than 
a basement and which are subject to flooding shall be designed to 
automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by 
allowing for the entry and exit of flood waters. Designs for meeting 
this requirement must either be certified by a registered 
professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following 
minimum criteria: 

  
a.  A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not 

less than one (1) square inch for every square foot of 
enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided. 

  



 
 

Page 18 of 22 
 

b. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) 
foot above grade. 

 
c. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or 

other coverings or devices provided that they permit the 
automatic entry and exit of flood waters. 

  
(4)  Manufactured homes.  
 

a.  Require that all manufactured homes to be placed within 
Zone A on the city's FHBM or FIRM shall be installed using 
methods and practices which minimize flood damage. For 
the purposes of this requirement, manufactured homes must 
be elevated and anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or 
lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but 
are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground 
anchors. This requirement is in addition to applicable state 
and local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces. 

  
b. Require that manufactured homes that are placed or 

substantially improved within Zones A1-30, AH, and AE on 
the city's FIRM on-sites (i) outside of a manufactured home 
park or subdivision, (ii) in a new manufactured home park or 
subdivision, (iii) in an expansion to an existing manufactured 
housing subdivision, or (iv) in an existing manufactured 
home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home 
has incurred "substantial damage" as a result of a flood, be 
elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest 
floor of the manufactured home is elevated to a minimum of 
twelve (12) inches or above the base flood elevation and be 
securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation 
system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement. 

  
c. Require that manufactured homes be placed or substantially 

improved on-sites in an existing manufactured home park or 
subdivision within Zones A1-30, AH and AE on the city's 
FIRM that are not subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) 
of this section be elevated so that either:  

 
1.  The lowest floor of the manufactured home is a 

minimum of twelve (12) inches at or above the base 
flood elevation, or 

  
2. The manufactured home chassis is supported by 

reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at 
least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-



 
 

Page 19 of 22 
 

six (36) inches in height above grade and be securely 
anchored to an adequately anchored foundation 
system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 
movement. 

  
(5) Recreational vehicles. Require that recreational vehicles placed on-

sites within Zones A1-30, AH, and AE on the city's FIRM either (i) 
be on the site for fewer that one hundred eighty (180) consecutive 
days, (ii) be fully licensed and ready for highway use, or (iii) meet 
the permit requirements of Article II, section 12-33(a), and the 
elevation and anchoring requirements for "manufactured homes" in 
paragraph (4) of this section. A recreational vehicle is ready for 
highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to 
the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, 
and has no permanently attached additions. 

  
Sec. 12-53. Standards for subdivision proposals. 
 

(a)  All subdivision proposals including the placement of manufactured home 
parks and subdivisions shall be consistent with Article I, section 12-2, 
section 12-3 and section 12-4 of this chapter. 

  
(b) All proposals for the development of subdivisions including the placement 

of manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall meet development 
permit requirements of article Article I, section 12-7, Article II, section 12-
33, and Article III of this chapter. 

  
(c) Base flood elevation data shall be generated for subdivision proposals and 

other proposed development including the placement of manufactured 
home parks and subdivisions which is greater than fifty (50) lots or five (5) 
acres, whichever is lesser, if not otherwise provided pursuant to Aarticle I, 
section 12-6, or Article II, section 12-32(8) of this chapter. 

  
(d) All subdivision proposals including the placement of manufactured home 

parks and subdivisions shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce 
exposure to flood hazards. 

  
(e) All subdivision proposals including the placement of manufactured home 

parks and subdivisions shall have public utilities and facilities such as 
sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located and constructed to 
minimize or eliminate flood damage. 

  
Sec. 12-54. Standards for areas of shallow flooding (AO/AH Zones). 
 

Located within the areas of special flood hazard established in Aarticle I, 
section 12-6, are areas designated as shallow flooding. These areas have 



 
 

Page 20 of 22 
 

special flood hazards associated with base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) 
feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist and where the path of 
flooding is unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding 
is characterized by ponding or sheet flow; therefore, the following provisions 
apply:  

 
(1)  All new construction and substantial improvements of residential 

structures have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated 
above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth 
number specified in feet on the city's FIRM (at least two (2) feet if 
no depth number is specified). 

  
(2) All new construction and substantial improvements of 

nonresidential structures; 
 

a.  Have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated above 
the highest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth 
number specified in feet on the city's FIRM (at least two (2) 
feet if no depth number is specified), or; 

  
b. Together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities be 

designed so that below the base flood level the structure is 
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the 
passage of water and with structural components having the 
capability or resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads or 
effects of buoyancy. 

  
(3)  A registered professional engineer or architect shall submit a 

certification to the floodplain administrator that the standards of this 
section, as proposed in Article II, section 12-33(a)(1), are satisfied. 

  
(4)  Require within Zones AH or AO adequate drainage paths around 

structures on slopes, to guide flood waters around and away from 
proposed structures. 
  

Sec. 12-55. Floodways. 
 

Floodways located within areas of special flood hazard established in 
Article I, section 12-6, are areas designated as floodways. Since the floodway is 
an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of flood waters which carry 
debris, potential projectiles and erosion potential, the following provisions shall 
apply: 

  
(1)  Encroachments are prohibited, including fill, new construction, 

substantial improvements and other development within the 
adopted regulatory floodway unless it has been demonstrated 



 
 

Page 21 of 22 
 

through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance 
with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment 
would not result in any increase in flood levels within the city during 
the occurrence of the base flood discharge. 

  
(2) If Article III, section 12-55(1) above is satisfied, all new construction 

and substantial improvements shall comply with all applicable flood 
hazard reduction provisions of Article III. 

  
(3) Under the provisions of 44 CFR Chapter 1, Section 65.12, of the 

National Flood Insurance Regulations, a community may permit 
encroachments within the adopted regulatory floodway that would 
result in an increase in base flood elevations, provided that the 
community first applies for a conditional FIRM and floodway 
revision through FEMA. 

  
 Section 3. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of 

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances 

shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a 

whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares 

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the 

omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether 

there be one or more parts. 

 

 Section 4. Any person who shall violate any provision of this ordinance 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in 

an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _____ “ayes” in favor and ______ 

“noes” against on this the second/final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on this the _________ day of 

____________ 2014. 



 
 

Page 22 of 22 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ARTICLES I, II, AND III 
OF CHAPTER 12 AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR NEW ARTICLES I, 
II, AND III OF CHAPTER 12 THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR GENERAL 
DEFINITIONS AND GUIDELINES FOR FLOOD PREVENTION AND 
CONTROL, ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, AND PROVISIONS FOR 
FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO 
EXCEED $500 FOR VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

amended by deleting Article I of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor a new Article I of 

Chapter 12 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
“Chapter 12 - FLOOD PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 
 

Sec. 12-1. - Definitions. 
 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall 
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:  

 
Alluvial fan flooding means flooding occurring on the surface of an alluvial 

fan or similar landform which originates at the apex and is characterized by high-
velocity flows; active processes of erosion, sediment transport, and deposition; 
and unpredictable flow paths. 

  
Apex means a point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the 

flow path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable and 
alluvial fan flooding can occur.  

 
Appurtenant structure means a structure which is on the same parcel of 

property as the principal structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental 
to the use of the principal structure. 

 
Area of future conditions flood hazard means the land area that would be 

inundated by the 1-percent-annual chance (100 year) flood based on future 
conditions hydrology. 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 21 
 

Area of shallow flooding means a designated AO, AH, or VO Zone on a 
community's flood insurance rate map (FIRM) with a one (1) percent chance or 
greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one (1) to three (3) feet 
where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is 
unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is 
characterized by ponding or sheet flow. 

  
 
Area of special flood hazard means the land in the floodplain within a 

community subject to a 1 percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year.  
The area may be designated as Zone A on the Flood Hazard Boundary Map 
(FHBM).  After detailed rate making has been completed in preparation for 
publication of the FIRM, Zone A usually is refined into Zones A, AO, AH, A1-30, 
AE, A99, AR, AR/A1-30, AR/AE, AR/AO, AR/AH, AR/A, VO, V1-30, VE or V. 

 
Base flood means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of being 

equaled or exceeded in any given year.  
 
Base flood elevation (BFE) means the elevation shown on the Flood 

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and found in the accompanying Flood Insurance 
Study (FIS) for Zones A, AE, AH, A1-A30, AR, V1-V30, or VE that indicates the 
water surface elevation resulting from the flood that has a 1% chance of equaling 
or exceeding that level in any given year - also called the Base Flood. 

 
Basement means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below 

ground level) on all sides.  
 
Breakaway wall means a wall that is not part of the structural support of 

the building and is intended through its design and construction to collapse under 
specific lateral loading forces, without causing damage to the elevated portion of 
the building or supporting foundation system. 

 
Critical feature means an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood 

protection system, without which the flood protection provided by the entire 
system would be compromised. 

  
Development means any manmade change in improved and unimproved 

real estate, including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, 
dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of 
equipment or materials.  

 
Elevated building means a nonbasement building (i) built, in the case of a 

building in Zones A1-30, AE, A, A99, AO, AH, B, C, X, and D, to have the top of 
the elevated floor, or in the case of a building in Zones V1-30, VE, or V, to have 
the bottom of the lowest horizontal structure member of the elevated floor 
elevated above the ground level by means of pilings, columns (posts and piers), 



 
 

Page 3 of 21 
 

or shear walls parallel to the floor of the water and (ii) adequately anchored so as 
not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a flood of up to the 
magnitude of the base flood. In the case of Zones A1-30, AE, A, A99, AO, AH, B, 
C, X, and D, "elevated building" also includes a building elevated by means of fill 
or solid foundation perimeter walls with openings sufficient to facilitate the 
unimpeded movement of flood waters. In the case of Zones V1-30, VE, or V, 
"elevated building" also includes a building otherwise meeting the definition of 
"elevated building," even though the lower area is enclosed by means of 
breakaway walls if the breakaway walls met the standards of Section 60.3(e)(5) 
of the National Flood Insurance Program Regulations. 

  
Existing construction means for the purpose of determining rates, 

structures for which the "start of construction" commenced before the effective 
date of the FIRM or before January 1, 1975, for FIRMs effective before that date. 
"Existing construction" may also be referred to as "existing structures." 

  
Existing manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured 

home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the 
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, 
the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading 
or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community. 

  
Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision means 

the preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the 
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including the installation 
of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring 
of concrete pads).  

 
Flood or flooding means a general and temporary condition of partial or 

complete inundation of normally dry land areas from:  
 

(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 
 
(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters 

from any source. 
 
Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means an official map of a community, 

on which the Federal Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the 
areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones applicable to the 
community.  

 
Flood insurance study is the official report provided by the Federal 

Emergency Management Agency. The report contains flood profiles, water 
surface elevation of the base flood, as well as the Flood Boundary-Floodway 
Map.  



 
 

Page 4 of 21 
 

 
Floodplain or flood-prone area means any land area susceptible to being 

inundated by water from any source (see definition of flooding).  
 
Floodplain management means the operation of an overall program of 

corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not 
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works and floodplain 
management regulations.  

 
Floodplain management regulations means zoning ordinances, 

subdivision regulations, building codes, health regulations, special purpose 
ordinances (such as a floodplain ordinance, grading ordinance and erosion 
control ordinance) and other applications of police power. The term describes 
such state or local regulations, in any combination thereof, which provide 
standards for the purpose of flood damage prevention and reduction.  

 
Flood protection system means those physical structural works for which 

funds have been authorized, appropriated, and expended and which have been 
constructed specifically to modify flooding in order to reduce the extent of the 
areas within a community subject to a "special flood hazard" and the extent of the 
depths of associated flooding. Such a system typically includes hurricane tidal 
barriers, dams, reservoirs, levees or dikes. These specialized flood modifying 
works are those constructed in conformance with sound engineering standards. 

  
Flood proofing means any combination of structural and non-structural 

additions, changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood 
damage to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities, 
structures and their contents.  

 
Floodway (regulatory floodway) means the channel of a river or other 

watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to 
discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface 
elevation more than a designated height.  

 
Functionally dependent use means a use which cannot perform its 

intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. 
The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the 
loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair 
facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing 
facilities.  

 
Highest adjacent grade means the highest natural elevation of the ground 

surface prior to construction next to the proposed walls of a structure. 
  
Historic structure means any structure that is: 
  



 
 

Page 5 of 21 
 

(1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a 
listing maintained by the department of interior) or preliminarily 
determined by the secretary of the interior as meeting the 
requirements for individual listing on the National Register; 

  
(2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the secretary of the interior 

as contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic 
district or a district preliminarily determined by the secretary to 
qualify as a registered historic district; 

  
(3) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states 

with historic preservation programs which have been approved by 
the secretary of interior; or 

  
(4) Individually listed on a local inventory or historic places in 

communities with historic preservation programs that have been 
certified either:  

 
a. By an approved state program as determined by the 

secretary of the interior or; 
 
b. Directly by the secretary of the interior in states without 

approved programs. 
 

Levee means a manmade structure, usually an earthen embankment, 
designed and constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to 
contain, control, or divert the flow of water so as to provide protection from 
temporary flooding.  

 
Levee system means a flood protection system which consists of a levee, 

or levees, and associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, 
which are constructed and operated in accordance with sound engineering 
practices.  

 
Lowest floor means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including 

basement). An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking 
or vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement area is 
not considered a building's lowest floor; provided that such enclosure is not built 
so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design 
requirement of Section 60.3 of the National Flood Insurance Program 
Regulations.  

 
Manufactured home means a structure transportable in one (1) or more 

sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or 
without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. The 
term "manufactured home" does not include a "recreational vehicle." 



 
 

Page 6 of 21 
 

  
Manufactured home park or subdivision means a parcel (or contiguous 

parcels) of land divided into two (2) or more manufactured home lots for rent or 
sale.  

 
 
Mean sea level means, for purposes of the National Flood Insurance 

Program, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 or other datum, to 
which base flood elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map 
are referenced. 

 
New construction means, for the purpose of determining insurance rates, 

structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the 
effective date of an initial FIRM or after December 31, 1974, whichever is later, 
and includes any subsequent improvements to such structures. For floodplain 
management purposes, "new construction" means structures for which the "start 
of construction" commenced on or after the effective date of a floodplain 
management regulation adopted by a community and includes any subsequent 
improvements to such structures.  

 
New manufactured home park or subdivision means a manufactured 

home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the 
lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, 
the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading 
or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of 
floodplain management regulations adopted by a community.  

 
Recreational vehicle means a vehicle which is (i) built on a single chassis; 

(ii) four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest 
horizontal projections; (iii) designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable 
by a light duty truck; and (iv) designed primarily not for use as a permanent 
dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or 
seasonal use.  

 
Riverine means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including 

tributaries), stream, brook, etc. 
 
Start of construction (for other than new construction or substantial 

improvements under the Coastal Barrier Resources Act (Pub. L. 97-348)), 
includes substantial improvement and means the date the building permit was 
issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, 
rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was within one hundred 
eighty (180) days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first 
placement of permanent construction of a structure on a site, such as the pouring 
of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any 
work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a manufactured home 



 
 

Page 7 of 21 
 

on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such 
as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets 
and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for basement, footings, piers or 
foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation 
on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied 
as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, 
the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, 
or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building. 

  
 
Structure means, for floodplain management purposes, a walled and 

roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above 
ground, as well as a manufactured home.  

 
Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure 

whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would 
equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the 
damage occurred.  

 
Substantial improvement means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, 

addition, or other improvement of a structure, the cost of which equals or 
exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before "start of 
construction" of the improvement. This includes structures which have incurred 
"substantial damage," regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term 
does not, however, include either: (1) Any project for improvement of a structure 
to correct existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code 
specifications which have been identified by the local code enforcement official 
and which are the minimum necessary conditions or (2) Any alteration of a 
"historic structure," provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a "historic structure."  

 
Variance is a grant of relief to a person from the requirement of this 

chapter when specific enforcement would result in unnecessary hardship. A 
variance, therefore, permits construction or development in a manner otherwise 
prohibited by this ordinance. (For full requirements see Section 60.6 of the 
National Flood Insurance Program Regulations.)  

 
Violation means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully 

compliant with the community's floodplain management regulations. A structure 
or other development without the elevation certificate, other certifications, or 
other evidence of compliance required in Section 60.3(b)(5), (c)(4), (c)(10), 
(d)(3), (e)(2), (e)(4), or (e)(5) is presumed to be in violation until such time as that 
documentation is provided.  

 



 
 

Page 8 of 21 
 

Water surface elevation means the height, in relation to the North 
American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988 (or other datum, where specified), of 
floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of coastal or 
riverine areas.  

 
  

Sec. 12-2. Findings of fact. 
 

(a) The flood hazard areas of the City of Rosenberg, Texas are subject to 
periodic inundation which results in loss of life and property, health and 
safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, and 
extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, all of 
which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare.  

 
(b) Flood losses are created by the cumulative effect of obstructions in 

floodplains which cause an increase in flood heights and velocities, and by 
the occupancy of flood hazard areas by uses vulnerable to floods and 
hazardous to other lands because they are inadequately elevated, 
floodproofed or otherwise protected from flood damage. 

  
Sec. 12-3. Statement of purpose. 
 

It is the purpose of this chapter to promote the public health, safety and 
general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions 
in specific areas by provisions designed to: 

  
(1) Protect human life and health; 

 
(2) Minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control 

projects; 
 
(3) Minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with 

flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general 
public;  

 
(4) Minimize prolonged business interruptions; 
 
(5) Minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and 

gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges 
located in floodplains;  

 
(6) Help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and 

development of flood-prone areas in such a manner as to minimize 
future flood blight areas; and  

 



 
 

Page 9 of 21 
 

(7) Insure that potential buyers are notified that property is in a flood 
area. 

 
Sec. 12-4. Methods of reducing flood losses. 
 

In order to accomplish its purposes, this chapter and its several sections 
use the following methods:  

 
(1) Restrict or prohibit uses that are dangerous to health, safety or 

property in times of flood, or cause excessive increases in flood 
heights or velocities;  

 
(2) Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including facilities which 

serve such uses, be protected against flood damage at the time of 
initial construction;  

 
(3) Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and 

natural protective barriers, which are involved in the 
accommodation of flood waters;  

 
(4) Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may 

increase flood damage;  
 
(5) Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will 

unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards 
to other lands.  

 
 
Sec. 12-5. Lands to which this chapter applies. 
 

This chapter shall apply to all areas of special flood hazard within the city. 
  

Sec. 12-6. Basis for establishing the areas of special flood hazard. 
 

The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency in the current scientific and engineering report entitled, 
"The Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for Fort Bend County, Texas and Incorporated 
Areas," dated April 4, 2014, with accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
and/or Flood Boundary-Floodway Maps (FIRM and/or FBFM) dated April 4, 2014, 
and any revisions thereto are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a 
part of this chapter.  

 
  
Sec. 12-7. Development permit required. 
 



 
 

Page 10 of 21 
 

A development permit shall be required to ensure conformance with the 
provisions of this chapter. 

 
Sec. 12-8. Compliance. 
 

No structure or land shall hereafter be located, altered, or have its use 
changed without full compliance with the terms of this chapter and other 
applicable regulations. 

  
Sec. 12-9. Abrogation and greater restrictions. 
 

This chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing 
easements, covenants, or deed restrictions. However, where this chapter and 
another ordinance or chapter of the Code, easement, covenant, or deed 
restriction conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions 
shall prevail.  

 
Sec. 12-10. Interpretation. 
 

In the interpretation and application of this chapter, all provisions shall be; 
(1) considered as minimum requirements; (2) liberally construed in favor of the 
governing body; and (3) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers 
granted under state law. 

  
Sec. 12-11. Warning and disclaimer of liability. 
 

The degree of flood protection required by this chapter is considered 
reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering 
considerations. On rare occasions greater floods can and will occur and flood 
heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This chapter does not 
imply that land outside the areas of special flood hazards or uses permitted 
within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This chapter shall 
not create liability on the part of the city or any official or employee thereof for 
any flood damages that result from reliance on this chapter or any administrative 
decision lawfully made thereunder.  

 
Secs. 12-12—12-30. Reserved.” 
 
 Section 2. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

further amended by deleting Article II of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor a new 

Article II of Chapter 12 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
“Chapter 12 - FLOOD PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE II. ADMINISTRATION 
 



 
 

Page 11 of 21 
 

Sec. 12-31. Designation of the floodplain administrator. 
 

The city engineer or his designee is hereby appointed as the floodplain 
administrator and is directed to implement the provisions of this chapter and 
other appropriate sections of Title 44 of the United States Code of Federal 
Regulations (The National Flood Insurance Program Regulations) pertaining to 
floodplain management. 

  
Sec. 12-32. Duties and responsibilities of the floodplain administrator. 
 

The duties and responsibilities of the floodplain administrator shall include, 
but not be limited to, the following: 

  
(1) Maintain and hold for public inspection all records pertaining to the 

provisions of this chapter.  
 
(2) Review permit application to determine whether proposed building 

site, including the placement of manufactured homes, will be 
reasonably safe from flooding.  

 
(3) Review, approve or deny all applications for development permits 

required by adoption of this chapter.  
 
(4) Review permits for proposed development to assure that all 

necessary permits have been obtained from those Federal, state or 
local governmental agencies (including Section 404 of the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334) 
from which prior approval is required.  

 
(5) Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of the 

boundaries of the areas of special flood hazards (for example, 
where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary 
and actual field conditions) the floodplain administrator shall make 
the necessary interpretation.  

 
(6) Notify, in riverine situations, adjacent communities and the state 

coordinating agency which is the Texas Water Development Board 
(TWDB) and also the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ), prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse, and 
submit evidence of such notification to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency. 

  
(7) Assure that the flood carrying capacity within the altered or 

relocated portion of any watercourse is maintained.  
 



 
 

Page 12 of 21 
 

(8) When base flood elevation data has not been provided in 
accordance with Article I, section 12-6, the floodplain administrator 
shall obtain, review and reasonably utilize any base flood elevation 
data and floodway data available from a federal, state or other 
source, in order to administer the provisions of Article III.  

 
(9) When a regulatory floodway has not been designated, the 

floodplain administrator must require that no new construction, 
substantial improvements, or other development (including fill) shall 
be permitted within Zones A1-30 and AE on the city's FIRM, unless 
it is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed 
development, when combined with other existing and anticipated 
development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the 
base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within the municipal 
limits of the city.  

 
(10) Under the provisions of 44 CFR Chapter 1, Section 65.12, of the 

National Flood Insurance Program Regulations, a community may 
approve certain development in Zones A1-30, AE, AH, on the 
community's FIRM which increases the water surface elevation of 
the base flood by more than one (1) foot, provided that the 
community first completes all of the provisions required by Section 
65.12.  

 
Sec. 12-33. Permit procedures. 
 

(a) Application for a development permit shall be presented to the floodplain 
administrator on forms furnished by him/her and may include, but not be 
limited to, plans in duplicate drawn to scale showing the location, dimensions, 
and elevation of proposed landscape alterations, existing and proposed 
structures, including the placement of manufactured homes, and the location 
of the foregoing in relation to areas of special flood hazard. In addition, the 
following information is required:  
 

(1) Elevation (in relation to mean sea level), of the lowest floor 
(including basement) of all new and substantially improved 
structures;  
 

(2) Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any nonresidential 
structure shall be floodproofed; 
  

(3) A certificate from a registered professional engineer or architect 
that the nonresidential floodproofed structure shall meet the 
floodproofing criteria of Article III, section 12-52(2); 

 



 
 

Page 13 of 21 
 

(4) Description of the extent to which any watercourse or natural 
drainage will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed 
development. 

  
(5) Maintain a record of all such information in accordance with Article 

II, section 12-32(1). 
  

(b) Approval or denial of a development permit by the floodplain administrator 
shall be based on all of the provisions of this chapter and the following 
relevant factors: 
  

(1) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 
 

(2) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood 
damage and the effect of such damage on the individual owner; 
  

(3) The danger that materials may be swept onto other lands to the 
injury of others; 

 
(4) The compatibility of the proposed use with existing and anticipated 

development; 
 
(5) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary 

and emergency vehicles; 
  
(6) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood 

conditions including maintenance and repair of streets and bridges, 
and public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and 
water systems; 

  
(7) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment 

transport of the flood waters and the effects of wave action, if 
applicable, expected at the site; 

  
(8) The necessity to the facility of a waterfront location, where 

applicable; 
 
(9) The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or 

erosion damage, for the proposed use; 
  
(10) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan for 

that area. 
 
Sec. 12-34. Variance procedures. 
 



 
 

Page 14 of 21 
 

(a) The planning commission as established by the city shall hear and render 
judgment on requests for variances from the requirements of this Code. 

  
(b) The planning commission shall hear and render judgment on an appeal 

only when it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, decision, or 
interpretation made by the floodplain administrator in the enforcement or 
administration of this chapter. 

  
(c) Any person or persons aggrieved by the decision of the planning 

commission may appeal such decision in the courts of competent 
jurisdiction. 

  
(d) The floodplain administrator shall maintain a record of all actions involving 

an appeal and shall report variances to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency upon request. 

  
(e) Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or 

restoration of structures listed on the National Register of Historic Places 
or the State Inventory of Historic Places, without regard to the procedures 
set forth in the remainder of this chapter. 

  
(f) Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial 

improvements to be erected on a lot of one-half (½) acre or less in size 
contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures constructed 
below the base flood level, providing the relevant factors in section 12-
33(b) of this article have been fully considered. As the lot size increases 
beyond the one-half (½) acre, the technical justification required for 
issuing the variance increases. 

  
(g) Upon consideration of the factors noted above and the intent of this 

chapter, the planning and zoning commission may attach such conditions 
to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purpose 
and objectives of this chapter (Article I, section 12-3). 

  
(h) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any 

increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result. 
  
(i) Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic 

structures upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation 
will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic 
structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the 
historic character and design of the structure. 

  
(j) Prerequisites for granting variances: 
 



 
 

Page 15 of 21 
 

(1) Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the 
variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, 
to afford relief.  

 
(2) Variances shall only be issued upon, (i) showing a good and 

sufficient cause; (ii) a determination that failure to grant the 
variance would result in exceptional hardship to the applicant, and 
(iii) a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in 
increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, 
extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or 
victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or 
ordinances. 

  
(3) Any application to whom a variance is granted shall be given 

written notice that the structure will be permitted to be built with the 
lowest floor elevation below the base flood elevation, and that the 
cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased 
risk resulting from the reduced lowest floor elevation. 

  
(k) Variances may be issued by a community for new construction and 

substantial improvements and for other development necessary for the 
conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that (i) the criteria 
outlined in Article II, section 12-34, (a) through (i) are met, and (ii) the 
structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood 
damages during the base flood and create no additional threats to public 
safety. 

  
Secs. 12-35—12-50. Reserved.” 
 

 Section 3. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

further amended by deleting Article III of Chapter 12 and substituting therefor a new 

Article III of Chapter 12 thereof, to provide as follows: 

 
“Chapter 12 - FLOOD PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 

ARTICLE III. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION 
 
Sec. 12-51. General standards. 
 

In all areas of special flood hazards the following provisions are required 
for all new construction and substantial improvements.  

 
(1)  All new construction or substantial improvements shall be designed 

(or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse 
or lateral movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic 
and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy;  



 
 

Page 16 of 21 
 

 
(2) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be 

constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;  
 
(3) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be 

constructed with materials resistant to flood damage; 
  
(4) All new construction or substantial improvements shall be 

constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air 
conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are 
designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or 
accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding; 

  
(5) All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to 

minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system; 
  
(6) New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed 

to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system 
and discharge from the systems into flood waters; and,  

 
(7) On-site waste disposal systems shall be located to avoid 

impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding. 
  

Sec. 12-52. Specific standards. 
 

In all areas of special flood hazards where base flood elevation data has 
been provided as set forth in (i) Article I, section 12-6, (ii) Article II, section 12-
32(8), or (iii) Article III, section 12-53(c), the following provisions are required: 

  
(1)  Residential construction. New construction and substantial 

improvement of any residential structure shall have the lowest floor 
(including basement), elevated to a minimum of twelve (12) inches 
above the base flood elevation. A registered professional engineer, 
architect, or land surveyor shall submit a certification to the 
floodplain administrator that the standard of this subsection as 
proposed in Article II, section 12-33(a)(1), is satisfied. 

  
(2) Nonresidential construction. New construction and substantial 

improvements of any commercial, industrial or other nonresidential 
structure shall either have the lowest floor (including basement) 
elevated to a minimum of twelve (12) inches above the base flood 
level or together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be 
designed so that below the base flood level the structure is 
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of 
water and with structural components having the capability of 
resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of 



 
 

Page 17 of 21 
 

buoyancy. A registered professional engineer or architect shall 
develop and/or review structural design, specifications, and plans 
for the construction, and shall certify that the design and methods of 
construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice 
as outlined herein. A record of such certification which includes the 
specific elevation (in relation to mean sea level) to which such 
structures are floodproofed shall be maintained by the floodplain 
administrator.  

 
(3) Enclosures. New construction and substantial improvements, with 

fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that are usable solely for 
parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than 
a basement and which are subject to flooding shall be designed to 
automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls by 
allowing for the entry and exit of flood waters. Designs for meeting 
this requirement must either be certified by a registered 
professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following 
minimum criteria: 

  
a.  A minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not 

less than one (1) square inch for every square foot of 
enclosed area subject to flooding shall be provided. 

  
b. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) 

foot above grade. 
 
c. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or 

other coverings or devices provided that they permit the 
automatic entry and exit of flood waters. 

  
(4)  Manufactured homes.  
 

a.  Require that all manufactured homes to be placed within 
Zone A on the city's FHBM or FIRM shall be installed using 
methods and practices which minimize flood damage. For 
the purposes of this requirement, manufactured homes must 
be elevated and anchored to resist flotation, collapse, or 
lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but 
are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground 
anchors. This requirement is in addition to applicable state 
and local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces. 

  
b. Require that manufactured homes that are placed or 

substantially improved within Zones A1-30, AH, and AE on 
the city's FIRM on-sites (i) outside of a manufactured home 
park or subdivision, (ii) in a new manufactured home park or 



 
 

Page 18 of 21 
 

subdivision, (iii) in an expansion to an existing manufactured 
housing subdivision, or (iv) in an existing manufactured 
home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home 
has incurred "substantial damage" as a result of a flood, be 
elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest 
floor of the manufactured home is elevated to a minimum of 
twelve (12) inches above the base flood elevation and be 
securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation 
system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement. 

  
c. Require that manufactured homes be placed or substantially 

improved on-sites in an existing manufactured home park or 
subdivision within Zones A1-30, AH and AE on the city's 
FIRM that are not subject to the provisions of paragraph (4) 
of this section be elevated so that either:  

 
1.  The lowest floor of the manufactured home is a 

minimum of twelve (12) inches above the base flood 
elevation, or 

  
2. The manufactured home chassis is supported by 

reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at 
least equivalent strength that are no less than thirty-
six (36) inches in height above grade and be securely 
anchored to an adequately anchored foundation 
system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 
movement. 

  
(5) Recreational vehicles. Require that recreational vehicles placed on-

sites within Zones A1-30, AH, and AE on the city's FIRM either (i) 
be on the site for fewer that one hundred eighty (180) consecutive 
days, (ii) be fully licensed and ready for highway use, or (iii) meet 
the permit requirements of Article II, section 12-33(a), and the 
elevation and anchoring requirements for "manufactured homes" in 
paragraph (4) of this section. A recreational vehicle is ready for 
highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached to 
the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, 
and has no permanently attached additions. 

  
Sec. 12-53. Standards for subdivision proposals. 
 

(a)  All subdivision proposals including the placement of manufactured home 
parks and subdivisions shall be consistent with Article I, section 12-2, 
section 12-3 and section 12-4 of this chapter. 

  



 
 

Page 19 of 21 
 

(b) All proposals for the development of subdivisions including the placement 
of manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall meet development 
permit requirements of Article I, section 12-7, Article II, section 12-33, and 
Article III of this chapter. 

  
(c) Base flood elevation data shall be generated for subdivision proposals and 

other proposed development including the placement of manufactured 
home parks and subdivisions which is greater than fifty (50) lots or five (5) 
acres, whichever is lesser, if not otherwise provided pursuant to Article I, 
section 12-6, or Article II, section 12-32(8) of this chapter. 

  
(d) All subdivision proposals including the placement of manufactured home 

parks and subdivisions shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce 
exposure to flood hazards. 

  
(e) All subdivision proposals including the placement of manufactured home 

parks and subdivisions shall have public utilities and facilities such as 
sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located and constructed to 
minimize or eliminate flood damage. 

  
Sec. 12-54. Standards for areas of shallow flooding (AO/AH Zones). 
 

Located within the areas of special flood hazard established in Article I, 
section 12-6, are areas designated as shallow flooding. These areas have 
special flood hazards associated with base flood depths of one (1) to three (3) 
feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist and where the path of 
flooding is unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding 
is characterized by ponding or sheet flow; therefore, the following provisions 
apply:  

 
(1)  All new construction and substantial improvements of residential 

structures have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated 
above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth 
number specified in feet on the city's FIRM (at least two (2) feet if 
no depth number is specified). 

  
(2) All new construction and substantial improvements of 

nonresidential structures; 
 

a.  Have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated above 
the highest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth 
number specified in feet on the city's FIRM (at least two (2) 
feet if no depth number is specified), or; 

  
b. Together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities be 

designed so that below the base flood level the structure is 



 
 

Page 20 of 21 
 

watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the 
passage of water and with structural components having the 
capability or resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads or 
effects of buoyancy. 

  
(3)  A registered professional engineer or architect shall submit a 

certification to the floodplain administrator that the standards of this 
section, as proposed in Article II, section 12-33, are satisfied. 

  
(4)  Require within Zones AH or AO adequate drainage paths around 

structures on slopes, to guide flood waters around and away from 
proposed structures. 
  

Sec. 12-55. Floodways. 
 

Floodways located within areas of special flood hazard established in 
Article I, section 12-6, are areas designated as floodways. Since the floodway is 
an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of flood waters which carry 
debris, potential projectiles and erosion potential, the following provisions shall 
apply: 

  
(1)  Encroachments are prohibited, including fill, new construction, 

substantial improvements and other development within the 
adopted regulatory floodway unless it has been demonstrated 
through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance 
with standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment 
would not result in any increase in flood levels within the city during 
the occurrence of the base flood discharge. 

  
(2) If Article III, section 12-55(1) above is satisfied, all new construction 

and substantial improvements shall comply with all applicable flood 
hazard reduction provisions of Article III. 

  
(3) Under the provisions of 44 CFR Chapter 1, Section 65.12, of the 

National Flood Insurance Regulations, a community may permit 
encroachments within the adopted regulatory floodway that would 
result in an increase in base flood elevations, provided that the 
community first applies for a conditional FIRM and floodway 
revision through FEMA. 

  
 Section 3. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of 

this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances 

shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a 



 
 

Page 21 of 21 
 

whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares 

that it would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the 

omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether 

there be one or more parts. 

 

 Section 4. Any person who shall violate any provision of this ordinance 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in 

an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _____ “ayes” in favor and ______ 

“noes” against on this the second/final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on this the _________ day of 

____________ 2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, CITY ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Ordinance No. 2014-08 – Sign Ordinance Amendments (Aves. H, I & SH 
36) 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-08, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections (a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to 
Section 6-362.2 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, providing for expanded boundaries of Sign District “B”; 
by adding a new Section 6-362.3 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, establishing Sign District “C” and 
regulations for Sign District “C”; by adding a new Section 6-362.4 of Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof, 
establishing a Sign District map; providing a penalty in an amount as provided in Section 1-13 of this 
Code for violation of any provision hereof; repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or 
in conflict herewith; and providing for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Ordinance No. 2014-08 – Redline w/o Exhibit 
2. Ordinance No. 2014-08 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-26-13  
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-24-13 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director 
Community Development

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[X] City Attorney LJL/rlm 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Freestanding sign regulations for height and area for Avenues H and I and State 
Highway 36 (between I-69/U.S. 59 and Avenue H) have been discussed in two (2) previous City Council 
Workshop meetings:  once on September 24, 2013, and again on November 26, 2013.  In the most recent 
discussion on November 26, 2013, staff presented options for sign regulations for these corridors to City 
Council.  The most agreed-upon option involved designating the eastern parts of Avenues H and I as being 
included in previously-approved Sign District “B.”  These parts of the corridors have larger properties that 
could accommodate the larger signage allowed in District “B” (maximum of 16-foot/120 square foot single-
tenant signs and 24-foot/320 square foot multi-tenant signs).  Staff recommended that should City  Council 
choose this option, the dividing lines for larger signage would be Miles and Mahlmann Streets.  This was 
due to the larger properties and shopping centers mostly being located to the east of these streets.  There 
was subsequent discussion and potential agreement on the dividing line being moved to the west to 8th 
Street with the exception properties located on the south side of Avenue I, which should have smaller 
signage due to more residences being located in the area. 
 
Staff has prepared an Ordinance amendment that we believe most reflects the discussion and consensus 
of City Council on November 26, 2013.  It can be summarized as follows: 



 
State Highway 36 between I-69/U.S. 59 and Avenue H (not including Downtown); Avenue H between Spur 
529 and 8th Street (not including Downtown); Avenue I between Spur 529 and 8th Street (not including 
Downtown); and the south side of Avenue I between 8th and Mahlmann: 
 

• Single-tenant: 
o Maximum height: twelve (12) feet  
o Maximum size:   sixty (60) square feet 

• Multi-tenant: 
o Maximum height:   twelve (12) feet 
o Maximum size:   ninety-six (96) square feet 
o Maximum of sixty (60) square feet per tenant 

 
Avenue H east of 8th Street; Avenue I east of Mahlmann; and the north side of Avenue I between 8th and 
Mahlmann: 
 

• Single-tenant: 
o Maximum height: sixteen (16) feet  
o Maximum size:   one-hundred twenty (120) square feet 

• Multi-tenant: 
o Maximum height:   twenty-four (24) feet 
o Maximum size:   three-hundred twenty (320) square feet 
o Maximum of one-hundred twenty (120) square feet per tenant 

 
You will notice that the Downtown Area is not included in these recommendations.  This is because 
Downtown already has its own standards that do not allow freestanding signs.  This is due to the buildings 
mostly adjoining the right-of-way; thus the sites do not have yards for freestanding signs to be located in.  
No changes are recommended to the Downtown Area’s existing sign regulations.  In fact, Downtown has 
been discussed in previous meetings as potentially being Sign District “C” and Avenues H, I, and State 
Highway 36 as District “D”; however, because no changes are recommended to Downtown, staff does not 
see the need to create another sign district for it and therefore Avenues H, I & 36 are being designated as 
District “C.” 
 
Finally, due to the complexity of the Ordinance, staff has created a Sign District Map to make the 
Ordinance more user-friendly for staff and sign permit applicants.  The map is attached as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated in the Ordinance.  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-08 in order to move 
forward with establishing permanent freestanding sign regulations for the corridors, as opposed to the 
current maximum height of nine (9) feet and maximum area of 36 square feet. 
 



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08  

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY AMENDING SUBSECTIONS (a)(4) 
AND (a)(7) AND BY ADDING NEW SUBSECTIONS (a)(8), (a)(9) AND 
(a)(10) TO SECTION 6-362.2 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 
THEREOF, PROVIDING FOR EXPANDED BOUNDARIES OF SIGN 
DISTRICT “B”; BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 6-362.3 OF ARTICLE XIII 
OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, ESTABLISHING SIGN DISTRICT “C” AND 
REGULATIONS FOR SIGN DISTRICT “C”; BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 6-362.4 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, 
ESTABLISHING A SIGN DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN 
AN AMOUNT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 1-13 OF THIS CODE FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 
amended by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections 
(a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to Section 6-362.2; by adding a new Section 6-362.3; and by 
adding a new Section 6-362.4 to Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof to provide as follows: 

“Sec. 6-362.2. - Sign District “B”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “B”, which shall include: 

 
(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2218; and 
 
(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2977; and 
 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 762; and 
 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 723 and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 
(5) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the sections of State Highway 36 that extend south of U.S. Highway 59 and 
north of U.S. Highway 90A; and 

 



2 

 

(6) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends west of Spur 529; and 

 
(7) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of Spur 529.; and 
 

(8) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends east of 8th Street; and 

 
(9) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 that extends east of Mahlmann Street; and 
 

(10) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the north side of 
the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be sixteen (16) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be one-hundred twenty (120) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twenty-four (24) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be three-hundred twenty (320) square feet. 

 
 (3)  The maximum size per individual tenant shall be one-hundred twenty (120) 

square feet. 
 
Sec. 6-362.3. - Sign District “C”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “C”, which shall include: 
 

(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of State Highway 36 between U.S. Highway 59 and U.S. Highway 
90A and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 

(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in 
the Downtown Area; and 

 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in the 
Downtown Area; and 

 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the south side of 

the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 



3 

 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be sixty (60) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be ninety-six (96) square feet. 

 
(3) The maximum size per individual tenant shall be sixty (60) square feet. 

 
Sec. 6-362.4. – Sign District Map. 
 
The Sign District Map, depicting Sign Districts “A,” “B,” and “C” and the Downtown Area of 
the City of Rosenberg, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for 
reference purposes.” 
 

Section 2. Any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount as 
provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate 
offense. 
 
 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 
Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason 
be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 
affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 
than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 
against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 
of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of ____________ 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



4 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 

 



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-08  

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY AMENDING SUBSECTIONS (a)(4) 
AND (a)(7) AND BY ADDING NEW SUBSECTIONS (a)(8), (a)(9) AND 
(a)(10) TO SECTION 6-362.2 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 
THEREOF, PROVIDING FOR EXPANDED BOUNDARIES OF SIGN 
DISTRICT “B”; BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 6-362.3 OF ARTICLE XIII 
OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, ESTABLISHING SIGN DISTRICT “C” AND 
REGULATIONS FOR SIGN DISTRICT “C”; BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 6-362.4 OF ARTICLE XIII OF CHAPTER 6 THEREOF, 
ESTABLISHING A SIGN DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN 
AN AMOUNT AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 1-13 OF THIS CODE FOR 
VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 
amended by amending subsections (a)(4) and (a)(7) and by adding new subsections 
(a)(8), (a)(9) and (a)(10) to Section 6-362.2; by adding a new Section 6-362.3; and by 
adding a new Section 6-362.4 to Article XIII of Chapter 6 thereof to provide as follows: 

“Sec. 6-362.2. - Sign District “B”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “B”, which shall include: 

 
(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2218; and 
 
(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 2977; and 
 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 762; and 
 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of FM 723 and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 
(5) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the sections of State Highway 36 that extend south of U.S. Highway 59 and 
north of U.S. Highway 90A; and 

 



2 

 

(6) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends west of Spur 529; and 

 
(7) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of Spur 529; and 
 

(8) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A that extends east of 8th Street; and 

 
(9) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 that extends east of Mahlmann Street; and 
 

(10) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the north side of 
the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be sixteen (16) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be one-hundred twenty (120) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “B”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twenty-four (24) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be three-hundred twenty (320) square feet. 

 
 (3)  The maximum size per individual tenant shall be one-hundred twenty (120) 

square feet. 
 
Sec. 6-362.3. - Sign District “C”. 
 
(a) There is hereby created a Sign District “C”, which shall include: 
 

(1) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of State Highway 36 between U.S. Highway 59 and U.S. Highway 
90A and not in the Downtown Area; and 
 

(2) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 
of the section of U.S. Highway 90A between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in 
the Downtown Area; and 

 
(3) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the right-of-way 

of the section of FM 1640 between Spur 529 and 8th Street and not in the 
Downtown Area; and 

 
(4) All property located within the City adjacent to and fronting on the south side of 

the right-of-way of the section of FM 1640 between 8th and Mahlmann Streets. 



3 

 

 
(b) The following standards shall apply to single tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum size shall be sixty (60) square feet.  

 
(c) The following standards shall apply to multi-tenant signs within District “C”: 

 
(1) The maximum height shall be twelve (12) feet. 
 
(2) The maximum overall size shall be ninety-six (96) square feet. 

 
(3) The maximum size per individual tenant shall be sixty (60) square feet. 

 
Sec. 6-362.4. – Sign District Map. 
 
The Sign District Map, depicting Sign Districts “A,” “B,” and “C” and the Downtown Area of 
the City of Rosenberg, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for 
reference purposes.” 
 

Section 2. Any person who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount as 
provided in Section 1-13 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall constitute a separate 
offense. 
 
 Section 3. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 
Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall for any reason 
be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 
affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other 
than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 
against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 
of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of ____________ 2014. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



4 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 

 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!! !!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!
!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!! !!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!! !!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!
!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!! !!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

RANSOM

WILLIAMS WAY

PITTS

N

D

1ST

BAND

J

RICEFIELD

HAND

G
F

DAILY

4TH

H

BE
RD

ET
T

E

KUNZ

HARTLEDGE

R

KOEBLEN

BRYAN

P O

BE
NT

ON

BLASE

RANDON SCHOOL

WEEKS

FINNEY VALLET

A

EVANS

SIM
S

LA
NE

POWERLINE

GERKEN

PULTAR

LO
UI

SE

PLEAK

A MEYERS

AIRPORTBLUME

B F
 TE

RR
Y

SCOTT

HAMLINK

RANDON DYER

BAKER

ROHAN

KLAUKE

KLOSTERHOFF
MUEGGE

J MEYER

WALSH

MILLER

ZUNKER

ANTON STADE

CLAY

KROESCHE

SPENCER

RICE

TO
RI

STEHLE

TWIN

VIS
TA

JUNKER

REESE

ROSE

JOERGER

WEHRING

BROOKS

ROBINOWITZ

WAGON

VINCIK EHLERT

READING

RIVER

CR
IS

LYLL
HUNTINGTON

STELLA

AU
RE

LIA
FAIRGROUNDS PISC

ES

KIOWA

WATERWALK

CE
CIL

 RO
BIN

OW
ITZ

BAUDET

PAR

HARDIN

HILLCREST

SYC
AM

OR
E

EASY

KARI
KUECK

FOSTER

BERNIE

PERRY

LEON

RUSTIC

LA
ZY

SAGAMORE BAY

POWER LINE

PETRA

DEER

1ST

KLAUKE

J

F

G

J

A

@A359

@A2977

@A762

@A2218

@A723

@A1640

@A3155

öõ10

öõ529

öõ540

£¤90A

£¤90A

§̈¦£¤96 592

MI
NO

NIT
E

I

¬«36

¬«36

Basemap Features
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad

Brazos River
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

Sign Districts
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Å

Û

N

S

EW

0 5,000 10,000
Feet

1 Inch = 4,500 Feet
or

1:54,000
Scale:

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: February 10, 2014
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2014\Sign_Districts.mxd
This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Sign Districts
District A
District B

District C
Downtown Area

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Ordinance No. 2014-08



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

12 Ordinance No. 2014-04 – Special Election 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2014-04, an Ordinance ordering a Special Election to be 
held on May 10, 2014, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters, for adoption or rejection, a 
proposed ordinance and/or resolution prohibiting the City from donating specified real property for the 
“One-Way Pairs” Project; and making provisions for the conduct of the election.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

101-1300-510-5720 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  All In-City MUDs 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2014-04 
2. City Council Meeting Minutes – 12-16-13 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by: 

 
Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by: 
   
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services   
[X] City Attorney LL/lc 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Ordinance No. 2014-04 is an Ordinance ordering a Special Election to be held on May 10, 2014. 
 
The purpose of Ordinance No. 2014-04 is to submit to the qualified voters, for adoption or rejection, a proposed 
ordinance and/or resolution prohibiting the City from donating specified land to TXDOT (Texas Department of 
Transportation) or any other person or entity for the “One-Way Pairs” Project, per a petition received by the 
citizens of the City of Rosenberg on December 06, 2013, and making provisions for the conduct of the election.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2014-04 as presented. 
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-04 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, ORDERING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE 
HELD ON MAY 10, 2014, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO 
THE QUALIFIED VOTERS, FOR ADOPTION OR REJECTION, A 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE AND/OR RESOLUTION PROHIBITING 
THE CITY FROM DONATING SPECIFIED REAL PROPERTY FOR 
THE “ONE-WAY PAIRS” PROJECT; AND MAKING PROVISIONS 
FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE ELECTION. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, provides for the 
Citizens of Rosenberg to initiate legislation pursuant to Article VII, Section 7.02 of said 
Charter; and, 

 WHEREAS, on December 06, 2013, the City Secretary received an initiative 
petition for an ordinance and/or a resolution prohibiting the City from donating real 
property for the “One-Way Pairs” Project; and, 

 WHEREAS, City Council decided to submit said petition to the citizens for a vote 
at a properly ordered election; and, 

 WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Texas further provide that Section 3.001 of 
the Election Code of the State of Texas is applicable to said elections, and in order to 
comply with said Code, an Order should be passed ordering said election and 
establishing the procedure to be followed in said election; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, hereby orders a 
special election, to be held on May 10, 2014, for a vote by the qualified voters of the 
City, as to the  initiative; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, hereby directs City 
staff to publish notice of the election in a newspaper of general circulation in the City at 
least once, not earlier than the 30th day or later than the 10th day before election day in 
compliance with the Texas Election Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas hereby directs City 
staff to publish notice of the election in a newspaper of general circulation in the City at 
least once, within fifteen (15) days before the date of election, in compliance with the 
City Charter; 
  



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 

Section 1. Findings. 

 That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted as part of this 
Ordinance for all purposes. 
 
Section 2. Election Order. 
 
 That a special election of the City of Rosenberg, shall be held on the 10th day of 
May, 2014.  

Section 3.  Ordinance and Resolution. 

 The following initiated ordinance and resolution will be submitted to the qualified 
voters of the City at the Special Election as follows: 

Shall the City Council for the City of Rosenberg pass an ordinance which reads 
as follows? 

The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to any person or entity, including TXDOT 
(Texas Department of Transportation), the real property owned by the City, and located 
in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise 
Streets, for the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property 
may only be sold in the future for fair market value, as determined by independent 
appraisal. 

FOR the ordinance 

AGAINST the ordinance 

Shall the City Council for the City of Rosenberg pass a resolution which reads as 
follows?  

The City of Rosenberg shall not donate to any person or entity, including TXDOT 
(Texas Department of Transportation), the real property owned by the City, and located 
in Rosenberg, Texas, between: Avenue H and Avenue I, and Damon and Louise 
Streets, for the roadway project known as the “One-Way Pairs” Project.  The property 
may only be sold in the future for fair market value, as determined by independent 
appraisal. 

FOR the resolution 

AGAINST the resolution 



3 
 

Section 4. Voting System and Ballots. 

 Voting on the date of the election, and early voting therefore, shall be by the use 
of a lawfully approved voting system.  The preparation of the voting equipment to be 
used in connection with such voting system and the official ballots for the election shall 
conform to the Texas Election Code, as amended, so as to permit the electors of the 
City of Rosenberg, Texas, to vote “For” or “Against” the ordinance and/or resolution.   

Section 5. Polling Places and Procedures. 

 That the City of Rosenberg does hereby designate Election Day polling locations 
for the voters of the City of Rosenberg.  The Election Day polling place is hereby 
designated to be as shown in Exhibit A. The polls for said election shall be open from 
7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Section 6. Early voting: Early Voting Polling Place. 

 (a) Early voting by personal appearance for all election precincts shall be held 
at the locations, at the times and on the days hereafter designated by the County 
Elections Administrator as provided in the Election Services Agreement. 

(b) The County Elections Administrator is hereby designated as the Early 
Voting Clerk.  

Applications for ballots to be voted by mail by City residents should be mailed to: 

 Attention: Mr. John Oldham, Election Administrator 
Fort Bend County Elections 

   4520 Reading Road 
   Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 

That the early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted at the sites and times 
as shown on Exhibit B. 

Section 7. Joint Election. 

The City has agreed to participate in a joint election with other participating 
governmental entities in the County who are also holding elections on Election Day and 
will contract with the County Elections Administrator for election services. The County 
precinct numbers for the City of Rosenberg will be 1007(p), 1012, 1013, 1015(p), 
1025(p), 1037, 1040(p), 1048, 1054(p), and 1074. 

  



4 
 

Section 8. Appointment of Election Officers. 

The election judges, alternate judges, clerks, members of the early voting ballot 
board and other personnel necessary for conducting the Election shall be appointed, the 
election judges and alternate judges may be changed, polling places may be combined 
for some precincts, and the central counting station shall be established and staffed as 
all provided in the Joint Election Agreement. Further, the Mayor is hereby authorized to 
appoint any such other officials not designated herein or appointed pursuant to the Joint 
Election Agreement as are necessary and appropriate to conduct the Election in 
accordance with the Code and other applicable law. 

Section 9.  Election Compliance. 

 This election shall be held in accordance with, and shall be governed by, the 
election laws of the State of Texas.  In all City elections, the Mayor, City Secretary, or 
City Council shall perform each act as is required to be performed, in connection with 
the holding and consummation of such election, and to give effect to the intent of this 
Ordinance. 

Section 10. Voting Qualification; Voting Materials. 

 That all registered, qualified voters of the City shall be permitted to vote at the 
election.  In addition, the election materials enumerated in the Texas Election Code, as 
amended, shall be printed in English and Spanish for use at the polling places and for 
early voting for the Election. 

Section 11. Notices. 

 That the City Secretary is hereby ordered and directed to publish and post the 
required notices in the manner and for the time periods required by law: 

(a) Publishing the notice of the election at least once, not more than thirty (30) days 
nor less than (10) days before the election in the official newspaper of the City;  
 

(b) Publishing the notice of election at least once, within fifteen (15) days before the 
date of the election in the official newspaper of the City in compliance with the 
City Charter ; 
 

(c) Filing with the City Secretary, a copy of the notice of the election; 
 

(d) Posting a copy of the notice on the bulletin board used for posting notices of the 
meetings of the City Council at least twenty-one (21) days before the election; 



5 
 

 The City Secretary shall file a copy of the Publisher’s Affidavit, which complies 
with the Texas Election Code, as amended, that the notice was published, with the 
name of the newspaper and the dates of publication. 

Section 12. Severability Clause. 

 If any word, section, article, phrase, paragraph, sentence, clause, or portion of 
this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid 
or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance; and the City Council hereby declares 
it would have passed such remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity 
which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 13. Effective Date. 

 This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and publication in 
accordance with and as provided by law and the City Charter. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of __________”ayes” in favor and of __________ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with Section 3.10 of the City 

Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, on this the _________ day of ____________, 

2014. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________  _________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek,  City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
      
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lora Jean D. Lenzsch, City Attorney 































CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 18, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

13 Resolution No. R-1752 - Joint Election Agreement and Contract for 
Election Services between the City and Fort Bend County 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1752, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and 
the City Secretary to attest, for and on behalf of the City, a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for 
Election Services for the 2014 Special Election, by and between the City and Fort Bend County, Texas. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ]  N/A 

Source of Funds: 
101-1300-510-5720 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

  MUD #:   N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1752 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  

 

Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec.  Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services 
[X] City Attorney  LL/lc   
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   

 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Resolution No. R-1752 is a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and the City Secretary to attest the 2014 
Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services (Contract) by and between the City and Fort Bend 
County, Texas.  
 
This Contract with Fort Bend County provides for the Fort Bend County Elections Administrator to coordinate, 
supervise, and handle all aspects of administering the May 10, 2014 City of Rosenberg Special Municipal 
Election. 
 
According to the Contract, the City will pay Fort Bend County for equipment, supplies, services and 
administrative costs related to the May 10, 2014 Special Election. The Elections Administrator will serve as the 
Administrator for the Election, but the City will remain responsible for the lawful conduct of the Election.  The 
Elections Administrator will provide advisory services in connection with decisions to be made and actions to be 
taken by the officers of the City. The Early Voting Schedule is attached as Attachment “B” and the Election Day 
polling places are attached as Attachment “A” to the Contract. 
 
The City Secretary recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1752 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1752 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
AND THE CITY SECRETARY TO ATTEST, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A JOINT ELECTION 
AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT FOR ELECTION SERVICES FOR THE 
2014 SPECIAL ELECTION, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. That the Mayor and the City Secretary are hereby authorized to 

execute and attest, respectively, the Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election 

Services (Contract), by and between the City and Fort Bend County, Texas, for the 

purpose of conducting the 2014 Special Election on May 10, 2014.  A copy of such 

Contract is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2014. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



























 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 14 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 15 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 02-18-14
	-- Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Anthony Ray Becerra for the Unsung Hero Award
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 01-21-14
	City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes - 01-28-14

	B - Resolution No. R-1750 - Agreement for Professional On-Line Auction Services
	Resolution No. R-1750
	Resolution No. R-1460 - 03-06-12
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 03-06-12

	C - Resolution No. R-1748 - Video Streaming Agreement
	Resolution No. R-1748
	Sole Source Provider Letter - Swagit Productions, LLC - 03-12-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-21-14

	D - Ordinance No. 2014-09 - Authorizing MUD No. 159 Bond Sale, Series 2014
	Ordinance No. 2014-09
	Location Map
	TCEQ Approval - 11-25-13
	Water Supply and Wastewater Service Agreement Excerpt - 05-17-05

	E - Resolution No. R-1757 - Hay Production Lease Extension
	Resolution No. R-1757
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-28-14

	F - Quarterly Review of the City's Financial Report and Investment Report
	Vasut Memorandum - 02-06-14
	Quarterly Investment Report

	G - Surplus Property Item List Consideration
	Surplus Radio Equipment List

	2 - Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2014-05 - Location of Stop Signs
	Ordinance No. 2014-05 - Redline
	Ordinance No. 2014-05
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 02-04-14
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-21-14

	3 - Receive Public Comment on MUD No 162 Restated and Amended Fire Protection Agreement
	Lutz Email - 01-03-14
	Restated and Amended Fire Protection Agreement (2012) - 09-04-12
	Resolution No. R-1701 - 09-17-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-17-13

	4 - Resolution No. R-1753 - Budget Amendment 14-07
	Resolution No. R-1753
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 02-04-14

	5 - Resolution No. R-1754 - Financial Management Policies
	Resolution No. R-1754
	Financial Management Policies - Redlined
	Finance/Audit Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-29-14 

	6 - Resolution No. R-1755 - Rosenberg Business Park Funding
	Resolution No. R-1755
	Rosenberg Business Park Financial Analysis
	Resolution No. R-1613 - 02-05-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-05-13 
	Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-14-13
	Finance/Audit Committee Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-29-14

	7 - Resolution No. R-1756 - Budget Amendment 14-08
	Resolution No. R-1756
	Rosenberg Development Corporation Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-14-13

	8 - Resolution No. R-1758 - Awarding Bid for 2014 Family 4th Celebration Fireworks Display
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal - Pyro Shows of Texas, Inc.
	Acosta Memorandum - 02-06-14
	Resolution No. R-1758

	9 - Rosenberg Special Events Committee Recommendation
	McCarthy Memorandum - 12-13-13 
	Parks and Recreation Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-23-14

	10 - Ordinance No. 2014-10 - Flood Prevention and Control
	Ordinance No. 2014-10 - Redline
	Ordinance No. 2014-10

	11 - Ordinance No. 2014-08 - Sign Ordinance Amendments
	Ordinance No. 2014-08 - Redline w/o Exhibit
	Ordinance No. 2014-08
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-26-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-24-13 

	12 - Ordinance No. 2014-04 - Special Election
	Ordinance No. 2014-04
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 12-16-13

	13 - Resolution No. R-1752 - Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services
	Resolution No. R-1752

	14 - Announcements
	15 - Adjournment



